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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
e E T ERE R T BRI B rE T BBEERT
Consolidated income statement ERAER
for the years ended 31 March BE3 A3 HILEE
Revenue A 3,940.8 3,401.7 1,634.9* 1,509.1*  1,457.8*
Profit/(loss) for the year A ()
Continuing Operations e (132.5) (145.8) (144.4)
Discontinued Operations b SR (45.2) (4.5) 110.0
Net profit/(loss) for the year AR IR AL (ER) 92.1 (189.8) (177.7) (150.3) (34.4)
Interim dividend paid LR A B L 20.9 - - - -
Final dividend proposed BERA R 10.5 - - - -
Special dividend paid EIRFFHI B - — - — 198.8
Consolidated balance sheet AEBEARR
as at 31 March 3H31HER
Assets i 3,091.4 29584 26482 26519  1,981.7
Less: Liabilities and B A&
non-controlling interests VA AR 1,644.9 1,728.6 1,729.1 1,631.3 996.7
Shareholders’ funds B &4 1,446.5 1,229.8 919.1 1,020.6 985.0
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT T BT T BT
Per share data AR
Earnings/(loss) AR (1) 0.088 (0.182) (0.170) (0.144) (0.033)
Interim dividend paid LR A A B S 0.02 - - - -
Final dividend proposed BERA RS 0.01 - - - -
Special dividend paid C IR B - - - - 0.19
Shareholders’ funds JBHRE 5 1.382 1.175 0.878 0.975 0.941
* On 26 January 2018, the Group announced the disposal of its entire optical retail and wholesale businesses (the “Optical Business*)

to its controlling shareholder (the “Disposal”). The Optical Business is classified as Discontinued Operations. The completion of
the Disposal took place on 1 June 2018.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

The directors of the Company (the “Board”) submit their report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 36 on
pages 193 to 197 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s businesses for the year ended 31
March 2019 and an indication of likely future development in the
Group's businesses are set out under Management Discussion and
Analysis on page 31.

There were no important events affecting the Group, that have
occurred subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2019.

Stelux is a company that cares about the way it does business, the
way we engage with our customers, our employees, our suppliers,
and others in general. Certain core principles underpin the way we
achieve our business objectives. We engage our business partners
and treat our employees in a fair, honest and responsible manner
to deliver sustainable results to our shareholders.

Our vision to “Beautify and enrich lives through our products and
services” underscores the way we engage with our customers.
From our lifestyle products, ranging from trendy watches and
smart wearables available at our brick and mortar stores or online
shopping platforms, we strive to deliver a personal shopping
experience to our customers engaging them through traditional
and social media.

Customers looking for a wide brand selection will enjoy shopping
at multi-brand retailer “CITY CHAIN", appealing to customers who
enjoy fashionable watches.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

As for the Group’s watch wholesale business, (in addition to
selling to City Chain), our customers comprise of a large network
of independent dealer stores spanning, Hong Kong, Singapore and
Malaysia. Many of these dealers have been doing business with
the Group for an average period of around 25 years. On average
around 13% of our watch dealers operate at least 2 points of sales.

The Group is aware of the challenges brought on by underlying
structural changes in labour markets and employee expectations
towards work life balance and work fluidity. Hence our mission to
grow, respect and reward our employees as they develop together
with the Group becomes ever more important in employee
performance, satisfaction and retention. More details on the
Group’s employment policies can be found on pages 205 to 208
of the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

The Group’s suppliers are an important component of our
businesses, ranging from upstream component vendors,
assemblers and manufacturers to more downstream third party
brand principals and distributors, where third party brands are
sourced. Some brand principals have been partnering the Group
for over 20 years. Credit terms granted by the Group’s suppliers
range from 30 to 90 days. More details on our suppliers are set out
on pages 208 to 209 of the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report.

Businesses require stable relationships with their lenders. Without
exception, the Group maintains strong and cordial relationships
with its lenders who provide important trade and other short and
long term credit facilities. These lenders range from local banks
with strong local connections to regional and global banks with
solid reputations.

The Group recognises certain principal risks and uncertainties
described below (in no order of preference):

Risks of fluctuations in the global and local economic
environments, political instability and government activities
impact our business performance and appropriate strategies and
measures are adopted to mitigate these risks. For more details,
refer to page 31 under “GROUP OUTLOOK” of the Management,
Discussion and Analysis.

Changing technology continues to significantly reshape the way
we live, including the way we consume and experience. The
Group has allocated more resources to develop appropriate
infrastructure. For more details, refer to page 32 under “BUSINESS
MODEL AND STRATEGY” of the Management, Discussion and
Analysis.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

As inventory levels impact sales, profitability and cash flows
and with watch production lead times averaging 12 months,
effective inventory management is important. Systems are in
place to ensure key functions including merchandising, store
operations and finance closely monitor metrics like, inventory
levels, aging and turnover ratios. The Group has adopted a
conservative approach to ordering and purchasing stock. There
are also measures to fasten stock turn and to facilitate disciplined
capital management including flexible cross regional clearance
initiatives.

The ability to attract and retain suitable talent affects the
stability and healthy development of the Group’s businesses.
Operating within a tight labour market, strategies and benefits
are periodically reviewed and where appropriate aligned to
particular market and industry norms and practices. Strategies
are adopted to attract and retain talents to satisfy the Group's
needs for development. We seek to provide different job related
opportunities to talented staff to enhance their job satisfaction
which in turn helps staff retention.

The ability to secure the right store location is another principal
driver of performance and affects Group turnover and profitability.
Leasing, store operations, finance and senior management review
and assess location suitability using a checklist of pre-agreed
criteria. A dedicated leasing team focusses on leasing strategies
and activities in our major markets.

Product sourcing impacts on Group turnover, gross margins and
inventory levels. In line with our business strategy to move the
watch retail business to more lifestyle based, it is important that
the right products are sourced to align with our refreshed store
image. CITY CHAIN being a multi-branded retailer, a proportion
of products are sourced from third party brand principals or
distributors and there is no assurance that supply will continue
on terms acceptable to the Group. The Group has a dedicated
merchandising function to focus on sourcing of non-house
branded products and maintaining good relationships, particularly
with principal suppliers. We look to form medium to long term
strategic brand partnerships with our suppliers, working closely
with them to facilitate the sharing of fashion trends and market
information. To stay attuned to customer tastes and preferences,
market research on social media trends, competitors’ offerings and
market visits are carried out regularly, and customer feedback is
closely monitored.

The Group’s financial risks and relevant management policies can
be found in the “Finance” section under Management, Discussion
and Analysis on pages 32 to 34 and Note 3 to the Financial
Statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

Laws and regulations governing consumer protection,
employment and personal data have a significant impact on
the Group’s retail businesses. The Group has an in-house legal
function and where necessary seeks external legal advice and
training to keep abreast of latest developments in different areas of
law. There was no material non-compliance with the above laws
and regulations for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Climate change and other social issues may at times impact our
business decisions and actions. Our environmental policy is
based on 3R’s — to reduce, reuse or recycle whenever feasible or
practical so as to reduce our environmental impact. Changing
the way we consume the earth’s resources requires the collective
efforts of individuals and businesses together with supportive
and progressive environmental policies enacted by governments.
The different regions where we operate in have varying degrees
of commitment to environmental friendly legislation, regulations
and practices, and in places with less awareness, there are more
constraints on our performance.

Further reporting on environmental issues can be found on pages
201 to 205 under Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 43.

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2018: nil).

The directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: nil).

A conditional special distribution in cash of HK$0.19 dollar per
share was proposed by the Board on 23 January 2018 relating
to the disposal of the Disposal group and was approved by the
shareholders in the special general meeting on 19 April 2018. The
special distribution, amounting to HK$198,830,000, had been
paid on 14 June 2018.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
of HK$661,000.

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the shares issued in the year ended 31 March 2019 are
set out in Note 22 to the financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 1 of this
annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2019, the distributable reserves of the Company
available for distribution as dividends to shareholders amounted
to HK$32,737,000 (2018: HK$231,657,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws although there is no restriction against such rights under
the laws in Bermuda.

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Joseph C. C. Wong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Wallace Kwan Chi Kin (executive director and CFO)
Wu Chun Sang (independent non-executive
Lawrence Wu Chi Man (
(

)
independent non-executive)
Agnes Kwong Yi Hang )

independent non-executive

In accordance with Bye-law 110(A), Professor Lawrence Wu Chi
Man and Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin will retire by rotation at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (continued)

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr. Joseph C. C.
Wong and Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin are also directors in certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Other directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong during the year and up to the date of
this report are: Ms. Caroline Chong Sue Peng, Mr. William Hui Kin
Wai, Ms. Stella Chow Yin Oi and Mr. Johnny Chan Koon Kiu.

No director has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The Company’s directors have formal letters of appointment
setting out the key terms and conditions of their appointment.
During the year, Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong and Mr. Wallace Kwan
Chi Kin were each eligible to an annual bonus determinable under
the terms of a KPI based executive bonus scheme with respect
to their management of the Group. Provision for the bonuses in
respect of the directors eligible under the executive bonus scheme
for the year ended 31 March 2019 amounted to HK$820,000
(2018: HK$6,750,000). Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong waived his annual
bonus of HK$1,450,000 for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Apart from the foregoing and continuing connected transactions
of the Group, no other transactions, arrangements and contracts
of significance in relation to the Group’s businesses to which the
Company’s subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and
in which a director of the Company and the director’s connected
party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Chumphol KANJANAPAS (aka Joseph C. C. WONG), aged 59,
was appointed executive director of the Company in 1986. Mr.
Wong undertook his tertiary studies in the United Kingdom. He
graduated from the University of Bradford with a B.Sc. in Industrial
Engineering (First Class Honours). Mr. Wong also holds a M.Sc.
(with Distinction) in Operational Research from the University
of Southampton. Mr. Wong is the Founding Honorary Patron of
the HKU Foundation for Education Development and Research
and has been serving the Board of Directors of the Foundation for
over 15 years. He is also a member of the Court of the University
of Hong Kong. He was awarded an Honorary Fellowship by the
University of Hong Kong in 2012.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES (continued)

Directors

Wallace KWAN Chi Kin, aged 49, joined the Group in November
2011 as Group Finance Director and was appointed an executive
director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company in July
2013. Mr. Kwan holds a Bachelor of Social Science Degree
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He also holds a
Master of Business Administration Degree from the University of
Manchester and a Master of Laws in Corporate & Financial Law
from The University of Hong Kong. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and also a fellow
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Kwan
has around 27 years of experience in financial management
having worked at an international audit firm and several listed
companies.

WU Chun Sang, aged 62, was appointed an independent non-
executive director of the Company in 2004. He is a Macau
Registered Auditor. He is also a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, UK and an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Lawrence WU Chi Man, aged 60, was appointed an independent
non-executive director of the Company in 2005. He graduated
from Bristol University, United Kingdom with a BSc(Eng) and PhD
in Aeronautical Engineering. He is a Professor at the Department
of Materials Science and Engineering at the City University
of Hong Kong. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers (HKIE). He is also a Council Member of the HKIE. He
received the Taishan (& 1LI£2%) Scholar award from the Shandong
Provincial Government in 2012.

Agnes KWONG Yi Hang, aged 59, holds a PhD in Molecular
Immunology from the University of Hong Kong and an MBA
from Troy State University in the USA. She was appointed an
independent non-executive director of the Company in 2006. She
manages her own consultancy with a major focus on healthy and
environmentally friendly style living.

Chief Counsel and Company Secretary

Caroline CHONG, aged 57, joined the Group in 1997. She
graduated from the University of Kent, United Kingdom with a
Bachelor of Arts (Law) (Hons) degree. She is admitted as a Barrister
in England and Wales, and, Hong Kong. She heads Group Legal
and Corporate Secretariat, and Group Human Resources.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES (continued)

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company and its subsidiaries did not set up or operate any
share option scheme for the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to
the date of publication of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of the
directors, and the Company’s chief executive in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies were as follows:

(@)  The Company — Ordinary shares

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Number of shares

ESNEREEAEREE (B)

B

AN E) S LI S AN | A 2 2019 4F 3 A 31 H R4
JE K B B AR T EE H ) 5% 57 sl AT AT ]
i

EE s

201943 A 31 H » %A ml AR 38 75 K HA B 1
] ([ 78 5 S HA B eAd] 1) 56 352 Wi BA7 2 B wt i
fTRc sk > EH AN F] 2 BTN B AR A
B HAT AT A B2 ) (%5 5 S 0 B R B4 XV BB
TEFR) 2y - B KA SR P 2 M s
RAE > BURYE LT T NE BT S 2L
HEST VT 2B 6 AR ) BB 58 BT 2 R i B iR
T

(@ ARF—EIEL
TR L 7] Z RO R B0 2 A7 T

Approximate

R E percentage of
Personal Family  Corporate/ Other the. t?tal shares
. . . . . In issue as at
Name of Director interest interest trust interest interest Total
31 March 2019
H2019 5
3A31EEY
*=E HERITRAR
EENSE EPN REER fErtiER HithigEz e ZBHEDH
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 548,474,814 11,000 855,200 — 549,341,014 52.49
HOAH SR (Note 1)
(Hf#E1)
Notes: Bt 5

(1) As at 31 March 2019, Yee Hing Company Limited held 855,200
shares of the Company through its subsidiary Active Lights
Company Limited, 55% of the total issued ordinary shares of Yee
Hing Company Limited is held by Klayze Holdings Limited, which
is the trustee of a discretionary trust (the “Trust”). Mr. Joseph C. C.
Wong is a beneficiary of the Trust and was therefore deemed to be
interested in 855,200 shares of the Company through the Trust’s
interest in Yee Hing Company Limited.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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(1) JA20194E3 331 H » FBA7 FRA w78 i H b e
/3] Active Lights Company Limited #6453 ]
855,200/ A5 © Klayze Holdings Limited LAYE £
—IEEE(E R (TERE ) 2 2 N B s
FRA A FRE BT WM 2 55% HEdE o BrAIME e
EIEREZ Z AN o WO R 5 e S
BN W) 2 RERR A 4520 /1855, 200/ I 2 -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (continued) EE R (E)

(b)  Subsidiaries by M

Approximate
percentage of
the total
preference

Number of shares -
shares in issue

RHBE as at 31

Corporate/ March 2019

Personal  Family trust Other R2019F3 A
interests  interest  interest Interest Total 31 B{EZ2EE
Z=m BITEER

BAEZ ZEER FiEs HoEs mE BOBD

(i) City Chain (Thailand) Company Limited — Preference shares'
City Chain (Thailand) Company Limited — 56k

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 200 - 208,800 - 209,000 99.52
vk Pl

(i) Stelux Watch (Thailand) Company Limited — Preference shares?
Stelux Watch (Thailand) Company Limited — 56/

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 600 - - - 600 16.67
A et

(iii)  Stelux (Thailand) Limited — Preference shares’
Stelux (Thailand) Limited — 883

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 5,100 - - - 5,100 100
EHIN

B () A RA A 10
2019 4F4F-H
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (continued)

(b)  Subsidiaries (continued)

Notes:

(1) City Chain (Thailand) Company Limited is a subsidiary of the
Company. Each preference share carries a right to vote and a right
to an annual fixed dividend but not to any other profit sharing.

2) Stelux Watch (Thailand) Company Limited is a subsidiary of the
Company. Each preference share carries a right to vote and a right
to an annual fixed dividend but not to any other profit sharing.

(3) Stelux (Thailand) Limited is a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Joseph
C. C. Wong is entitled to approximately 8.6% of the voting power of
such subsidiary and an annual fixed dividend by virtue of the 5,100
preference shares held by him but not to any other profit sharing.

Save as disclosed above, no directors, chief executive of the
Company or their associates have any interest or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies.

INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE PURSUANT
TO THE SFO

As at 31 March 2019, the following persons had interests in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO:

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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(1) City Chain (Thailand) Company Limited %4~/
PR B 2> ) o A F 1 e o A B S R B g4 1Y
TS RN MERE A 43 BT o HAL 2 A o

2) Stelux Watch (Thailand) Company Limited B A2
AW RS 2N F o IR S e B R AR
[ 7 S > ST R 2 AT AT Lt 2 ) o

(3)  Stelux (Thailand) Limited £ 72y & (4 B & 28 7 o
TR 3 e A A W% B A W BT RE A Y 5,100 LB
JBE AT 5% W 2 B KA 8.6% 18 2 K 45 4T )
FEMER, > AHSIG MERE 4> T Ao HoAb 24 ) -

R BT EE E AN > REEA S RS I M B
A9 65 352 fik T B A7 e M 9 e ok A 2 ) B T
BT AR b i 4 ) A T R I 58 5 B R 1
PR AN AR HEE BT BN BB 5
F gt B8 N o A A A 2 ) LA o] R I (3
it 7 S BRI XV R E 7)1 i SR B ik
1 BEAT AR (T RE 2 IR T o

REZZRAEROIATURE 2R RS

R 95 8 5 I ) B 6 191 565 33 6 e it B AF 2 B e A
OBk - LR AR 2019453 H 31 HIRAR AR Z I
1R BRI R 13 Hh A R 25



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE PURSUANT BEZFENBESHRHEFURE ZREELS (&)
TO THE SFO (continued)

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company TR L2 R R 5 2 A7
Number of shares Approximate
ROBE percentage of
. the total shares

Personal Family  Corporate/ Other ..

Name of Shareholder interest interest  trust interest interest Total in issue as at
31 March 2019
R2019F
3A31 A2
=m/ HEBRTRE

BRERMEE B AR REER SR Hipfg s e ZBREDE

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 548,474,814 11,000 855,200 - 549,341,014 52.49

HAEEE (Note 1)

(Wt 1)

Notes: By T -

(1) As at 31 March 2019, Yee Hing Company Limited held 855,200 (1) JA20194E3 31 H » F&BUA PR W) 28 28 H I )&
shares of the Company through its subsidiary Active Lights Company /3 H) Active Lights Company Limited 7 42 H]
Limited, 55% of the total issued ordinary shares of Yee Hing 855,200 Bt » Klayze Holdings Limited BAfE
Company Limited is held by Klayze Holdings Limited, which is the LM ET(EED 22N A 38
trustee of a discretionary trust (the “Trust”). Mr. Joseph C.C. Wong AT PR 7 22 B B AT 3 B 2 55% M i o B
and Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas are the beneficiaries of the Trust and were RISl B AT E B R 248 N O
therefore deemed to be interested in 855,200 shares of the Company Ly (e e 3 A FR A 7] 2 it A A8 A7)
through the Trust's interest in Yee Hing Company Limited. 855,200 R hy ©

B () A RA A 12
2019 4F4F-H
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE PURSUANT
TO THE SFO (continued)

Save as disclosed above, the directors are not aware of any person
(other than a director or chief executive of the Company or his/
her respective associate(s)), who had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO as at
31 March 2019.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES
The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or
sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier 47%
— five largest suppliers combined 70%
Sales
— the largest customer 1%
— five largest customers combined 4%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

REESZRPEROIATRE 2 RS ()

M L SCT i gg & 4 > iR 20194E3 A 31 H » AL
TR RE F5 S B e 1156 33 6 0T B AE 2 B R
Frec sk o W HMEAA B AT ML (E RSN
CIPAGE- T UN =R -Scd 1 PN "TIRN
IS 2 A AR BRI 43 P A HE RS BIR A o

tHESNEE - HEIWEE

A R A 7RSI S S [ HAT AT B0y © AR R s
ATl Y G 2 D 7 A A0 ST B M R B A W] AT
Al BBEAgy

FREFRHUER

A T E A T 2 AN AR A B B
BRI

PR
— FORBERE R 47%
— AR BERERG ARt 70%
s
—REF 1%
—HR%F AR 4%

WA EF AN ER - JF BB AL A A
N FNBEAS 5% DA _E 2 BRI i F ot 3 2 i
BR S B AL o

EEEH

AN > AR ) Sl R T AT A AT A TR R
> T ESER I B RATEL R A



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the directors of the Company, at least 25%
of the issued share capital of the Company was held by public
members as at the date of this report.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following continuing connected transactions are based on
normal commercial terms agreed after arms’ length negotiations
between the parties and are in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group. The continuing connected transactions
are subject to the annual review, reporting and announcement
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) and exempt from independent shareholders’
approval.

The Group’s internal audit function conducted a review and
audit to verify the following continuing connected transactions.
A summary of the audit findings and the Group’s internal control
procedures to ensure Listing Rules compliance with respect to
connected transactions were presented to the independent non-
executive directors (who also comprise of the Audit Committee)
as part of their annual review of the continuing connected
transactions.

Continuing connected transactions of the Group for the financial
year ended 31 March 2019

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed the
following continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
all these transactions have been entered into by the Group:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and
(c) according to the agreements governing them on terms

that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

RHABRERE

HRIEALS ) AT BTS2 OBl AR A /] S
B AR H AN R C 3T AR £ 25%
hABN LA -

DA 5 28 B W6 58 2 T BE TR T 4045 O B8 - RE T AR
B B9 — e P SR o IR AS A B — i K H
PSR AT o 45 208 B Wt 58 2 UL ST A B T 5C
Zy B A R ml RS 2 B TR (T B Akl 1) 25+
AT BB - IR A EIRE > IR
L BOR AL -

AL F Y AR A AT T B e > IR
PATN SR BRI S 2 o AL A R SR DR AR ST [ B 58
Gy b TR R A5 A A AR P M L 2 A
B RATHES AR ZEGWE) (FRFE
TSR S T 1 — 0

AEEBZE2019F3 A31 B LM RFE2SHB
BXZ

HRAE E T RLAIEE 14A55 5k - AR Rl AL IR AT
EROHEM T SR ER S > I O iR A
LB T

(@ AL H BB ET L

(b)  #&— B AR EE AP RKRT oL 5 )

(©  MRIFRAG %55 58 5 W) R B o w72 1 5 B
AT A R IR M 2 ) IR RAT 57 o

B () A RA A
2019 4F4F-H
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) HiERmRS (&)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s AR A o o T 2 LA 11 7 s B 25 Y 2
continuing connected transactions in accordance with the 3000 5% (EHT) [ 5 BB R A% s [ LU b 2
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) B TAF ] W25 TH 2R 740 58 [ Fils Lkl
“Assurance Fngagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of FUVRRL 5 19 455 2080 B 0 2 o A BT bR £ ) > AR A )
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice A2 ST 2 52 W9 3 A 2 [ 45 208 R i 52 9 A s o
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions R4 BT RLRIES 14A.56 6 » 2528 FAZ S0 2 A
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong A8 [ DA 9 8 0 R AR R B 2 ) B AR LK
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Company’s auditor fF o Foh R Fa A A R K A o AT A
has issued an unqualified letter containing his findings and I3 5 T A R ) A A B ok Rl A o
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions

disclosed by the Group below in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of

the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided

by the Company to the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Summary of the continuing connected transactions: FrAE BRI A 2

1. Renewal of leases or licensing of office premises, 1. ENHESEFTRAPLIESH  FENQ

carparking spaces and warehouse spaces REE
Income/
Connected persons Nature of transactions (expenses) Annual Caps Notes
2 YN REME KA (XH) FELR B aE
HK$'000 HK$’000
AT AT
Mengiwa Property Investment Limited Leasing of properties (11,259) (17,966) (i), (iv)
(“MPIL") as Landlord Y & (vii)
WITE SE B A IRA R ([BIEE D) -
ERZEE
Active Lights Company Limited (“ALCL”)  Leasing of properties (1,162) (2,697) (i), (iv)
as Landlord THEYZE & (vi)
Active Lights Company Limited ([ ALCLJ)
EREE
MPIL and ALCL, each of them as Licensor Licensing of carparking spaces (75) (264) (iii), (iv),
Wi ] ALCL > 84545 BAE B r T A =K ) (Vi) & (vii)
MPIL as Principal Provision of management and 2,340 2,831 (v) & (vii)
B - fEERREAN property agency liaison
services
PR AL P R SE A
it M s
1 5 STELUX Holdings International Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2019



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) BFERBRRS (&)

Notes: MisE :

All definitions in the notes below have the same meaning as referred to in
the Company’s announcement dated 6 April 2016 and 26 January 2018
unless otherwise indicated.

Leasing of office premises and carparking spaces

0]

On 5 April 2016, Stelux Holdings Limited (“SHL”) and Thong Sia
Watch Company Limited (“TSWCL"), the wholly owned subsidiaries
of the Company, each individually as tenant/licensee, entered
into the Stelux House Renewal Tenancy Agreements 2016 and
Carparking Space Licenses with MPIL in respect of the following
properties:

Bk 55 A 5E B & A > AS B T A S g B AR 4 AR
201644 H 6 H 201841 H 26 H i Al 8 2 /A 45 T il &
FLA ]

HERAEMREEM

(i)

R20164E4 A5 H » BHEZE (M) ARATF
(TSHL ) B2 7] 4 6 B o 2 0 400 nf it ¢ A PR
A (@RS D) (% BT RE T )
S HEFT 37201 647 2 6 7 26 PO 5 0 3 1 ik %
A FE AT A ek - AR BRI

Premises A: whole of 27th floor and portion of 28th floor YIZEA IR0 27 A g K 28 M —
(including 12 carparking spaces) of Stelux House FO (L4512 A EAL)

Premises B: whole of 26th floor with 4 storerooms numbers 1A, MEEB - RO 268 2 8 IR TA
1B, 6A and 6B on 26th floor of Stelux House 1B ~ 6A % 6B VORI fi#if7- %

Premises C*:  whole of 21st floor of Stelux House WECx:  EIEEEPL21

Premises D*:  office unit numbers 1901, 1902 and 1903 with two WEED* : EEEPTO19M1901%E - 1902%
storerooms numbers 1A and 1B on the 19th floor of J 1903 & 2 PN & A7 (GEEA] 1A K&
Stelux House 1B Wi A7 =)

Premises E*:  office unit numbers 1905 and 1906 with two L/E 45 Hem AL 1981905 = K 1906
storerooms numbers 6A and 6B on 19th floor of 2N E AL (R 6A K 6B MfH
Stelux House %)

Premises F: office unit numbers 2201, 2202, 2203 and 2205 L/ES B RE 2 0 2282201 % ~ 2202
with two storerooms numbers 1A and 1B on the %~ 2203 % %2205 % 2 N E A
22nd floor of Stelux House (B[R] 1A & 1B Wi fit (7 %)

Premises G: office unit number 2206A with two storerooms WG : B0 22 #2206A F 2 HFA

numbers 6A and 6B on the 22nd Floor of Stelux
House

For Premises A, B, and G, the lease term was from 1 April 2016 up to
and including 31 March 2019 with a rent-free period commencing
from 1 April 2016 to 20 November 2016 (i.e. seven months and
twenty days).

For Premises F, the lease term was from 1 April 2016 up to and
including 31 May 2016.

The total monthly rental for Premises A, B, C, D, E and G; and
the premises under the TSWCL Tenancy Agreement amounted
to HK$1,497,133 (exclusive of rates, government rent and
management charges). All rents are payable monthly in advance
in cash by the tenants on the first day of each and every calendar
month.

* Owing to the Disposal, the Optical Premises under the Stelux House
Tenancy Agreement was terminated on Completion and TSWCL
entered into a new tenancy agreement with MPIL for a portion of 21st

floor at Stelux House (“TSWCL Tenancy Agreement”).

FEHAL (] 6A & 6B M RHETFZE)

WA WEB KRG A 201644 H 1 H
HEFFE20194E3 A31 H (BEZH) A1k > %l
H20164F4 A1 HEFFE 20164511 H20H » A
12 o )= ey o N

YIEFMI A 201644 A1 HEFFE£ 201645
H31H (EiE#ZH) -

WIZEA - WEB - WEC - WED - WEERYE
G > DA S P o sl T T A 2600 B A L
G MR BN 1,497,133 J0 (V4R 24 80 ~ BUF
TR B ) o BT A FE 4t F P 45 T8 A & H
DI ATELT

* HUASERS th i - BOGmSE T DA B T ek T
119 TR $52 40 6 IS L B S5 el G AR Ak o 05
A > g B ) T R S b0 21 B
14— 053 T S REL W e (T 2 i 6 AL 5
fihik))

B () A RA A
2019 4F4F-H
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

0]

(continued)

The monthly rents of all the above-mentioned premises were
determined on an arm’s length basis taking into account two rental
valuations conducted by two independent property valuers dated
14 March 2016 and 17 March 2016, respectively (one representing
the tenants and the other representing the landlord) and as such
reflected the prevailing market rental values of the subject premises.
Accordingly, the directors considered the Stelux House Renewal
Tenancy Agreements 2016; and the TSWCL Tenancy Agreement
were on normal commercial terms and were fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole.

In addition, SHL (as tenant of Premises A) has been granted the
naming right of Stelux House and each of SHL and TSWCL has been
granted an option for the Premises A, G; and the TSWCL Tenancy
Agreement but not an obligation, to renew the relevant tenancy
agreements with the landlord every three years for three more years
for a maximum of 12 years commencing from 1 April 2019 at the
then prevailing open market rent.

On 30 March 2017, SHL (as tenant) surrendered the Premises G
to MPIL (as landlord) and entered into a tenancy agreement for
office unit number 2206A on the 22nd Floor of Stelux House with
monthly rent of HK$11,147.50 (exclusive of management charges
and Government rate and rent) for two years expiring on 31 March
2019.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, SHL (as tenant/licensee) has
entered into tenancy/licence agreements with MPIL in respect of the
following properties:

(@)  Storeroom 6A on 18th Floor of Stelux House with monthly
licence fee of HK$6,300.00 (inclusive of management
charges and Government rate and rent) for a 6-month term of
licence expiring on 31 May 2018;' and

(b)  Storeroom 1B on 17th Floor of Stelux House with monthly
licence fee of HK$6,300.00 (inclusive of management
charges and Government rate and rent) for a 14-month term
of licence expiring on 31 March 2019.

STELUX Holdings International Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

FEEBRS (8)

Bk A W A A FLA AR IR A IR B E
S 5T B A 28 ST A SEA (BRI 43 5% 2016 4E3 H 14
H 201643 A 17 BT WA 4 A5 E b
—THMREMEAE » 55— TR ZETRANE) K
ZWEBATH G A - UL > EERL > 20164F
SEBIIHE LW N R T i YNk & N
Tk — R MG AT AR WA AA
ST B R 85 o

AN SHL (FE AW AZ LR ) IR Eap 2t
D2 A A HE > DL SHL MO B 5% 45 it
A B W3 G B e R W el R BRI A A
(EA0E S5 AT ) A 4 = 4F Bl 3 F 4503 R BULAT A BT
TG A BT B ik AU > SR AUN =4F >
201944 A 1 LML 8+ 47 -

2017453 A30H » SHLUME & fL P ) #& 1k 1
B (E ) HBEWEG WHEamkSd
022 ME2206A 2 HEN T B > B H M 4& 5l
We11,147.50 70 O BLHG 35 B4 ~ BUM b AR K 2%
i) > P WI4E S 201943 H 31 H A 1T &
fihk o

W E —F— ) FE=H=F+—HIL4EE > SHL
(WEBHLE /ol N) ELMPILEELL NP 25T 0 f
/3 e] (5 19k

(@)  EIERESL18BeARAAE - B H A
JH2 B HK$6,300.00 (BLIE & HLE - BT
il Jez= ) - FHHSMEH £ 20184F5 H 31
HEAIE s &

(b)  EREET O 7EIBHAE - AR
12 5 HK$6,300.00 (CLfH & L~ HURFHb
FH K z=fm) > FIE-FPUAR H 2201943 H31
HAIE -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
e

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

Leasing of warehouses

(if)

On 5 April 2016, Thong Sia Company Limited (“TSCL”) and ALCL
(each individually as landlord/licensor) and certain wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company (each individually as tenant/licensee),
entered into the Warehouse Leasing and Licence Agreements 2016
with respect to the following warehouse spaces in Hong Kong:

(@  three warehouse spaces at an industrial building in Yau Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong (“Warehouse Spaces A, B and C”); and

(b)  three warehouse spaces at an industrial building in Kowloon
Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong (“Warehouse Spaces D, E and F”).

The above-mentioned warehouse spaces are for a term of three
years from 1 April 2016 up to and including 31 March 2019.

All rental and licence fees are payable monthly in advance in cash
by the tenants on the first day of each and every calendar month.

The monthly license fees were determined on an arm’s length basis
taking into account the prevailing market rental rates in the vicinity,
which indicate that the renewal rentals/licence fees are favourable
to the Group as compared with the prevailing market rental/licence
fee values of the subject warehouses. Accordingly, the directors
considered the Warehouse Leasing and Licence Agreements 2016
were on normal commercial terms and were fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole.

The licence agreements for Warehouse Spaces A, B and C were
terminated as at 8 January 2018 after the 3 months’ written notices
given by the licensor.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, as warehouse E and F were
rented by Optical 88 Limited disposed as of 1 June 2018, only 2
months’ rent (i.e. April and May 2018) was counted as continuing
connected transactions.

FEEBRXS (8

HERE

(i)

201644 H 5 H » Thong Sia Company Limited
([TSCLD) BALCL (4 BHEFAIER2EE /T A)
Be Ay m) 5 1 A e 2 W) (4% B A A A A
F /MR RIN) §TSL 2016 458 FFL T SR vl fifi
Wik - WAABLL T B R

(@  PRAFEFURE NI — I TR R E 2 =W
H(TEHBA BEBRKAEC)H 5 &

(b) A JURE JURE I — i T 26 K E 2 = {#
BE(TFED -~ FHEEXHEF]) -

aig AN A 2016454 H 1 HEEFHZE20194F
3H31H (G4EZH) A =4 -

Jor A RE e B el 2 e AL R R H i H DB
AL o

B 1R AT R Ty S RN EEE > Sl s R M
Z BTG mBUR A el 2
REEA B AT TSR R AT AR L AR AR
BIAR o HUL > SEFERS > 201 0T B
T Wik T e — AR P SRR o RS
FEEARN 7 MR 2 BRI AR -

P FFAT A i 3 A A A A - SREB
KA CHFFn] I 3R Cik 2018 4F 1 H 8 H 4%
1 o

B E20194E3 31 HILAEE » it IR 8588113
201846 H 1 H Ml > Kt > HIREE88 7[R
NEHEMNAHEE LAHEF  JAREA (12018
a4 A K5 R) &R FEARERIE S -

B () A RA A
2019 4F4FH
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExanREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

Licensing of carparking spaces

(iii)

On 5 April 2016, certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company (each individually as licensee) entered into the
Carparking Space Licenses with MPIL and ALCL (each individually
as licensor) with respect to the following carparking spaces:

(@  four carparking spaces at Stelux House with total monthly
license fee of HK$13,400 (inclusive of rates, government rent
and management charges); and

(b)  two vehicle parking spaces at an industrial building in
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong with total monthly
license fee of HK$8,600 (inclusive of management charges
but exclusive of rates and government rent).

All the above-mentioned carparking spaces were for a term of three
years from 1 April 2016 up to and including 31 March 2019. The
license fees are payable monthly in advance in cash by the licensees
on the first day of each and every calendar month.

The monthly license fees were determined on an arm’s length basis
taking into account the prevailing market rates for parking spaces
in the vicinity. Accordingly, the directors considered the terms of
the Carparking Space Licenses reflect normal commercial terms and
were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole.

The Group has been using the subject office premises and
warehouses primarily for office, administrative and storage
purposes over a long period of time. In order to avoid possible
disruption to its business due to relocation, the Group intends to
continue to lease/licence the subject office premises, carparking
spaces and warehouses following the expiration of the relevant
leases/licences. The directors consider it to be in the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole for the Group to
continue to use the subject premises as long as the relevant rental/
licence fee and other terms are favourable to the Group so as to
avoid relocation and refurbishment costs which otherwise the
Group will have to incur.

The continuing connected transactions as set out in (i) to (iii) above,
in relation to the leasing of properties and licensing of carparking
spaces from connected parties, have been aggregated for the
purpose of classification in accordance with Rule 14A.81 of the
Listing Rules, and the aggregate annual cap for the financial year
ended 31 March 2019 was approximately HK$20,927,000.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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FEEBRXS (8)

EEAFF A

(iii)

(iv)

R20164F4 A5 H » AN T2 G EA R (%
A 57 2 A T ) BRI #HE X ALCL (4% A 18 51
VERFFR] N) STor B FEnl ek » WEH
BALL T AEHLA

@)  ERWEHRONMEREM AL ATSE
513,400 70 (L35 2 ) ~ UM FH & 45 B
%) &

(b) AW IUHEJUREES — I 135K 0 2 1 1 Hh i
P S A AR B 8,600 IC (AL3E
L (HAN LA 2 i S BRI

kA N R A A A 20164F4 A1 H
HFFE20194E3 A 31 H (dE#% H) A =4 -
FFT R T OB A B DR 4T
it o

B RFAI A B T i P IR E o SR R
U B 2 BAT AT A - Bt HER
Ty o {5 L FF TG B e T 42— A v 2 KT
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

Provision of management and property agency liaison services

(v)

On 5 April 2016, Stelux Properties Agency Limited (“SPAL”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as agent, renewed
the management and property agency liaison services agreement
(“Service Agreement 2016”) with MPIL, as principal, for a term of
three years from 1 April 2016 up to and including 31 March 2019
for the provision of the following services (“Services”):

(@) contract administration with respect to contracts entered into
between MPIL and third parties from time to time;

(b)  property agency liaison and tenancy management;
(c)  management of the property manager of Stelux House; and
(d) other miscellaneous administrative services.

SPAL has been providing the Services with respect to Stelux
House since 1998 and has accumulated relevant knowledge and
experience. MPIL is satisfied so far with the Services provided by the
Group, whilst the remuneration received by the Group is enough
to cover the relevant costs incurred by the Group in providing the
Services. As such, SPAL continued to provide the Services to MPIL
following the expiration of the preceding service agreement on 31
March 2016.

Monthly remuneration was set at HK$195,000 per calendar month
(in the first year ended 31 March 2017) payable in advance in
cash on the first day of each and every calendar month. Parties
to the Service Agreement 2016 shall negotiate and agree in good
faith to increase the remuneration on an annual basis for the
second year and the third year by not more than 10% over that in
the preceding year with reference to the actual increase in costs
(including but not limited to the related staff salaries) incurred by
the Group with respect to the provision of the Services. In the event
that no agreement is reached between the parties in negotiating
the remuneration for the next year, the remuneration shall remain
unchanged.

The monthly remuneration received by the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2019 was the same as that under the preceding
service agreement for the three years ended 31 March 2016.
The remuneration was arrived at after arm’s length negotiations
between the parties and with reference to the estimate of the costs
to be incurred by the Company with respect to the provision of the
Services in the financial year ended 31 March 2016. Accordingly,
the directors considered the terms of the Service Agreement 2016
were on normal commercial terms and were fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(v) (continued)

With reference to the monthly remuneration under the Service
Agreement 2016, the Annual Cap Amount for this continuing
connected transaction was set at HK$2,831,400 for the financial
year ended 31 March 2019.

Relationships between counterparties

(vi)  ALCL is a wholly owned subsidiary of Yee Hing Company Limited
(“Yee Hing”). The Trust, of which Mr. Joseph C.C.Wong, is a
beneficiary, holds 55% of the total issued shares of Yee Hing. As
Mr. Joseph C.C. Wong is a director of the Company, each of TSCL
and ALCL is an associate of Mr. Joseph C.C. Wong and hence is a
connected person of the Company. Therefore, transactions (i), (ii),
(i) and (v) above constitute continuing connected transactions for
the Company.

(vii)  MPIL is a 30% controlled company held indirectly by
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong, who is a director of the Company.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) BEBRBRRS (&)
2. Master Property Agreement 2. YEENmE
Notes: W& -

R I S0 A T A > 5 B SR 7 T A s AR A
HIHA201841 H 26 H 2285 it fle & HA MR 2 -

All definitions in the notes below have the same meaning as referred to in
the Company’s announcement dated 26 January 2018, unless otherwise

indicated.
Income/
Connected persons Nature of transactions (expenses) Annual Caps  Notes
BmAL REMHE WA () FEER By aE
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT AT IC
All of Chumphol Kanjanapas (also known Leasing, sub-leasing or 5,633 8,500 (i)
as Joseph C. C. Wong) and the Joseph licensing offices, shops and
Family Members warehouses by the Retained
BRI oA BRI KR R Group to the Disposed
Entities
R B A8 I o) A o 5 R AL
& o A EGEE AT A
=~ JEh LR
All of Chumphol Kanjanapas (also known Leasing, sub-leasing or (6,246) (14,500) (i)

as Joseph C. C. Wong) and the Joseph
Family Members

AN ok T R R

licensing offices and shops
to the Retained Group by
the Disposed Entities
e B EAE 1 O B 4R AR
B~ ST

= Rk

Disposed Entities includes Optical 88 Group (BVI) Limited, eGG
Optical Boutique Group Limited, Thong Sia Optical Group Limited
and Optical 88 (Thailand) Ltd disposed on 1 June 2018.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, as a result of the disposal
of the Optical Business on 1 June 2018, the Master Property
Agreement was entered into between Stelux Holdings Limited (“the
Retained Group”) and the Disposed Entities, including Optical
88 Group (BVI) Limited, eGG Optical Boutique Group Limited,
Thong Sia Optical Group Limited and Optical 88 (Thailand) Ltd.,
commencing from 1 June 2018 and expiring on 31 March 2021.
Under the Master Property Agreement, the Retained Group and
the Disposed Group will lease, sub-lease or license certain offices,
shops and warehouse to each other. and is renewable upon mutual
agreement between the parties provided that the requirements of the
Listing Rules related to connected transactions shall be complied
with in connection with such renewal.

201846 H 1 H » # th & & 8 {2 46 Optical
88 Group (BVI) Limited * eGG Optical Boutique
Group Limited > Thong Sia Optical Group
Limited &% Optical 88 (Thailand) Ltd

AR ZE 201943 H 31 H L4 R IR E12EH
B 20184F 6 11 H I - BOLEE (L) AR
] (AR B AR ) B & B8 - A4 Optical
88 Group (BVI) Limited * eGG Optical Boutique
Group Limited » Thong Sia Optical Group
Limited 2 Optical 88 (Thailand) Ltd %] 3744 2£ 48 ffh
ik o M e 201848 6 1 H BAA H 22021 4F
331 BRI - MRy A e o R B AR R
R BRI - AL AT R A
I il B T MG T A Ay e [ i AR A MR
ARy SRR W 22 A B B TR RLE -

B () A RA A
2019 4F4FH
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

2. Master Property Agreement (continued) 2.

(i) The office, shops and warehouse leased, sub-leased or 0]
licensed by the Retained Group to the Disposed Entities are

FEBEBRXS (8)

ESENEACE Y

R0 S o AR - 0 R ) T 3
ONE PR

as follows:
Number  Region Nature Location Remarks
ECh HE HE ::bld B
2 HK Shop 65-68, Upper Ground Floor, Olympian City Il
ik )5 fili 18 Hoi Ting Road, West Kowloon
PY LR A 18 HEBLIGE IR I 5 65-68 %
3 HK Shop Shop 66, G/F., KITEC, 1 Trademart Drive,
ik i i Kowloon Bay, Kowloon
JUREJLRE B8R B A — SR JURE S B P B2 ot
66 54
4 HK Warehouse 6/F, Continental Electric Building, No. 177 Wang  As the Retained Group did not sub-lease
ok BE Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon the warehouse to the Disposed Entities,
JUREJURE S 22 BB 17 SRR R 3R 6 6 1k there was no continuing connected
transaction.
P PR B S P Sz 1) A R B O AR
JEE [R5
5 Macau Shop Em Macau, Rua da Palha N20 Beco da Palha
R JE i N 1A, San Vo Res-do-chao F and G
7 SEA Shop JEM - shop
JI
8 SEA Office 138 Joo Seng Road, #06-01 Singapore 368361 As the Singapore office was relocated
WA to the location under item 9 below in
June 2018, this continuing connected
transaction was terminal as a matter of
course.
HI BTN 2R 2018 4F 6 H i
FARKRIAH 9 Hbhl - UL - AR B
o eI
9 SEA Office 63 Ubi Avenue 1 #06-04 Singapore 408937
A%
10 SEA Warehouse No.32, Jalan BP 6/6, Bandar Bukit Puchong 2,
=1 47120 Puchong, Selangor Darul Ehsan
11 SEA Office G8, Jalan Puteri 7/13A Bandar Puteri, 47100
G /N Puchong, Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia
12 SEA Shop Mall Ngamwongwan — shop
Ji &
13 SEA Shop Future Rangsit — shop
Ji &

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
e

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) HEREERS (E)
2. Master Property Agreement (continued) ESNEAG )
Number  Region Nature Location Remarks
fmn & "E #b ik L Ed
17 SEA Shop Central Rama Il
J i
18 SEA Office CP27, Suite 2601-04, 26th Floor, Central Plaza,
DN 34, Jalan Sultan Ismail, 50250 Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia
19 SEA Office 31 Ubi Road 1 #02-06 Singapore 408694
20 SEA Shop Ayuthaya Park
J i
21 SEA Shop MBK Il
J i
The total monthly rental for the above properties approximated bl S ) B ) R4 MR 4 7 R 600,000 7T (A8
HK$ 600,000 (exclusive of rates, government rent and management AR 2~ BUM A SRR o AR 18/19 fiF
charges). All rents incurred during FY18/19 were paid during the AR JE 7 A AR 4B A A N SAT o bl A B e
year. The continuing connected transactions as set out have been 285y CARYE LTRSS 14. 81 ARE DFRHE - Ti#k
aggregated for the purpose of classification in accordance with F20194E3 H 31 H (AR BE A4 BE | BRAEFEAY
Rule 14.81A of the Listing Rules, and the aggregate annual cap J Uk 8,500,000 G °
for the financial year ended 31 March 2019 was approximately
HKS$8,500,000.
(i) Alternatively, the office and shops leased, sub-leased or (i) SEA s BHEERE AR EEMAE -
licensed to the Retained Group by the Disposed Entities are ST AT A S JOE R
as follows:
Number  Region Nature Location
fman & 3 ik
1 HK Shop Shop 27A, 27B & 27F, Level 3, Shatin Plaza, Shatin
il i YRR HES; 3ME27A ~ 278 K 27F B4
6 SEA Shop Rental for SH140 — Johor City Square (1347 Sqt ft)
J5 i
14 SEA Shop Future Rangsit Il — shop
JE Gl
15 SEA Shop BluPort HuaHin — shop
J5 i
16 SEA Office 347, 349 Muang Thong Thani, Bondstreet Road, Bangpood Subdistrict, Pakkred District,
AT Nonthaburi 11120, Thailand

B () A RA A 24
2019 4F4FH
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExanREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
2. Master Property Agreement (continued)

The total monthly rent for the above properties approximated
HK$600,000 (exclusive of rates, government rent and management
charges). All rents incurred during FY18/19 were paid during the
year. The continuing connected transactions as set out have been
aggregated for the purpose of classification in accordance with
Rule 14.8TA of the Listing Rules, and the aggregate annual cap
for the financial year ended 31 March 2019 was approximately
HK$14,500,000.

The monthly rents of the above properties in (i) and (ii) were
determined on an arms-length basis taking into account publicly
available information of similar properties leased, sub-leased or
licensed by independent third parties. Accordingly, the directors
considered the leases sub-leases or licences under the Master
Property Agreement from June 2018 to March 2019 were on normal
commercial terms and were fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the Company and Shareholders as a whole.

The above continuing connected transactions also constitute related
party transactions and are disclosed in note 32 to the financial
statements on page 182. For operating lease rental in respect of
the office premises, the amounts shown in note 32(a)(ii) to the
financial statements on page 185 were calculated at effective rents
in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

To the extent permitted by Bermuda law, and as permitted by
the Bye-laws of the Company, a director of the Company may
be indemnified out of the Company’s assets against any liability
incurred by the director save where incured or sustained through
his/her own wilful neglect or default, fraud and dishonesty. Such
permitted indemnity provision has been in force throughout the
financial year and is currently in force at the time of approval of
this report.

The Company has also taken out and maintained directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance throughout the year, which provides
appropriate cover for certain legal actions brought against its
directors and officers.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

FEBEBRXS (8
2. WEANHE (R

a2 0 R LA SRR A B T 600,000 7T (A
LG 20~ BURF AL S A L) « BFA ik 18/19 B
AR B A AR 4 TR AR NS AT o b 4R 4 B W
28 Ly EARTE LT RLEE 14. 81 ARADFSHE > Mk
201943 H31 H IR BABUF B 4 T BRAGEHA
Ly 14,500,000 G ©

k() B i) SE B 2E 0 A A R TR TSR
37 B R 5 = L AR e Al e A
YR AN PERMERE - UL > B304 - R
Y2 20184E6 H £ 201943 AMME -
3 FHL SR R 24% — M SR G o /AT
R AT G AN ) LB R 25 o

Ak AR B 2 B AN RE LA BN 58 5 it
55182 EUMHS R ITEE 32 M PiEE - il A=W
WA E ST S > 45185 BB FEMN 5 32()(ii)
T 22 4 R ) AR s il 2 6 A A 1) 75 s
B e S B PR AN A 15T -

R RERX

A A 2 AR SR A R EE S R A R R
SURFIOFERE A > HEFFIEA A R L rha (8 P
AR > AR A SME 2R EER - K
A BN T B AR o I S v ) IR AR A SC
P B B B8 TA) B 8 VA SR A IR AT 25 A 2K

AN R TR TR B A o e A B AT
PRI > T HLEE o R SR B T T A AT By
SRR PR o



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
e

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS (continued)

As permitted by the articles of association of the Company’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong (“Hong Kong Subsidiaries”), a director
or a former director of the Hong Kong Subsidiaries may be
indemnified out of the Hong Kong Subsidiaries’ assets against
any liability incurred by the director to a person other than the
Hong Kong Subsidiaries or an associated company of the Hong
Kong Subsidiaries, to the extent permitted by law. Such permitted
indemnity provision is currently in force at the time of approval of
this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

During the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers resigned as auditors of
the Company and Ernst & Young were appointed by the directors
to fill the casual vacancy so arising. PricewaterhouseCoopers
confirmed that there were no matters in respect of those
circumstances that in their opinion needed to be reported to the
shareholders of the Company. The Board also confirmed that
there was no disagreement between PricewaterhouseCoopers
and the Company, and there were no other matters in relation
to the resignation of PricewaterhouseCoopers that needed to be
brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company. There
have been no other changes of auditors in the past three years. A
resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as auditors of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

Last but not least, | express my most sincere thanks and gratitude
to colleagues and staff members for their commitment, hard work

and loyalty to the Group during the year.

On behalf of the Board

Joseph C. C. Wong
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 20 June 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

o Group Turnover fell by 3.4% to HK$1,457.8 million
J Group Net Loss at HK$34.6 million

o Group Gearing Ratio at 40.3% (March 2018: 67.4%)

o Group Inventory fell by 16.6% to HK$559.8 million vs that
as at 31 March 2018

For the year under review, Group turnover decreased by 3.4%
to HK$1,457.8 million (FY2017/18: HK$1,509.1 million). The
Group reported a loss attributable to its equity holders of HK$34.6
million (FY2017/18: loss of HK$150.6 million). A gain on Disposal
of the Optical Business of HK$111.8 million was recognized
during the year ended 31 March 2019 (On 1 June 2018, the Group
completed the disposal of its entire optical retail and wholesale
businesses (the “Optical Business”) to its controlling shareholder
(the “Disposal”)).

After excluding the following items:

J the gain on Disposal of the Optical Business of HK$111.8
million (FY2017/18: nil);

J an exchange loss of HK$16.1 million (FY2017/18: exchange
gain of HK$12.0 million);

o non-cash deferred tax expenses of HK$12.8 million
(FY2017/18: HK$18.6 million); and

J an impairment of intangible assets of HK$30.3 million
in FY2017/18 and a gain on re-measurement of deferred
consideration payable of HK$10 million related to the
Group’s Swiss movement assembly facilities in FY2017/18,

the Group would have reported a loss of HK$117.5 million
(FY2017/18: HK$123.7 million).

The Optical Business was classified as discontinued operations
in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard
5. A loss of HK$1.7 million (FY2017/18: HK$4.5 million) was
recorded by the discontinued operations during the year under
review.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

Group gross profit margin was maintained at 50.7% comparable
to 50.9% in the previous financial year. With cautious consumer
sentiment since mid-2018, the Group strengthened measures
to further reduce costs, enhance inventory management and
liquidity. Due to these measures:—

J selling expenses (excluding expenses related to investment
in brand building) fell 6.6% mainly due to reduced rental
expenses and other store overheads;

o Group general and administrative expenses fell further by
6.3% (net of shared service income) in FY2018/19 following
a decrease of 5.7% in FY 2017/18;

o Group inventory decreased by HK$111.1 million (16.6%)
to HK$559.8 million (March 2018: HK$670.9 million) and
inventory turnover days were shortened to 284 days (March
2018: 331 days) with tightened stock procurement. The
faster stock turnover also contributed to a write back income
of stock provision of HK$2.6 million against a provision
charge of HK$18.9 million in FY2017/18;

J Group liquidity was enhanced by reductions in inventory
and capital expenditures. In FY2018/19, capital
expenditures were reduced by HK$28.3 million to HK$30.1
million (FY2017/18: HK$58.4 million). Group net cash
generated from operating activities increased to HK$69.6
million (FY2017/18: HK$45.1 million).

As proceeds from the Disposal were utilised to settle part of
the Group’s bank borrowings, the Group reported an improved
gearing ratio of 40.3% compared to 45.6% as at end of September
2018 (March 2018: 67.4%) as net debts decreased by 42.3% (or
HK$291.3 million) to HK$396.8 million.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil per ordinary share).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

CITY CHAIN GROUP

The City Chain Group operates around 220 stores in Hong
Kong, Macau, Mainland China (the “Greater China”), Singapore,
Thailand and Malaysia together with on-line stores for “City
Chain” and “Solvil et Titus”.

In TH FY2018/19, same store sales growth was recorded. The
initiatives adopted to refresh the “CITY CHAIN” image and
house brand portfolio together with store consolidation and cost
reductions, contributed to the City Chain Group returning an
improved financial performance in TH FY2018/19.

However, as the trade dispute between China and the United
States intensified, and with a weakened Renminbi since July
2018, tourist and domestic spending in regions where we operate
slowed down and the positive sentiment seen in Q1 FY2018/19
did not carry through for the remaining year. Turnover over the
festive peak seasons such as Christmas and Chinese New Year
for several regions was not up to expectation despite continued
deployment of marketing campaigns.

For FY2018/19, the City Chain Group posted a y-o-y fall in
turnover of 5.0% to HK$1,166.5 million (FY2017/18: HK$1,227.8
million) while the number of operating shops contracted by
13%. A loss before interest and tax (LBIT) of HK$98.0 million
(FY2017/18: HK$48.7 million) was recorded. Excluding inventory
provision, impairment of non-performing stores, provision for
onerous contracts, exchange difference and expenditure on
brand investment, operating costs decreased by 8.3%, with rental
expenses, alone, reduced by 15.4%.

Greater China

Turnover for City Chain operations in Greater China fell by
6.5% to HK$826.3 million (FY2017/18: HK$884.1 million) with
a reduction in number of shops by 19% and a wider LBIT of
HK$98.9 million (FY2017/18: LBIT HK$53.0 million).

Despite the challenging operating environments in the 2H
FY18/19, y-o-y same store sales in Hong Kong and Macau
remained stable. Operating costs (excluding inventory provision,
impairment of non-performing stores, provision for onerous
contracts, exchange difference and expenditure on brand
investment) fell by 9.8%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

LBIT in Mainland China narrowed by 26.8% due to consolidation
of non-performing shops and a simultaneous improvement in
the productivity of operating shops. During the year, a moderate
increase of 7.2% (in local currency) in sales per shop from
FY2017/18 was attained despite a weak Renminbi, volatility in
the stock market and a marked slowdown in retail consumption
in Mainland China. In order to improve bottom-line results,
closure of non-performing shops in Northern and Southwestern
China were completed by May 2019 and shop consolidation is in
progress in Eastern China.

The turnover of our watch e-commerce business remained stable
and operating loss was reduced by 19.1% in local currency terms
compared to FY2017/18 as cost structures were streamlined to
uplift financial performance.

Southeast Asia

Despite a generally weaker market environment, our City Chain
operations in Southeast Asia reported an increase in sales per shop
of 8.9% from FY 2017/18 and turnover remained relatively stable
at HK$340.2 million (FY2017/18: HK$343.7 million) despite
a 5.4% reduction in number of shops. However, impacted by
currency depreciation against the stronger Hong Kong dollar,
an EBIT of HK$0.8 million (FY2017/18: EBIT of HK$4.2 million)
was reported. Excluding exchange loss, our operations in
Southeast Asia reported an EBIT of HK$3.4 million (FY2017/18:
EBIT of HK$4.6 million). Operating costs (excluding inventory
provision, impairment of non-performing stores, provision for
onerous contracts, exchange difference and expenditure on brand
investment) fell y-o-y by 3.5%.

Our Malaysia operations posted satisfactory results with EBIT
growing 2.3% while the LBIT at our Thai operations narrowed
by 30.9% (in local currency terms) due to sales growth of 8.0%,
following the refreshing of several key stores and effective
merchandising initiatives. However, our Singapore operations
posted a LBIT due to a difficult retail operating environment,
particularly, in 2H FY2018/19.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT AND WHOLESALE TRADING

This business division is made up of Stelux Group’s supply
chain unit for house brands, such as Solvil et Titus and CYMA,
its wholesale trading unit for the sole distribution of “SEIKO”
watches and clocks and “GRAND SEIKO” watches in Hong Kong,
Singapore and Malaysia; and our Swiss business units.

Turnover for this division grew moderately by 3.5% to HK$291.2
million (FY2017/18: HK$281.3 million) and together with
improved operational efficiencies contributed to a profit of
HK$40.1T million (FY2017/18: loss of HK$4.6 million, including
one-off items being impairment for intangible assets of our
Swiss movement facility of HK$30.3 million and gain on re-
measurement of deferred consideration payable of HK$10
million). The various marketing campaigns for “SEIKO” and
“GRAND SEIKO” continued during the year and were well
received; and together with committed service support provided
to retailers stimulated consumer demand and sell-through.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - OPTICAL RETAIL AND
WHOLESALE

The turnover for the discontinued operations recorded during
the two month period before the completion of the Disposal was
HK$219.0 million and a loss of HK$1.7 million was sustained.

GROUP OUTLOOK

With the uncertainties surrounding the completion of a trade
deal between China and the United States impacting most of the
regions where we operate, retail sentiment is likely to remain
subdued for the remaining FY2019/20. Therefore, operational
and fiscal initiatives currently in place to reduce costs, improve
operational efficiencies and to strengthen liquidity will continue in
FY2019/20. Refreshment of stores will continue in FY2019/20 and
capital expenditures will be prudently managed.

However, as part of the Group’s long term strategy to improve its
competitiveness to adapt to changes in the consumer landscape,
the Group has prioritized investment in infrastructure and brand
development to enhance customer interaction through omni-
channels so as to improve synergies between the online and
offline businesses of the City Chain Group. In Q2 FY2019/20,
enhanced e-commerce platforms for “City Chain” and “Solvil et
Titus” and the deployment of CRM solutions are scheduled to be
rolled out.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

. We are a brand owner, wholesaler and retailer, covering all
aspects of the value chain to maximise returns

e We have an extensive retail network and growing online
platforms

o We offer multi-brands, both house brands and foreign
brands targeting the mid income customer

J We will invest in infrastructure and brand development to
enhance synergies between online and offline businesses

FINANCE

The Group’s capital management, currency and interest rate
movement are constantly monitored and reviewed by the
management of the Group to address and manage relevant
financial risks relating to the Group’s operations. The Group
maintains prudent treasury management policies to address
liquidity to finance both short-term and long-term working capital
needs for business operations. Funds are generated from business
operating activities and banking facilities in the form of term
loans and short-term trading facilities. Forecast and actual cash
flow analyses are continuously monitored. Maturity of assets and
liabilities and requirement of financial resources for business
operations are prudently managed.

The gearing ratio was 40.3% (31 March 2018: 67.4%) with
shareholders’ funds standing at HK$985.0 million (31 March
2018: HK$1,020.6 million) and net debts of HK$396.8 million (31
March 2018: HK$688.1 million). The net debts are based on the
bank borrowings of HK$688.3 million (31 March 2018: HK$934.4
million) less bank balance and cash of HK$291.5 million (of the
Group as at 31 March 2018: HK$246.3 million) of which HK$56.6
million were pledged (nil at 31 March 2018). The bank borrowings
comprised of HK$113.4 million repayable within one year and
HK$574.9 million with scheduled repayment after one year but
repayable on demand and were classified as current liabilities.
The cash position of the discontinuing operations as at 31 March
2018 was HK$143.1 million. At completion, cash held by the
discontinued operations in excess of around HK$60.0 million
(adjusted by foreign exchange rate at completion) was transferred
to the continuing operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Following the Completion of the Disposal of the discontinuing
operations, the Group received gross proceeds of HK$400 million,
of which a special distribution of HK$198.8 million was paid
to its shareholders and the remaining balance has been utilized
together with improved operating cash inflow to settle part of
bank borrowings to reduce the net debts by 42.3% to HK$396.8
million.

The Group’s major borrowings are in Hong Kong dollars and
mostly based on a floating rate at HIBOR or bank prime lending
rates. As major revenues of the Group are in Hong Kong dollars
and Macanese Pataca, the natural hedge mechanism was applied.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s total equity funds amounted to
HK$992.1 million. The Group’s net cash inflow from its operating
activities increased by 54.3% to HK$69.6 million and coupled
with its existing cash and unutilized banking facilities will fund its
future needs. The unutilized banking facilities at 31 March 2019
were HK$221.3 million.

As at 31 March 2019, the current assets and current liabilities were
approximately HK$1,033.8 million (31 March 2018: HK$1,883.7
million) and HK$958.6 million (31 March 2018: HK$1,600.6
million), respectively. The current ratio was approximately 1.08
(1.18 as at 31 March 2018).

The Group does not use any financial instruments for hedging
purposes.

The Group does not engage in speculative derivative trading.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group does not have any significant
contingent liabilities except disclosed in Note 33 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Group does not have plans for material investments or change
of capital assets.

At at 31 March 2019, certain property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and bank deposit amounting to HK$712.3
million (31 March 2018: HK$452.7 million) were pledged
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. Capital
expenditures were under control and reduced to HK$30.1 million
(FY2017/18: HK$58.4 million).

During the year ended 31 March 2019, certain self-owned stores
were leased out and therefore reclassified from property, plant and
equipment to investment properties. The gain on revaluation upon
transfer to investment properties net of tax amounted to HK$202.0
million was recorded in reserves as at 31 March 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The deferred tax asset balance decreased by HK$12.9 million and
this expense was charged to the income statement during the year
ended 31 March 2019. The decrease was mainly from a decrease
in tax losses recognised as deferred tax asset.

Since 31 March 2019, there have been no important events
affecting the Group which have occurred, and, hence there are no
details to disclose.

NUMBER AND REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES,
REMUNERATION POLICIES, BONUS AND TRAINING
SCHEMES

The Group’s remuneration policies are reviewed on a regular
basis and remuneration packages are in line with market practices
in the relevant countries where the Group operates. As at 31
March 2019, the Group had 1,550 employees. Excluding the
discontinued operations, the Group had 1,656 employees as at
31 March 2018. The Group offers KPI related bonuses to eligible
employees based on the performance of the Group and the
individual employee. The Group also provides related training
programmes to improve the quality, competence and skills of its
employees.

Joseph C. C. Wong
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 20 June 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B B R

e
EY::

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF STELUX HOLDINGS
INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Stelux Holdings International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 43 to 197, which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2019,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B3 B R

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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B2 EERE

Key audit matter
Net realisable value of inventories

As at 31 March 2019, the
Group recorded inventories of
approximately HK$766 million
before provision for inventories of
approximately HK$206 million.
The write-down of inventories to
net realisable value was estimated
by management through the
application of judgement and
the use of highly subjective
assumptions. During the year
ended 31 March 2019, a reversal
of provision for inventories of
approximately HK$2.6 million
was made and credited to the
consolidated income statement
based on management's
assessment.

The related disclosures for
the valuation of inventories
are included in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to management’s
estimation and judgement applied in determining
the net realisable value of inventories included:

- Understanding the key controls on how
the management estimated the provision
for inventories;

- Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of
the inventory ageing reports;

- Evaluating the key assumptions and
estimates applied by management to
determine the provisioning percentages
applicable to individual ageing categories
of inventory by testing the accuracy of
historical information involved, based
on comparison with current year and
historical sales trends;

- Performing sensitivity analysis on changes
of the key assumptions;

- Performing analysis on inventory balance
and movement data by comparing, on
a sample basis, the carrying amounts of
inventory items against their selling prices
during the year and subsequent to the year
end to identify slow-moving inventories
and inventories with net realisable value
lower than their costs; and

- Evaluating the future sales with reference
to historical sales performance through
meetings with the relevant management
personnel.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B3 B R

T RRA AT

20193310 & HRERBER R BES "MK
SEmERHEAEN 4 BT

Impairment assessment on trademarks

As at 31 March 2019, trademarks ~ Our procedures in relation to management's

recognised by the Group

impairment assessment on trademarks included:

amounted to approximately fA#TT

HK$54 million. - Inquiring management on the business ] ] B 21 5 AP B 9 S
plans associated with these trademarks; fillibEeiie

Trademarks with an indefinite PR IR (6T 4 0 7

useful life are carried at costs and
are not amortised.

Management tests annually
whether the trademarks suffered
any impairment by considering the

- Evaluating the variance between actual
results and cashflow projections prepared
in prior year;

- Involving our internal valuation specialists
in our discussion with management to

B A SR > B

PR B B AR A
HY B A 4 o 4F W
A R 7 S BT

APA L A 0 B A
BB G REHNZMpER ;

R R R 2
BB o DL T R

economic benefit to be generated understand the rationale, and assess B o AT g AR AR AT > S A B R A 7
from trademarks. The recoverable the methodology used and the key FR BB 2wt i - TR R ) E BB
amount is determined based on assumptions applied in the valuation; WA R AR e

a value-in-use calculation. This Z BB AR L 2 B

calculation used pre-tax cashflows
projections based on financial
budgets prepared by management.

- Evaluating the key assumptions applied,
including growth rate and discount rate
used in the cashflow projections based on
historical performance and future business

Bemam -

A BT RE A T B LA
RERIE B AR AT
i3 i B R R A 0 R
REMBE

Management determined the plan; EHRRBERAERAR
financial budget based on past A G R 2B
performance and its expectations - Performing sensitivity analysis on changes W R > HERRREBETRRES

for the future market development,
which involved significant
judgment and estimates.

The related disclosures of the

of the key assumptions; and

- Evaluating the adequacy of the financial
statement disclosures.

BB St <

T A 0 O

s &

AR B R SR RN -

trademarks are included in notes AN 46 -

4 and 16 to the consolidated

financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT BREFERENHEMER

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other Boar#EEHBHAMEEAE - HAERamR

information. The other information comprises the information
included in Management Discussion and Analysis (but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this

auditor’s report, and Report of the Directors and Environmental,

Social and Governance Report, which are expected to be made

available to us after that date.

APAEAS AZ B I 0 T IR A9 A B el B 2>
e AT 2 (TR G4 £ T 5 ik 2 B AP Y A%
WA ) > DL TN & AR AR A B H AR
BUSRIBRSE ~ A AR E IR L -

B () A RA A
2019 4F4F-H
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not and will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

When we read Report of the Directors and Environmental, Social
and Governance Report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter
to the Audit committee and take appropriate action considering
our legal rights and obligations.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

J Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

RBEAHE RS UBHERARNER
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

J Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

J Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, BRI Z B g wm S IE h  JRAMHE E Tse
we determine those matters that were of most significance in TEM AR MG G MM ENF el i A EE > N
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current J RS A R T o FRAMAE AR R o o i
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these I > BRIFEHEBOEH A AT A M E
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes JH o BAE Mo A AR OL T > ARG BT A R
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely AP S A v v 2 T T 2 Y TR R B R Y
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be INRRFIRS > A E AN RELE S i R S IE o
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent B AR AL TR S I EE AR AR AR

auditor’s report is Ms. Chau Suet Fung Dilys. B+t e

Ernst & Young RKGFHE ST
Certified Public Accountants YE g st

Hong Kong 20 June 2019 il F - JUFEANA A

B () A RA A 42
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

melwamk

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #% 201943 7 31 H IL4EJE
-

43

2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
g BT AT
Continuing operations FEEEXEYR
Revenue A 5 1,457,779 1,509,122
Cost of sales B A (718,595) (740,468)
Gross profit B 739,184 768,654
Other (losses)/gains, net Fofts Oks8) st > 48 6 (19,982) 21,247
Other income HAb A 7 41,624 15,119
Selling expenses P (594,852) (608,236)
General and administrative expenses — B B AT (237,428) (229,116)
Other operating expenses HoAt 3 S (19,101) (67,753)
Finance costs s AR 10 (24,920) (23,309)
Loss before income tax B BT 5B il s 18 (115,475) (123,394)
Income tax expense PR 11 (28,967) (22,454)
Loss for the year from A RHRUEEEB  R 1R
continuing operations (144,442) (145,848)
Discontinued operations RILEEZET
Loss for the year from AL BEEBS I R 1R
discontinued operations 28 (1,706) (4,464)
Gain on disposal of H B 1 SRR Y W i
discontinued operations 28 111,766 -
Profit/(loss) for the year arising from AR AL
discontinued operations s F (1) 110,060 (4,464)
Loss for the year ARG IE (34,382) (150,312)
Attributable to: PUN AL -
Equity holders of the Company EN/NEILTESE S DN (34,551) (150,577)
Non-controlling interests 4 P it 169 265
(34,382) (150,312)
Loss attributable to the equity holders EN/NGIE ETESZEDN
of the Company arising from: AL st AE R A
— Continuing operations — RS TS (144,611) (146,113)
— Discontinued operations — LB E RS 110,060 (4,464)
(34,551) (150,577)

The notes on pages 50 to 197 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

55 50 2 197 EU R GE 2 55 45 & PABS HR 3 9 AS A] BB R 43 -
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

meWwamk

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #% 201943 31 H IL4EJE
-

2019 2018
Notes HK cents HK cents
Witk AL Al
Loss per share from continuing A AR A N AL
operations attributable to the R LB Rk 11
equity holders of the Company
— Basic and diluted — HEA R 12 (13.82) (13.96)
Loss per share attributable to A AR A N EAG Y
the equity holders of the Company Bk 1R
— Basic and diluted — A S i 12 (3.30) (14.39)

The notes on pages 50 to 197 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

5550 % 197 HRYBFGE /3 LA 436 A B HicR A9 AT sBkaEp s
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meETHEkER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #% 201943 7 31 H IL4EJE
-

2019 2018
Notes HK$/000 HK$/000
B &L BT AT
Loss for the year AEEE IR (34,382) (150,312)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: HAbATm (E51R) s
Items that may be reclassified H % i) # E 1
subsequently to profit or loss: HIEH -
Exchange differences of translation AN SETS 1Y ME 58,75 AR
of foreign operations 7,171 32,889
Change in fair value of AT LD 1 AR
available-for-sale financial assets OB AR H) 17 - 1,141
Exchange differences of translation of H LB SET I I 50,22
discontinued operations 28 - 17,262
Release of exchange reserve Kb RS B AR
upon disposal of EE 5, i s 14
discontinued operations 28 (14,978) -
(7,807) 51,292
Item that will not be reclassified to NEESHEE A -
profit or loss:
Gain on revaluation of property, BrBite < W) - Weds St
plant and equipment, net of tax 1 E Al i 202,040 201,644
Change in fair value of equity investments 4/ T-{F 75 48 HoAth 2> iUk 25
at fair value through other B IR FC) B A7 45 1 2
comprehensive income ) 17 2,596 -
204,636 201,644
Other comprehensive income SEERRBIR 2 HoAt 22 T
for the year, net of tax I 4 196,829 252,936
Total comprehensive income A8 2 T i i AR
for the year 162,447 102,624
Attributable to: DU HEAS -
Equity holders of the Company AR AR A N 163,211 101,511
Non-controlling interests I HE P i (764) 1,113
Total comprehensive income A B2 2 THI W 4 AR
for the year 162,447 102,624
Total comprehensive income FEREA) AR A 1A A
for the year attributable to the equity EXLE
holders of the Company arising from: HEEREL B
Continuing operations FRAEUE 25 68,129 88,779
Discontinued operations Bl R 95,082 12,732
163,211 101,511

The notes on pages 50 to 197 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mEEEAEX
As at 31 March 2019 4201943 A 31 H

2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i BT AT T
ASSETS aE
Non-current assets F o)
Property, plant and equipment L/ S YL 13 165,411 322,772
Investment properties Ed<L/ES 14 586,100 230,000
Prepaid lease premium FAASH A 15 11,135 14,266
Intangible assets Y 16 65,633 69,436
Deferred tax assets PEIERE T 27 49,553 62,471
Available-for-sale financial assets A R Y RS 17 - 12,374
Equity investments at fair value through  #%/23F-(EZEH H Al
other comprehensive income AT AR 5 R A IR 4 17 14,970 -
Deposits and prepayments e R U OR 20 55,080 56,921
Total non-current assets Ui AR 947,882 768,240
Current assets T &
Inventories e 19 559,829 670,863
Trade and other receivables E 5 B H A IR K 20 182,488 351,702
Pledged bank deposit AP ERATAF 3K 21 56,649 -
Cash and cash equivalents e M EEEY 21 234,869 246,278
1,033,835 1,268,843
Assets classified as held for sale B R AT 1 28 - 614,856
Total current assets LB AR 1,033,835 1,883,699
Total assets B E AR 1,981,717 2,651,939
EQUITY e
Capital and reserves attributable to AN FIRERR 1A AL
the equity holders of the Company JBeA R At
Share capital ' &N 22 104,647 104,647
Reserves =2 23 880,324 915,943
Shareholders’ funds R 4 984,971 1,020,590
Non-controlling interests I FE P i 7,129 8,193
Total equity R HE KA 992,100 1,028,783

B () A RA A
2019 4F4F-H



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mEEEAEX
As at 31 March 2019 4201943 A 31 H
S

2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
R 5T BT AT T
LIABILITIES =i
Non-current liabilities FE U E) A R
Deferred tax liabilities RS IE B & 27 31,004 7,064
Interest-bearing bank and FEEERAT I H At B 3K
other borrowings 26 - 15,483
Total non-current liabilities e E) & EAE 31,004 22,547
Current liabilities s A E
Trade and other payables 55 R H A e AT HR K 25 237,472 369,653
Income tax payable JREAT T 58 32,840 15,609
Interest-bearing bank and FEEERAT B H At £ 3K
other borrowings 26 688,301 918,926
958,613 1,304,188
Liabilities directly associated with B R R E T
assets classified as held for sale B AR A 28 - 296,421
Total current liabilities B A A 958,613 1,600,609
Total liabilities BIELEEE 989,617 1,623,156
Total equity and liabilities JBCHE B B AR R 1,981,717 2,651,939

The consolidated financial statements on pages 43 to 197 were approved by the Board of Directors on 20 June 2019 and
were signed on its behalf.

BERETE20194F 6 H 20 HHLMEIGE % THAEE 43 2197 BWEE A MBS -

Joseph C.C. Wong Wallace Kwan Chi Kin
EAE BAER
Chairman and Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
FIERITIECAE % TTECEFH R
BT I B B A

The notes on pages 50 to 197 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FERREER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #% 201943 31 H IL4EJE
-

Attributable to the equity
holders of the Company
FATERHEAELY
Non-
Share controlling Total
capital  Reserves Total interests equity

A i@ wst FERER  ERAE
HKS'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BT BT W mWT BT

(Note 23)

(BfF5E23)
At 1 April 2017 2017464 A 1R 104,647 814,432 919,079 7,080 926,159
(Loss)/profit for the year I (E51R) /WA - (150,577)  (150,577) 265 (150,312)
Other comprehensive income HAb AT 4 - 252,088 252,088 848 252,936
Total comprehensive income 2 e A0 FH - 101,511 101,511 1,113 102,624
At 31 March 2018 #201843 A31H 104,647 915943 1,020,590 8,193 1,028,783
At 1 April 2018 201844 A1 H 104,647 915,943 1,020,590 8,193 1,028,783
(Loss)/profit for the year R (lR) /i A - (34,551)  (34,551) 169 (34,382)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) HAth 2 il 45,/ (48) - 197,762 197,762 (933) 196,829
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2 il #s,/ (k51E) 48%8 - 163,211 163,211 (764) 162,447
Dividend paid (note 24) T Bk 24) - (198,830) (198,830) (300)  (199,130)
At 31 March 2019 #201943 A31H 104,647 880,324 984,971 7,129 992,100

The notes on pages 50 to 197 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

mEREREBR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #% 201943 7 31 H IL4EJE

2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$’000
Bt BT R
Cash flows from operating activities BEEENB SRR
Cash generated from operations BEEE B 29 127,813 75,569
Interest paid EATFLE (24,920) (25,528)
Hong Kong profits tax paid SR (8,825) (5,574)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded LR [a] A B 40 8,603
Overseas profits tax paid AN (25,023) (8,004)
Overseas profits tax refunded TR ] S 492 31
Net cash generated from operating activities 48 iif ) iT {311 B8 T 40 69,577 45,097
Cash flows from investing activities REE BB &
Purchase of property, plant and equipment WA - B MRt (31,723) (96,377)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEYZE - I s T R
plant and equipment 2,737 725
Interest received BB 1,096 1,441
Dividends received B E 2,798 3,599
Disposal of prepaid lease premium B TR A B - 1,059
Addition of prepaid lease premium HIE TR B - (1,015)
Proceeds from disposal of business B S A3 A0 28 340,013 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEB IR, (R B8 F
investing activities 314,921 (90,568)
Cash flows from financing activities RS B B i
Drawdown of bank loans RREAT R 215,725 544,152
Repayment of bank loans TR BRAT LK (485,907) (634,864)
Capital element of finance lease payments R E EA S (58) (46)
Increase in pledged bank deposit FRATERAT A7 (56,649) -
Dividend paid EMRE (198,830) -
Net cash used in financing activities T O 0 O A B TR (525,719) (90,758)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents B RBLEEEY 2 B (141,221) (136,229)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning A 4 RIS EHY)
of the year 382,997 533,774
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HEE = 5 B ) S 280 (6,907) (14,548)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year — 4F& MBI 4 K I 4% (E ) 234,869 382,997
Analysis of balances of cash and cash Bl BB S (H A R 0T -
equivalents:
— Cash and cash equivalents — W4 R A A 21 234,869 246,278
- Bank overdrafts —RITEL - (6,365)
— Cash and cash equivalents included — G BT L &
in assets classified as held for sale R Y B A S ) - 143,084
234,869 382,997

The notes on pages 50 to 197 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

GENERAL INFORMATION

The principal activity of Stelux Holdings International
Limited (the “Company”) is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are shown in note 36 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
The financial statements are for the Company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”).

2.1 Basis of preparation
(a) Statutory compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.

—REHR

FOLEZE (B ARAF (AN D/ E
BB B POE R - H B A F R ¥
B G A BB R M 5 36 o

AT B A iR MRS 2 B RA T
HEEM sk & Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda °

AR A B BB 1A 7 o W S 2 5 BT A R
b e

R 53 51 o RS R T L
M -

TEEHHRME

P R 412 A i A 5 5 S5 R BT BR 1Y
FEEGFIEORTE . o R AREMES > &
SIIRZ 45 B O 7 2 4R T B ORE ) AR I
B R A AR W) B o W) (B T AR
EM) -

2.1 REEE
(a) HEFEERAY

Ao ml R a BB R I IR B
e A g ([ F e
B 1) AR B A v B 5 R A e T
(7 o B B i e ) ) 2 A o
(O MG 56 622 TRHLE AR -

B () A RA A
2019 4F4F-H



51

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R Y EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Historical cost convention

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a historical cost basis, except
for the equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income, available-for-
sale financial assets and investment properties,
which are measured at fair value.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used
to account for business combinations by the
Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately
in the income statement and statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and balance sheet respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TESHEESE )
(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 RBIEE (4
(c) Basis of consolidation (Continued) (c) AFEFEE (4H)

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a loss of
control as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. A change in ownership interest results in
an adjustment between the carrying amounts of
the controlling and non-controlling interests to
reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recognised in
a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence,
any retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in the income statement.
This fair value becomes the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associated company, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income
in respect of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to the income statement
or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised

HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 40
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers

Transfers of Investment Property

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance

Consideration
Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 4, amendments
to HKFRS 2 and Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle, which are not relevant to the
preparation of the Group’s financial statements, the
nature and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs,
are described below. The adoption of the above new

and revised standards have no material impact to the

Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continued)

TESTBRERBE 4

22 EBHBEREBZ25 ()

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(Continued)

The Group has initially applied Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS
9”) and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS
15”) with effect from 1 April 2018 and has taken
transitional provisions and methods not to restate
comparative information for prior periods. The
comparative information continues to be reported
under the accounting policies prevailing prior to 1
April 2018. The Group had to change its accounting
policies with effect from 1 April 2018 as a result of
adopting HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15.

(@)  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement for annual periods beginning
on or after 1T April 2018, bringing together all
three aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting.

With the exception of hedge accounting,
which the Group has applied prospectively,
the Group has recognised the transition
adjustments against the applicable opening
balances in equity at 1 April 2018. Therefore,
the comparative information was not restated
and continues to be reported under HKAS 39.

ALEMAE 2018 £ 4 A 1 HEEEK
R ) 5 s U T A R I B O 5T il T
H | KA BSOS LS 15 95 1%
F A& ts | S0 EBR A U R S
K AN i 5 A0 T 2 b
Ko LSRR B IR B 2018 4E4 H
1 HATZ St BOR MR o 48 RN
T s AT HE RN 2B O B A Vs A S
RIS 15 HEmE 2018 4F 4 A 1
H AL L S s R -

U AT e RIS 9 9% [ 2l
TAJR20184 4 H 1 HLIE
B Uk 2 € s AF B AR S LA
HEErHERISE 3985 S T H |
MR G HEsam LHE
Erat i 2 2 AR - A
BUOGERE ~ WE DA S D e st
BRI o

ok A 4 [ 75 6 £F A 0 3 ik g
FHEIAN > ARLEER201844 A
1 H i 2 R 55 B 4 R i RR
WP E A o L B R
AT S - AR
FHHEHIEE 39 EAR R o

B () A RA A
2019 4F4F-H

54



55

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R Y EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(a)

(Continued)
Classification and measurement

As further explained in the revised accounting
policies in note 2.13 to the financial statements
below, there is no longer a financial asset
category of “available-for-sale financial assets”,
the carrying amount of which amounting
to HK$12,374,000 as at 1 April 2018 was
reclassified and irrevocably designated as
“equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income” and the respective
fair value reserve of HK$10,123,000 was no
longer allowed to be reclassified to the income
statement.

In addition, all the financial assets previously
classified as “loans and receivables” were
continued to be measured (and categorised)
at amortised cost under HKFRS 9 as at 1 April
2018. For financial liabilities at 1 April 2018,
they continued to be accounted for at amortised
cost.

For impairment assessment of financial assets at
amortised cost, HKFRS 9 introduced expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model to replace incurred
credit loss under HKAS 39, further details of
which are included in the accounting policies at
impairment in note 2.13 to financial statements
below. There was no material financial impact
resulting from the new model as at 1 April 2018.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continued)

TESTRRBE 4

22 EBFHBERREBZS (4

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(Continued)

(b)

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts, HKAS
18 Revenue and related interpretations and
it applies, with limited exceptions, to all
revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model
to account for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue
is recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer. The principles in
HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach
for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations,
changes in contract asset and liability account
balances between periods and key judgements
and estimates. The disclosures are included in
note 5 to the financial statements. As a result
of the application of HKFRS 15, the Group has
changed the accounting policy with respect to
revenue recognition in note 2.23 to the financial
statements.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the
modified retrospective method of adoption.
Under this method, the standard can be applied
either to all contracts at the date of initial
application or only to contracts that are not
completed at this date. The Group has elected
to apply the standard to contracts that are not
completed as at T April 2018.

Therefore, the comparative information was
not restated and continues to be reported under
HKAS 11, HKAS 18 and related interpretations.

(b)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R Y EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

()

Amendments to HKAS 40 clarify when an entity
should transfer property, including property
under construction or development, into or out
of investment property. The amendments state
that a change in use occurs when the property
meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is evidence of the
change in use. A mere change in management’s
intentions for the use of a property does not
provide evidence of a change in use. The
amendments have had no financial impact on
the financial position or performance of the
Group.

HK(FRIC)-Int 22 provides guidance on how
to determine the date of the transaction when
applying HKAS 21 to the situation where an
entity receives or pays advance consideration
in a foreign currency and recognises a non-
monetary asset or liability. The interpretation
clarifies that the date of the transaction for the
purpose of determining the exchange rate to
use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it) is the date on
which an entity initially recognises the non-
monetary asset (such as a prepayment) or non-
monetary liability (such as deferred income)
arising from the payment or receipt of the
advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance of recognising
the related item, the entity must determine the
transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration. The interpretation
has had no impact on the Group’s financial
statements as the Group’s accounting policy for
the determination of the exchange rate applied
for initial recognition of non-monetary assets or
non-monetary liabilities is consistent with the
guidance provided in the interpretation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHERME ()

(Continued)
2.3 Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs 23 ERTEMRERZEBUBREE
al
The Group has not applied the following new and A (8] [ A A G VRS S TR 7 Ak L
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet N EEARAE A AR R BT BT 2
effective, in these financial statements. Tt BB IR A5 MR
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business? B Fikiezk
BB
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation’ BRI REAMENIERTEN
FORL BT T
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an A BB R A REFRARES S H
and HKAS 28 (2011) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture* FI09RAEEE £ EES EdE
HAIS 855 2011%) B
2Bl
HKFRS 16 leases' Tl BB iR A '
H165
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’ A BB R A e
75
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of Material’ FEaHENE LR EA2EE
HKAS 8 REEETHER
Lty vd )
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement! FaTHENS 9% LT FRdEE
2T
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures' FiEaaENE8Y  HFELARAE L L
2T = Ak
HK(FRICHnt 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments' Frits (B PRPE S HBITRRIERS P
REEAE) - JEH
235
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs  Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 BB A FERBHEAS3 5%
20152017 Cycle and HKAS 23' 2015 F£ 20174 BB A 11
W FIA 55 FikEHEA 12
R 23
v 5k
! Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 ! R20194F 4 A1 HELAME B UG < G FTH4EE
April 2019 EE) e
2 Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 2 R2020%F4 A1 HB LAME B UG 2 G 5F4F
April 2020 Ak
3 Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 3 R20214E4 A1 H LAMEBRIG 2 B T4
April 2021 AR
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but 4 i A% R T 1 A6 R I mT R A

available for adoption
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

59

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide
additional guidance on the definition of a business.
The amendments clarify that for an integrated set
of activities and assets to be considered a business,
it must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business
can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments
remove the assessment of whether market participants
are capable of acquiring the business and continue
to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether
acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs. The amendments have also narrowed the
definition of outputs to focus on goods or services
provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance to assess whether
an acquired process is substantive and introduce
an optional fair value concentration test to permit
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set
of activities and assets is not a business. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 April 2020.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHBEME ()
(Continued)
2.3 lIssued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued) 23 EBRTEMKRERZEBMBREE

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int
4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases-Incentives
and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The
standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and
liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two
elective recognition exemptions for lessees — leases
of low-value assets and short-term leases. At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise
a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease
liability) and an asset representing the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-
of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses unless the right-of-use
asset meets the definition of investment property in
HKAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the revaluation model is applied.
The lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect
the interest on the lease liability and reduced for the
lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability
and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use
asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the
lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events,
such as change in the lease term and change in future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate used to determine those payments. Lessees will
generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement
of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-
of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from the accounting under
HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases
using the same classification principle as in HKAS
17 and distinguish between operating leases and
finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors
to make more extensive disclosures than under HKAS
17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard using
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEGSTEEME ()
(Continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued) 2.3 ERTEMKRERZEBHBREE

61

either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach. The Group will adopt HKFRS 16 from 1
April 2019. The Group plans to adopt the transitional
provisions in HKFRS 16 to recognise the cumulative
effect of initial adoption as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings at 1 April 2019
and will not restate the comparatives. In addition,
the Group plans to apply the new requirements to
contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and measure the lease liability at
the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the Group’s incremental borrowing
rate at the date of initial application. The Group
plans to use the exemptions allowed by the standard
on lease contracts whose lease terms end within 12
months as of the date of initial application.

As disclosed in note 31(a) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
aggregate of approximately HK$439,707,000. Upon
adoption of HKFRS 16, certain amounts included
therein together with prepaid lease premium and
leasehold land under property, plant and equipment
may need to be recognised as new right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities. The Group is currently assessing
the impact of HKFRS 16. Further analysis will be
needed to determine the amount of new right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities to be recognised, including,
but not limited to, incremental borrowing rate and
reasonably certain lease period applied for different
leases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a
new definition of material. The new definition states
that information is material if omitting, misstating
or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements. The amendments
clarify that materiality will depend on the nature
or magnitude of information. A misstatement of
information is material if it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions made by the primary
users. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 April 2020. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income
taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments
involve uncertainty that affects the application
of HKAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax
positions”). The interpretation does not apply to
taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor
does it specifically include requirements relating to
interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax
treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses (i)
whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments
separately; (ii) the assumptions an entity makes
about the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities; (iii) how an entity determines taxable
profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an
entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.
The interpretation is to be applied retrospectively,
either fully retrospectively without the use of hindsight
or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
application as an adjustment to the opening equity at
the date of initial application, without the restatement
of comparative information. The Group expects
to adopt the interpretation from 1 April 2019. The
interpretation is not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTERBE (&)
(Continued)

2.4 Business combinations 24 ¥EBE4t

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred

. liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

J equity interests issued by the Group

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement, and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in
the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s
net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the
. consideration transferred,

J amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and

J acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4

2.5

Business combinations (Continued)

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are
less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets
of the business acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in the income statement as a bargain
purchase.

Contingent consideration is classified either as
equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as
a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R Y EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner

consistent with the internal reporting provided to the

chief operating decision-maker.

The Company has appointed the executive directors
as the chief operating decision makers to review the

operating results of the Group on a consolidated basis,

and makes strategic decisions.

2.7 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The financial statements
are presented in HK$, which is the functional
currency of the Company and presentation
currency of the Group.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are generally recognised in
the consolidated income statement. All foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement within “other
gains, net”.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7  Foreign currency translation (Continued)

2

TESTBRRBE 4

2.7 NBBRE )

(b) Transactions and balances (Continued) (b) L RETEE (FH)
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms 2 JRE S A LA B R JF &
of historical cost in a foreign currency are WeaH e - A6 S H Y IE
translated using the exchange rates at the dates IR -
of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair A FE LA R IR &
value in a foreign currency are translated using YEH 08 E o P(EE H R BE
the exchange rates at the date when fair value RIRE - AREATFHEIIRZ
was determined. Translation differences on BRE KA B R Y 2R
assets and liabilities carried at fair values are o /NS S ER Ry T =i
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. g3 o BT F > I B R B
For example, translation differences on non- o KA (IR A B
monetary financial assets and liabilities such B IR I 2 A 2 A
as equities held at fair value through profit or RN R Y AR €Y 1
loss are recognised in income statement as HA— a5 - & E
part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation 2 TARBOE (0433 vl ik iy
differences on non-monetary financial assets, B B ) AR A U E
such as equities classified as available-for- A THT IS AR A EERR
sale financial assets/equity investments are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

(c)  Group companies (c) ZEREF LA

The results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R R Y RE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies (Continued)

- assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

- income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

— all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment
in foreign entities, and of borrowings, are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment
are repaid, the associated exchange differences
are reclassified to the consolidated income
statement, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHBEME (4)

(Continued)

2.7 INEBRE (4F)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

2.8

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation), all of the currency translation
differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the equity
holders of the Company are reclassified to the
consolidated income statement.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are reattributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. When an item of property,
plant and equipment is classified as held for sale or
when it is part of a disposal group classified as held
for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Non-current assets (or disposal
groups) held for sale and Discontinued Operations”.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised
when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTERBE (&)
(Continued)
2.8 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 2.8 W WBERE )

69

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest
becomes available for its intended use. Depreciation
on other assets is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land classified ~ Shorter of remaining lease term or useful life
as finance lease

Buildings Shorter of the unexpired lease term
or 20 to 50 years
Equipment and leasehold 3 to 10 years or over the lease term
improvements
Furniture and fixtures 3to 15 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

No depreciation is provided on freehold land.
Freehold land is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.11).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8

29

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised in the consolidated income statement
within “Other (losses)/gains, net”.

Valuations are performed to ensure that the fair value
of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its
carrying amount. Changes in the values of property,
plant and equipment are dealt with as movements in
the revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve is
insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset
basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the income
statement. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is
credited to the income statement to the extent of the
deficit previously charged. An annual transfer from
the revaluation reserve to retained earnings is made
for the difference between the depreciation based
on the revalued carrying amount of an asset and the
depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. On
disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of
the revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is transferred to retained earnings as a
movement in reserves.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally leasehold land and
buildings, are held for long-term rental yields and are
not occupied by the Group. Investment property is
initially measured at fair value at the date of transfer
from property, plant and equipment. Differences
between the costs and fair values of the properties are
recognised in revaluation reserve. Subsequently, they
are carried at fair value. Changes in fair values are
presented in consolidated income statement as part of
other income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

29

2.10

Investment properties (Continued)

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties or inventories, the deemed cost of
a property for subsequent accounting is its fair value
at the date of change in use. If a property occupied by
the Group as an owner-occupied property becomes
an investment property, the Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment” up to the date of
change in use, and any difference at that date between
the carrying amount and the fair value of the property is
accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with the
policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment”
above. For a transfer from inventories to investment
properties, any difference between the fair value of the
property at that date and its previous carrying amount is
recognised in the income statement.

Intangible assets
(a) Goodwill

Goodwill is subsequently measured as described
in Note 2.11. Goodwill on acquisitions of
subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses
on the disposal of an entity include the carrying
amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The
units or groups of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes, being the
operating segments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continued)

TESTHEME )

2.10 Intangible assets (Continued) 2.10 BLEE (#)

(b) Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at
historical cost. Trademarks have an indefinite
useful life and are not amortised but tested
annually for impairment.

(c) Technical know-how

Technical know-how acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The technical know-how has
a finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of 30 years.

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other non-financial assets are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.
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2.12 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale
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and Discontinued Operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use and a sale is considered
highly probable. They are measured at the lower
of their carrying amount and fair value less costs of
disposal, except for assets such as deferred tax assets,
assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets
and investment property that are carried at fair value
and contractual rights under insurance contracts,
which are specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or
subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal
group) to fair value less costs of disposal. A gain is
recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value
less costs of disposal of an asset (or disposal group),
but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss
previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously
recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current
asset (or disposal group) is recognised at the date of
derecognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of
a disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised
while they are classified as held for sale. Interest
and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a
disposal group classified as held for sale continue to
be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and
the assets of a disposal group classified as held for
sale are presented separately from the other assets in
the balance sheet. The liabilities of a disposal group
classified as held for sale are presented separately from
other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12

2.13

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale
and Discontinued Operations (Continued)

A Discontinued Operations is a component of the
entity that has been disposed of or is classified as held
for sale and that represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, is part
of a single coordinated plan to dispose of such a line
of business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to resale. The results
of Discontinued Operations are presented separately
in the consolidated income statement.

Financial assets

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s
business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under
HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 April 2018)”
below.
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Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost
if both of the following conditions are met:

. The financial asset is held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows.

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

G R A G (201844 A
1 H R 19 B 8 B B 7 152 B 5 9 9
HFZHE %) ()

Subsequent measurement (Continued) HAgwHE ()
Financial assets at fair value through other Fo 8 PARAE FH A At 4 T g i 1 B S
comprehensive income HE

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to
classify irrevocably its financial assets as financial
assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income when they meet the definition
of equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the income statement. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the income statement
when the right of payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably, except when
the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery
of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Financial assets designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income are not subject
to impairment assessment.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continued)

FEEHEREE 4

2.13 BIEE ()

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value
plus transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or
loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:
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Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in other losses/gains, net in the income statement.
The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
income statement in finance costs for loans and in
other operating expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
investments and debt securities. Financial assets
classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated as
at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in
this category are those which are intended to be held
for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or in response to
changes in market conditions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
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2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
assets are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the revaluation reserve until
the available-for-sale financial assets is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised
in the income statement in other income, or until
the available-for-sale financial assets is determined
to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from the revaluation reserve to the income
statement in other losses/gains, net. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale
financial assets are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in
the income statement as other income in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition
(applicable before 1 April 2018)” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot
be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and
intention to sell its available-for-sale financial assets
in the near term are still appropriate. When, in rare
circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group
may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the
assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.
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Derecognition of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018 and policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated balance sheet) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to
what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In
that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Group has retained.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continued)
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2.13 BIEE ()

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018 and policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)
(Continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 April 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all
debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between
the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of
the original effective interest rate. The expected cash
flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral
held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs
are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12-months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for
credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).
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Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost
or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to

impairment under the general approach and they are

classified within the following stages for measurement

of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 -

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 -

Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Financial instruments for which credit
risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTERBE (&)
(Continued)

2.13 BIEE ()

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

85

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant
financing component and lease receivables, if any, the
Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies
as described above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continued)

TEETRERBE 4

2.13 BIEE ()

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS
39 applicable before 1 April 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An
impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses whether impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets
that are individually assessed for impairment and
for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognised are not included in a collective assessment
of impairment.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FTESHBRBE (4)
(Continued)

2.13 BIEE ()

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

87

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS
39 applicable before 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of
the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the loss is
recognised in the income statement. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to
the Group.

Include other criteria for writing off amounts charged
to the allowance account against the carrying amount
of impaired financial assets

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
other expenses in the income statement.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

B B M (201844 A 1 H Fr
I e T ERGE 39 HEIE R 2
) (4)

i S AR AR BB E (A

AT Ao 8 (LA 4 2 A % S MR
T B B A R A BL 4B i (O L4 14
REAZRAAE B REIR) BUEZ EH
FEAL o Al R BL  U  2 BUE DARA
B B WU BN 5 (B e e
et < HE ) S8 o

% A 22 IR TR (L 768 7 o8 )45 R AR 1T
Do TR TR 1R 2 AR TERE © FLEA
BRI AR 2 MR (E RTHE > TR
I (E A 1R R ) AT B R A B 4 0
B2 HARFE o & AR 2 i
VI TR A S AT A O A B O R T
LR > B SR O [R] A A A
IR FA4 F LAE

LS AR YE R T © R A BUE B HIRE
V14 <2 AR e Y 2 90 B 65 T PO AR TR <
o

i ¢ 1 DAt -0 L 18, < L A e
AR E LAAR B8 A 2 ST I B
S 75 A ) 4584 R 94 o R > S i e
W8 W AE G 1E o M AR [ > %
T Al AR R IR o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHERME (4)

(Continued)

2.13 BIEE ()

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS
39 applicable before 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of
any principal payment and amortisation) and its
current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognised in the income statement, is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the
income statement.

In the case of financial assets classified as available for
sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against
the original cost of the investment and “prolonged”
against the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost. Where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in the income
statement — is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in the income statement.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through the
income statement. Increases in their fair value
after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors,
the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTERBE (&)
(Continued)

2.14 BiKEE

2.14 Financial liabilities

89

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable
before 1 April 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the income statement when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.14

2.15

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting financial instruments

Policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018
and HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting
but still allow for the related amounts to be set off
in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the
termination of a contract.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.16

217

2.18

Inventories

Raw materials, work-in-progress and finished goods
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises direct materials and subcontracting
fee. Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory
on the basis of weighted average costs. Costs of
purchased inventory are determined after deducting
rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Provision
for inventories are recognised in the consolidated
income statement within “other operating expenses”.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the cash flows
statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on
hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions,
other short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheet.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue

of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.19

2.20

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to complete
and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences
and to unused tax losses.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in
the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R Y EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred
income tax is also not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to
investment property that is measured at fair
value is determined assuming the property will
be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations where the
Company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and when
the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in
the income statement, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

2.21 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

Group companies operate various pension
schemes. The schemes are generally funded
through payments to insurance companies or
trustee-administered funds. The Group mainly
has defined contribution plans.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior
periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R AR M EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a
formula that takes into consideration the profit
attributable to the Company’s shareholders
after certain adjustments. The Group recognises
a provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)

2
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221 EEERN (4)

(c) Termination benefits (c) AuL#EF
Termination benefits are payable when K1l 8RR R B TR IE W R K H
employment is terminated by the Group before HI WA 42 [ 4 L0 B4R B
the normal retirement date, or whenever an % AR D e B S A A R
employee accepts voluntary redundancy ST o ARAERIFE LA B (LA
in exchange for these benefits. The Group L e e AR B A - (@)
recognises termination benefits at the earlier AR AN BE TR £ 44 % 45 AR
of the following dates: (a) when the Group FEE 5 K (b) B B Al sR AL A B &
can no longer withdraw the offer of those R R H 37 S A 6 T Kb
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises R # b e B HE AR AN K 2 A B
costs for a restructuring that is within the HLRAE H oo JE42 2 &) LUgk
scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment JBh 15 R R IE LT o RS AR
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer R T AR R B 2 AR B
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the NG - RS IR R B i
termination benefits are measured based on A T B SO Y AR R R
the number of employees expected to accept B BUE -
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to their present value.

(d)  Employee leave entitlements d) EEREGK

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

1 B A 4R 8 % = 39 R s R R Y
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.22

2.23

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the
sale of watch products for general repairs of defects
occurring during the warranty period. Provisions for
these assurance-type warranties granted by the Group
on certain products are recognised based on sales
volume and past experience of the level of repairs
and returns, discounted to their present values as
appropriate.

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 April 2018)
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s e

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continued)

TESTRRBE 4

2.23 Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 April 2018) 2.23 WARZE(H2018F4 A1 HEER)

(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

When the consideration in a contract includes a
variable amount, the amount of consideration is
estimated to which the Group will be entitled in
exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the Group a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of
a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R Y EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 April 2018)
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(a)

Sale of watch products and optical products

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised

at the point in time when control of the asset

is transferred to the customer, generally on

delivery of the products.

Some contracts for the sale of products provide
customers with rights of return and volume

rebates. The rights of return and volume rebates

give rise to variable consideration.

(i)

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer
with a right to return the goods within
a specified period, the expected value
method is used to estimate the goods
that will not be returned because this
method best predicts the amount of
variable consideration to which the
Group will be entitled. The requirements
in HKFRS 15 on constraining estimates
of variable consideration are applied
in order to determine the amount of
variable consideration that can be
included in the transaction price. For
goods that are expected to be returned,
instead of revenue, a refund liability is
recognised. A right-of-return asset (and the
corresponding adjustment to cost of sales)
is also recognised for the right to recover
products from a customer.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 April 2018)
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(@) Sale of watch products and optical products
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Volume rebates

Retrospective volume rebates may be
provided to certain customers once the
quantity of products purchased during
the period exceeds a threshold specified
in the contract. Rebates are offset against
amounts payable by the customer. To
estimate the variable consideration for the
expected future rebates, the most likely
amount method is used that best predicts
the amount of variable consideration. The
requirements on constraining estimates
of variable consideration are applied and
a refund liability for the expected future
rebates is recognised.

The Group do not have expected future
volume rebates and no refund liability is
recognized as at 31 March 2019.

Consideration received from customers in
advance

Before the adoption of HKFRS 15, the
Group recognized consideration received
from customers in advance as other
payables. Under HKFRS 15, the amount
is classified as contract liabilities which is
included in other payables.

Therefore, upon adoption of HKFRS 15,
the Group reclassified HK$2,887,000
from receipt in advance to contract
liabilities as 1 April 2018 in relation to the
consideration received from customers in
advance as at 1 April 2018.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.23

2.24

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 April 2018)
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(@)  Sale of watch products and optical products
(Continued)

(iii) Consideration received from customers in
advance (Continued)

As at 31 March 2019, under HKFRS 15,
HK$1,058,000 was classified contract
liabilities in relation to the consideration
received from customers in advance for
sale of watches.

(b)  Other income

Building management services income and
shared services income are recognised when the
services are rendered

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 April 2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received a consideration (or an amount
of consideration that is due) from the customer. If a
customer pays the consideration before the Group
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s e

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTHERBE (&)

(Continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 April 2018) 2.25 WABZ(H2018F4 A1 HEER)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Amounts
disclosed as revenue are net of returns, trade
allowances, rebates and amounts collected on behalf
of third parties.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a)  Sales of goods-retail
Sales of goods are recognised when a group

entity sells a product to the customer. Retail
sales are usually in cash or by credit card.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR ER AR B o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.25

2.26

2.27

2.28

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 April 2018)
(Continued)

(b)  Sales of goods-wholesale and trading

Sales of goods are recognised when the Group
has delivered products to the customer,
the customer has accepted the product and
collectability of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.

(c) Other income

Building management fee income is recognised
when the services are rendered.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion
basis over the lease terms.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.29 Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

or

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow Subsidiary of the other
entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R R Y RE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.29 Related parties (Continued)

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies: (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group; (If the Group is it self such a plan)
and the sponsoring employers of the post-
employment benefit plan;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s e

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHERME (4)
(Continued)
2.30 Leases 2.30 HE

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the
Group, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception
at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower,
the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in other short-term and long-
term payables. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to the income statement over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated over
the asset’s useful life or over the shorter of the asset’s
useful life and the lease term if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Group will obtain ownership at the
end of the lease term.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Group
as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognised in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. The respective
leased assets are included in the balance sheet based
on their nature.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR ER AR B o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.31 Dividends distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
bank borrowings. The main purpose of net debt is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as trade and other receivables and trade and other
payables, which arise directly from its operations.
The Group’s overall risk management policies focus
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seek
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance. Risk management is carried
out by management under the policies approved by
the board of directors of the Company and it identifies,
evaluates and monitors financial risks in close co-
operation with the Group’s operating units.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HREBREREE)
3.1 Financial risk factors(Continued) 3.1 BEBEZE ()

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks: foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors of the
Company reviews and agrees policies for managing

each of these risks and they are summarised below.

(a)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong,
China and a number of countries in South
East Asia. Retail sales transactions are mostly
denominated in the functional currencies of
respective group entities. The Group’s exposure
to foreign exchange risk mainly arises from
commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the group entities
to which they relate. The Group considers its
foreign currency exposure as mainly arising
from the exposure of the Singapore dollar,
Malaysian ringgit, Thai baht, Renminbi and
Swiss Franc against the Hong Kong dollar.
The Group regularly monitors its exposures to
foreign currency transactions.

The details of the currencies in which the
Group’s bank loans are denominated are set
out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Group’s bank loans are
principally denominated in the functional
currency of the relevant group entity.
Management does not anticipate any significant
foreign exchange risk associated with the
Group'’s borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R R Y RE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

109

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The approximate impact to the Group's loss
before tax that might be resulted from the
reasonable possible changes in the foreign
exchange rates against the Hong Kong dollar to
which the Group has significant exposure at 31
March 2019 is summarised below. The analysis
includes balances between group companies

3 BRBRER (4)

3.1 BBEREBEEE)
(a) AMEREN (4F)

201943 H31H > [H A £
V] = v B ) A1 I R R 1Y
A BHLTT B 5 ) 1 22 B AR R
I 1 T s 4 R 0 % 28 AE 2
T o W% AT LA B A ] 2
&5 B > T aZ &5 B )0 DABR A 4R
9 ) 2D RE R AN i B N T

where the balances are denominated in a g -
currency other than the functional currencies of
the Group entities.
2019 2018
(Increase)/
Decrease decrease
in loss in loss
before before
Increase income tax Increase income tax
in foreign from in foreign from
exchange  Continuing exchange  Continuing
rate  Operations rate Operations
FHfEE
BEeE FHBRBLHI
MNEER  RBRBA SHERE= R
Wigm  BENEY s (i,
HK$'000 HK$'000
bk Ao R
Singapore dollar Hmgoe 5% 100 5% (173)
Malaysian ringgit BARRTAE 5% 24 5% 91
Thai baht Rk 5% 468 5% 338
Renminbi AR 5% 1,670 5% 7,934
Swiss franc Ty LB 5% 8,697 5% 8,765

Decrease in the above foreign exchange rates
by 5% (2018: 5%) would affect the loss before
income tax by the same amount but in the
opposite direction.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HREBREEE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HKEEREZE )
(b) Interest rate risk (b)  FIFME

(c)

The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates as the Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets other than
bank balances as detailed in Note 21. The
Group'’s exposure to changes in interest rates
is mainly attributable to its bank loans. Bank
borrowings at variable rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest-rate risk. Details of the
Group’s bank borrowings are disclosed in note
26(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
The Group’s policy is to obtain the most
favorable interest rates available.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps
to hedge its exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk.

At 31 March 2019, if interest rates of bank
borrowings at variable rates had been 50 basis
points (2018: 50 basis points) higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, loss before
income taxes would have been HK$3,441,000
(2018: HK$4,672,000) higher/lower, mainly as
a result of higher/lower interest expense.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to perform an obligation by
the counterparties arises from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial
assets (mainly include deposits with banks and
trade and other receivables) as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet.

(c)

P AR S I Sl A K S
B B R 271 o R AR A SR AT &S BR
b B B 2 A B B
&R R B AN R A A A
(b2 RS S UTE ORI ES
B Ja Fn = A A L ERAT B
I B M AR AR B SRAT B A
A4 T R 2 B 4 B R R
Bt o A B A S T AR AT 1 B B0 R
T 4 5 0 A5 A BB SR I AR
26(a) o A FH 9 BUR TG B 8
FHURA M Z A -

A [ N0 48 8 AT e A1) R 40
ESRL TR N IR

R20194E3 A31 H » fiff B 3K
Fl & F 7 B AK50M (2018
40 50 H BT A R EE PR
FER B 5 B Br 15 Bl AT 188
£ T B s 3,441,000 70
(20184F = #%r4,672,0007C) »
J2 R R B A R A AR
B BTt RS -

17 B

AL K 52 oy 3 F 05 R RE AT
AL 51 B e 1R TR A 2 dw
RIGEEBAR LGS EE AR
RITHA CHERD B EE 2R
T {E > B LR B AT A7 L
B 5 B HARREBR K -

B () A RA A
2019 4F4FH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMEEBRER )
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 MBEBEE 4
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) 1FEmE (4)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at JA20194F 3 H 31 H 19 4% 5 Jm B
31 March 2019 RAFT I BT
The table below shows the credit quality and the TR AE B 5 B UK
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the IR G BB R Koo 5 B R
Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based on B o B Ik I 2R AR R AR 5 5% )
past due information unless other information TR A R I &
is available without undue cost or effort, and FEPE M E R > it 20194F
year-end staging classification as at 31 March 3A 31 H 2RI B BT U 4
2019. The amounts presented are gross carrying B o S50 BT 2 BB A MR
amounts for financial assets. T 4 (H -
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{EARH
FEER EHRAEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
Lt FER EZRE LA EH)

HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR AR R L aiv AR

2019 20195
Trade receivables* Hed iR+ - - - 85,542 85,542
Financial assets included in AL {EREFEFHAA ~ 14

prepayment, deposits and YEHT )

other Receivables** B 133,264 - - - 133,264
Pledged hank deposit KRR 56,649 - - - 56,649
Cash and cash equivalents He kB e%EY 234,869 - - - 234,869

424,782 - - 85,542 510,324

* For accounts receivable to which the Group * AL 0 1 AL 7 2T A
applies the simplified approach for impairment, ST R D W DA 8 £ R et
information based on the provision matrix is Ty BT 1 DR D R I B S ik
disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements. W EE 20 ©

**  The credit quality of the financial assets R LS TE A RCE - oA
included in prepayments, other receivables WS 3 e L A 1 B RS
and other assets is considered to be “normal” E Sl 40 ) L A R R
when they are not past due and there is no % W A 2 R SR B
information indicating that the financial assets B UK e 5B AR g B - Rl E%
had a significant increase in credit risk since HEMHEEZGEHRYM
initial recognition. By TIEH | o

1 .l 1 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HRERBREREE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 H¥EBREZEH)
(c)  Credit risk (Continued) (c) &k (%)

Maximum exposure as at 31 March 2018

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial
assets, which mainly comprise cash and cash
equivalents, cash held on behalf of clients,
financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, and derivative
financial instruments, arises from default of the
counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Bank balances are deposited in banks with
sound credit ratings to mitigate the risk arising
from banks. The Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk with any single
counterparty or group of counterparties. The
Group also has policies in place to assess
the credit worthiness of customers to ensure
that sales of products are made to wholesale
customers with an appropriate credit history.
Besides, management of the Group monitors its
credit risk on an ongoing basis by reviewing the
debtors” aging to minimise its exposure to credit
risk.

Sales to retail customers are made in cash or via
major credit cards.

Rental deposits are mainly placed with various
landlords in countries where the Group operates
and are due to refund upon the expiry of the
tenancy agreements and handover of the leased
premises. During the year, the Group did not
experience any defaults by the landlords.

201843 A 31 HHJR A 7

AL MM B EE > FEA
e kBeSHEY - EF
Frf Bl 5 7 BAT3OR -
e 4 T H At B SR ) 5
R AT A > A R
BELE AR ST AEA >
B AR A R A TR 2 R
T{H o

SRAT &5 BRAT O S BERE AR R 47
19 SR AT DA MR SR AT AR A
B o A% 4R 9 Sl fe BELAT: o] BE — 52
SEFIR—ALHEF A
I 119 A o] B £ 45 4 o LB o
A £ BN B RT A BUR REAS & 5
ZAG R ek o LA DR TS 1)
FHRALKRRIZMBERF H
o BbAh > AR SR A B
A vt B WA R kB R DA 455 A
B R AR IS B

BT F 2 8 DB S
B T BAE R AT

Heke TEA TALEAK
BEBWEEXNWZHET > I
R L B o i S SR T B
SEWFE] TR o SFA S AL
Al AR RS T A AT

B () A RA A
2019 4F4FH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R AR M EE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of
banking facilities to meet obligations when due
and to close out market positions. Due to the
dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
management aims to maintain flexibility in
funding by keeping credit lines available and
to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of
banking facilities in order to meet its liquidity
requirements both in the short term and long
term.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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M ERERE (4)

3.1

MBEREE ()

(d)

B E 2R

FE 2 E) A A JE B AR
HEFR L 2 Bl R A iR A R
W2 ERGEE R M RN
2 &4 - MINMHBIER GRS
B WE L SR ARG
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HERERERRIT 2 EEEER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMBEBRERE )
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BBEBEE )
(d)  Liquidity risk (Continued) ) REEEGE ()
Repayable Between Between
on demand/ 1and2 2and 3 Over
within 1 year years years 3 years
EZREE/
1T 1228R 2E3ER 3L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR BB AR AR
At31 March 2019 #2019%3 4311

Interest-bearing bank and other at BRIT R AR
borrowings (Note (a)) (k) 708,210 - - -
Finance lease REHE 57 - - -
Trade and other payables B R R R 227,106 - - -
935,373 - - -

At 31 March 2018 #20184E3 H31 R

Interest-bearing bank and other it SR BRI
borrowings (Note (a)) (FHF3E (@) 941,526 1,859 1,888 13,178
Finance lease B il 65 59 - -
Trade and other payables B RAM IR 342,650 - - -
1,284,241 1,918 1,888 13,178

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BERBER ()
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.0 BBEBEE )
(d)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) B EEEE ()

Note: WFEE -

(@)  Certain borrowings contain a repayment (@) A TG R R
on demand clause which can be exercised WeSC > A SR AT A RER AT
at the bank’s sole discretion. The analysis i o AR 20 b R AR B
below shows the cash outflows based on the EA B o AR e
scheduled repayment. The amount includes 355 i F B %0 ) 1 R
interest payments computed using contractual BAY K e ANwIEET S
rates. The directors of the Company believe that BRSO AR DR B 3 SR
such borrowings will be repaid in accordance R ET B B IR T

with the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreements as follows:

Between Between
Within 1and2 2and 3 Over
1 year years years 3 years
T84T 122%R 2E3%FR 3FENLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BEAT BEAT AR
At 31 March 2019 201943 H31H 133,325 121,301 175,766 332,051
At 31 March 2018 201843 H31H 319,220 82,690 70,014 542,964
3.2 Capital management 32 EXERER
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to AR Y B A I E AR IR A SR
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going AR A 7 LA 0 PSR 3 o s A 5 FG
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders MR 25 A NS LR 45 [E]B%QEH:HEQ
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an FE 1) B A &5 4 LUK & & AR 2 6
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. Jj e
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the By T HERR BRI AR AR T
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to RE 7 B SO TiRCR A B E ORE - 1ol i
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new FOREEAS ~ BT B Ek B E D
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. WARAETS -
1 .l 5 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

-
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBRRERE W)

3.2 EBEXRERER ()

3.2 Capital management (Continued)

3.3

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
(including current and non-current borrowings as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash
and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as
‘shareholders” funds’ as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet.

The gearing ratios at 31 March 2019 and 2018 were as

SLEE N H A F Rk — B AR ELL
AR R AR B AR R SLE o fE R
PU AR % TR PR DL A SR -
HHHESRAE (G EE AR
FRIT7R Z U B Je I L 8 Bk LA e vl
A o5 ) W B B e YR
EARBEGH R A e EE AREIR
Y TR E S ] -

R 20184F K 20194E3 31 H Z 4%

follows: FERES R
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Interest-bearing bank and FERERAT B H AL B K
other borrowings (Note 26) (F5E26) 688,301 934,409
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W Bl R Bl Y
(Note 21) (Ff5E21) (234,869) (246,278)
Pledged bank deposit (Note 21) HEAPERAT A7k (K EE21) (56,649) -
Net debt FEDS 396,783 688,131
Shareholders’ funds R & 4 984,971 1,020,590
Gearing ratio HAR LR 40% 67%

Fair value estimation

(a)  Financial assets and liabilities

(i

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements
and estimates made in determining the
fair values of the financial instruments
that are recognised and measured at
fair value in the financial statements. To
provide an indication about the reliability
of the inputs used in determining fair
value, the Group has classified its
financial instruments into the three
levels prescribed under the accounting
standards. An explanation of each level
follows underneath the table.

3.3 AFEMGEE
(a) HMBEEERERFE
(i) A TEZEHE

7R i ) 2 76 A S S
% 2~ {E e RS 2 Y
Bl TR 2 - FE R B iR
HUE R ALY o By fr i i E
O3~V (ELPT i A B A TT
RR I AEBARE
arat e AR TR )
W =TE e KB HBIm
NERPR

B () A RA A
2019 4F4FH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 SRR ERE ()
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 DFEME )
(a)  Financial assets and liabilities (Continued) (a) HEFEEERGE ()
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i) A FEZERE ()
The carrying amounts of the Group’s "20194£3 H31 H &2018
financial assets and liabilities at amortised F3H3TH > AREE
cost approximate their fair value as at 31 B AT ) I G A
March 2019 and 2018. A5 B0 2 R T (B B Y
EEAEE

Management has assessed that the fair T E O R E B A A B4
values of cash and cash equivalents, SEEY) ~ AT ERATAE K
pledged bank deposit, trade and other Z oy T HoAth FEMC IR 3K~ 4%
receivables and deposits, trade and 4~ B 5 K H A AT K
other payables and interest-bearing bank DL R s B ARAT S 2 AT
borrowings approximate to their carrying (B AR T (EAR R - £
amounts largely due to the short term T A R T B
maturities of these instruments. NEEEIE

The Group’s finance department AR 1 o o s A A
headed by the chief financial officer is PATS R M B B Al T
responsible for determining the policies HAN P EE B 2 BUOR &
and procedures for the fair value FEIY o A7 A e B ) o
measurement of financial instruments. i S BB R R4S o AR
The finance controllers report directly ol B BB RS A
to the chief financial officer. At each i T EAEE 2 i
reporting date, the finance department Tife 2 Ak (6 E ) e o HUAS
analyses the movements in the values of B 5 A B 3 2 i
financial instruments and determines the fLAE o

major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the
chief financial officer.

The fair values of the non-current portion HoAl JE R B0 2 3% 4
of deposits, and interest-bearing bank SEERATERZ N1
borrowings have been calculated by {8 > A B R (E 51 B
discounting the expected future cash HRMER ~ 5 58 bR
flows using rates currently available for BRI H 2 TE B
instruments with similar terms, credit risk WA R ETEE A
and remaining maturities. The Group's B AU o A 4R [E R
own non-performance risk for interest- 201943 A 31 HEtFHE 4R
bearing bank borrowings as at 31 March AT 8 ¥ 2 N8 A JE B
2019 was assessed to be insignificant. R B AN E K o

1 .l 7 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBEBREREE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFVEME E)
(a)  Financial assets and liabilities (Continued) (@) B EREE (4)
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) () FEZERE (4)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1/E #2[E 38 -

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BER BT BT

Recurring fair value BEWATHEFHE
measurements

At 31 March 2019 A20194F3 H31H

Financial assets AT

Equity investments at fair value /A F-(EiB R H b
through other comprehensive 2Tl 4 51 )

income liefier ey
~ unlisted equity securities - LA S - - 14,970 14,970

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
H10g H2lg H3)g A5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ok ATV i R L 4 DIV (4. i B

Recurring fair value BE WA TR
measurements
At 31 March 2018 #20184F3 H31H
Financial assets AT
Available-for-sale financial T B S
assets
- unlisted equity securities - A E S - - 12,374 12,374
There were no transfers between levels RN BE AT EF R
1, 2 and 3 for recurring fair value ZE 2 B3 T 2[RI A
measurements during the year. AR o
Level 1 The fair value of financial kg TEWEETS (i
instruments traded in active o BB B AT R
markets is based on quoted TH--®85 Rk
market prices at the end of the At R 2R
reporting period. BHEM ST
B NP E %
Hoth WK 1Y
LR e SR -

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MEERERE ()
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AR EMLEE)
(a)  Financial assets and liabilities (Continued) (a) HBEEEREE ()
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i) A PELHE )

Level 2 The fair value of financial $okg  WIEATERN

instruments that are not Wy (W 5T A

traded in an active market (for TH)HEEMS

example, over-the-counter 21 S N 7N

derivatives) is determined B £R A6 (8 4%

using valuation techniques fly & 52 > 5% 5

which maximise the use of i 5 2 flT 3% =

observable market data and F A AT BLE T

rely as little as possible on 55 BCHE T A D

entity-specific estimates. If all QN RO

significant inputs required to e R

fair value an instrument are HILHENFE

observable, the instrument is fFras & E K

included in level 2. i A B &

LR E-3 ¢ ¥

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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If one or more of the
significant inputs is not based
on observable market data,
the instrument is included in
level 3. This is the case for
unlisted equity securities.

HI 5% T A & gk
FIALE 2 o

n—IHe £ A
EPNL PN &
A FF HE 9% T B
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SIS ER AR B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBEBREE
3.3  Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFEME(E)
(a) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued) (a) HBEEERERE ()

(ii)

Valuation techniques used to determine
fair values

The valuation of equity investments at
fair value through other comprehensive
income, which were previously classified
as available-for-sale financial assets under
HKAS 39, was determined using a market-
based valuation technique. The valuation
requires the directors to determine
comparable public companies based on
industry, size, leverage and strategy, and
calculates an appropriate price to earnings
multiple, for each comparable company

(ii)

i RE O3V (ELPT B A (B
ffi

BN T8 8 A 2 TR
i 1) R ) B 5 A (L
(TR AR 4% A s & wt i
HEQIHS 39 SR B AT M i
B BB ) A T
A T B B Al B Al 7 E
T (E BERE FARIEAT 26
R ~ R S S i 2 ]
B AR ] > WA
fH] ] T LA AN ]
AR T R A A

identified. The multiple is calculated by B A ] LR WY T
dividing the market capitalization by the (EBR DA FIRTE AR o A
profits of the comparable companies. WA R E VT ARG BL o

The multiple is discounted for non-
marketability. The discounted multiple
is applied to the profit of the unlisted
equity investments to measure the fair
value as at 31 March 2019. The valuation
of available-for-sale financial assets was
determined using dividend growth model
as at 31 March 2018.

JA20194E3 31 H » RFE
58 R JE BT e i
W 2R DLFTHE A T(H o
201843 A31H » alfitih
BB I TS D B R
HFHREAE -

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR ERaR B o

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BIERRER ()
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 DVPEME E)
(a)  Financial assets and liabilities (Continued) (a) HIFFEERAGE (#)
(ili) Fair value measurements using significant (ifi) % B R n] B g A B

unobservable inputs (level 3)

CR=RE8) B TERHE

121

The following table presents the changes TREFEE 201843 1
in level 3 item for the years ended 31 31 H 201943 31 H IR
March 2018 and 31 March 2019 for FEREREH A PEFEZ
recurring fair value measurements: 553 EIHH RS -
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Equity investments at fair value %A F-{E% i HoAth 2 T i i
through other comprehensive SRR A 1
income/available-for-sale ]k A
financial assets
At 1 April w4H1H 12,374 11,233
Revaluation surplus transfer to  EEAf & SR AR 35
equity 2,596 1,141
At 31 March W3H31H 14,970 12,374
(iv)  Valuation inputs and relationships to fair (iv) il (R A SR R B
value 114 B 13

The most significant unobservable input
is price to earnings multiple of 7 and non-
marketability discount rate of 20% (2018:
rate of return on the investment of 25%).
The lower the price to earnings multiple,
the lower the fair value of the equity
investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income. The lower of the
non-marketability discount rate or non-
controlling interest discount, the higher
the fair value of the equity investments at
fair value through other comprehensive
income.

If the non-marketability discount rate
increase/(decrease) by 1%, it would result
in increase/(decrease) in fair value by
HKD187,000 as at 31 March 2019.
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57 W B R AR O 20%
B JE 3 B B B K (2018
A 25% AR E IR ) o
IRGE S A /AN
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

v)

Valuation processes

The finance department of the Group
includes a team that performs the
valuations of non-property items required
for financial reporting purposes, including
level 3 fair values. This team reports
directly to the chief financial officer
(“CFO”) and the audit committee (“AC”").
Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the CFO and AC
at least once every six months, in line with
the Group’s half-yearly reporting periods.

The main level 3 inputs used by the Group
are derived and evaluated as follows as at
31 March 2019:

- price to earnings multiple
- non-marketability discount rate

The main level 3 inputs used by the Group
are derived and evaluated as follows as at
31 March 2018:

- Earning growth factor for unlisted
equity securities are estimated based
on historical dividend payout ratio.

(b) Non-financial assets and liabilities

(i

Fair value hierarchy

This note explains the judgements and
estimates made in determining the fair
values of the non-financial assets that are
recognised and measured at fair value
in the financial statements. To provide
an indication about the reliability of the
inputs used in determining fair value,
the Group has classified its non-financial
assets and liabilities into the three
levels prescribed under the accounting
standards. An explanation of each level is
provided in Note 3.3(a).

3

BSERER ()
3.3 AFEME(E)

@ HEEEERAR(H)

(v)

fHEREF

A A5 [ W 5 s A — 8/
Mo EIMME RS H W
HIEMEEEBME &
I AFH - /A
HEME KM E (CFO)
M#ZE B & (AC) fEH o
oWt A AR 46 F 0 2 AR i
> CFO ~ AC ~ fi{E/N
LA (i B 20 B9 7 A H B
B o wE A E IR AR A
AHBA AL FE -

A20194E3 H31H » Ak
CREIENUESR Y =1 1PN
BURAE N 51 R R A A
WA

S R
N 7 s

R20184F3 H31H » A4k
B D 0 2 A 3 R A
BR8P B A
FEA

- EEWHmREEZ

B R R IR
3% JE S B S UR 8 L
%

(b)  FHMBEERARE

(i)

AR

7 o S T A S B
R NIE N TE RS S wt
9 JF B 5 B 2 N T-(ELIE
P A 7 KAl wt o A i
i /A SV AN €3
R RIS R BE R - ARG
R & w4 HIHE L IR B B
HE KA B = e
# g 2wl W] 51 O B R
3.3@) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBEBRERE A
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFEME F)
(b) Non-financial assets and liabilities (Continued) (b)  FERHEER A ()
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) () FEZERE (4)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1/E 228 38 st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BT BER BT BEAT

At31 March2019 andonthe 201943 A31 H

date of transfer i
Investment properties - Era<t/E S

Commercial building [E3cE ] - - 586,100 586,100
Total non-financial assets RIS A - - 586,100 586,100

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
H10g H2lg H30g A5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
WL EWT WP BT

At31 March 2018 andonthe 4201843 431 H &

date of transfer R
Investment properties — Bgy¥E-

Commercial building [EES:s - - 230,000 230,000
Total non-financial assets A - - 230,000 230,000
There were no transfers between levels EER s BE A TEEE
1, 2 and 3 for recurring fair value ZET 2 B3 2[RI A
measurements during the year. 3¢ o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HRERBREREE)
3.3  Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 DR EMGE ()

(b)

Non-financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(ii)

Valuation techniques used to determine
level 3 fair values and valuation processes

The fair value of the investment properties
is arrived at on the basis of valuation
carried out by CS Surveyors Limited
(“CS”) and Savills (Macau) Limited
(“Savills”) independent valuers which are
not related to the Group. The Group’s
finance department reviews the valuations
performed by CS and Savills for financial
reporting purpose. These valuation
results are then reported to the Group’s
management for discussions and review in
relation to the valuation processes and the
reasonableness of valuation results.

The fair value of the investment properties
were arrived by using direct comparison
method based on market observable
transactions of similar properties in the
similar conditions and locations of the
subject properties and adjusted to reflect
the conditions of the subject properties
including property size and property floor
level. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the
properties is their current use.

(b)

LB o R A ()

(ii)

i E 9 3 8 1 E AR (E
FEIF BT FH B A (B 0

BEEY M A TE T
L7 AR 130 X074 [ W ) 8 ST
Al (R S AT A PR
A (R )) B8 — P8
HERT (EY) AR [ 26
— R RAE ST | AT R A
(ELTI 2 B o % it S B 5
R AR A U S A
il B B — R A BT
TR (E - A B EAR
) A A A P
DU (LR 7 S A (45 2R
9 & B AR R
[ o

BOEY I N FE IR
CYSRF Y E NIV G DA
RN b E R/ E NG S
W) S THI A I W) SEME R 2 AR
AR DL e H AR S 2
ARUL) AT BLEE T 5 5 fi
B ORI B« R AG
FiEZE ML E S
4 o e B d A & 5 H R
ik

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMEEBRER )
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 DVEME )
(b)  Non-financial assets and liabilities (Continued) (b)  FERHEER A ()
(ili)  Fair value measurements using significant (i) TEA PEFHE R &
unobservable inputs (Level 3) RART] g A Bk (56 3
J&)
The following table presents the changes TREFEE 201943 1
in level 3 items for the year ended 31 31 H LA B R P
March 2019 for recurring fair value AR A3 I H A E) -
measurements:
Investment
properties
REME
HK$'000
AT T
At 1 April 2017 201744 H1H -
Transfer from property, plant and T Y ~ S R
equipment 230,000
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 201843 H31H
J%20184F4H1H 230,000
Transfer from property, plant and
equipment R YIS ~ B S 356,100
At 31 March 2019 #201943 431 H 586,100
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(b) Non-financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(iv)  Valuation inputs and relationships to fair
value

The following table summarises the
quantitative information about the
significant unobservable inputs used in
recurring level 3 fair value measurements.
See (ii) above for the valuation techniques

BRRBER ()
3.3 AFEME(E)

(b)  FEREEE KA ()

(iv) At (B A B M B 1
19 B AR

T RME TSI A
(B BT E R OR W]
U AR BLE R
FE2R () T IRET R
fhAEFE AT

adopted.
Significant Range of Relationship of
Valuation technique(s) and key unobservable unobservable unobservable inputs
HK$'000 input(s) input(s) inputs to fair value
EXRTER OLE 1S FUREGANE
BT ERGRERGANE BABE QAR EE RAVENBE
At31 March
2019 and on
the date of
transfer
1201943 A
31 H kR
#

586,100  Direct comparison method based on 1) Unit rate From HK$180,000t0 1) The higher the unit rate,
market observable transactions of 2) Frontage HK$823,000 per the higher the fair value
similar properties and adjust to reflect square feet 2) The larger the shop
the conditions of the subject property. frontage, the higher the
The key inputs are: fair value
1) Property size
2) Unit rate
TN TTRE TR AR 1) B BFIRE180,000 1) BAERER > ATE

HRIERE  TEREURMAR 2 #E HELE83,000%  MH

MRS - Rk ABIRE - o 2) HRA A FEHR
1) YT

2) A fEt

B () A RA A
2019 4F4FH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMEEBRER )
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AP EME A
(b) Non-financial assets and liabilities (Continued) (b)  FERHEER A ()
(iv)  Valuation inputs and relationships to fair (iv) b (E oA B S BT (E
value (Continued) HIBRAR (A7)
Significant Range of Relationship of
Valuation technique(s) and key unobservable unobservable unobservable inputs
HK$'000 input(s) input(s) inputs to fair value
EATTRE FUBR FARRRANE
BT (AERNRERBALE LN ¢ B BB EE RAVENBE
At31 March
2018 and on
the date of
transfer
1201843 A
31 H KRN
]
230,000  Direct comparison method based on 1) Unit rate From HK$295,000to 1) The higher the unit rate,
= market observable transactions of 2) Frontage HK$312,000 per the higher the fair value
similar properties and adjust to reflect square feet 2) The larger the shop
the conditions of the subject property. frontage, the higher the
The key inputs are: fair value
1) Property size
2) Unitrate
RO RN TRETS AR 1) B BFAMA295000 1) BEEGER AFE
ERWERE ) CERRUEBAR 2 9iR HLE312000%  HH
ISAOARL - B A B S, - T 2) AR - AT
1) PR

2) At
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires the use
of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom
equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise
judgement in applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that may have a
financial impact on the entity and that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

(@ Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar nature.
It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste and competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycles. Management will reassess the
estimations at the balance sheet date.

(b) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses at least annually whether
property, plant and equipment exhibit any indications
of impairment. The recoverable amounts are
determined based on value-in-use calculation.
The value-in-use calculation involves estimating
the future cash inflows and outflows to be derived
from continuing use of the asset and applying the
appropriate discount rate to those future cash flows.
The estimation of future cash flows and selection
of discount rate require the use of judgements and
estimates. Management believes that any reasonably
foreseeable change in any of the above key elements
in the value-in-use calculation would not result in
material additional impairment charges.

4

R E R E R A E

A 5 B B R A A T e w A > TR
il i % S P A D B B B R A SR AR ©
L 7 5 BEAE M A 4 ) wh BOR AR A2
T i -

filiat AR e R 5 AR AL 3 DL T RSB
FOFCA DR 3R A 2 2Bt BLARAE A RS DL T
FAA T & 2T 6 B AT B U B R B
RAHAFT

(@ FENARRFE

fr B 2 AT SEBLIFE I TE B W B HEAT
At EHEE > B AR SRR K
S BASC o 2SR DABLA DL R
S ks B B[R] ST i 2 PR A B 1 i
HEIEAT o HRRS R BT AT
B 1% 5l T 4 BOR A9 AT 36 R A
b > HATRE & gk A B AL - A g
AT 25 ot 30 D SO SR A A B A
Ci

(b) 3 BBERRBHREE

ALEE G 2D EERAGYE - A
B T AFTEAE AT PR 8L o AT [
SR R TS (L R O T A o (T
B S LA S A O T % IR R
PG Z BB WA SR - DA KR8
BRI R B SR E o B ELEZ
B - JOREH M 15 % 5
Sy Al st o R RE S
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(9]

(d)

Impairment of goodwill and technical know-how

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill
has suffered any impairment. The Group reviews
technical know-how for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the related
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amount has been determined based on
higher of value-in-use calculation and fair value less
cost of disposal. The calculation requires the use of
judgments and estimates.

Deferred income tax

The Group’s management determines the amount of
deferred tax asset to be recognised by estimating the
amount of future profit available to utilise the tax losses
or certain temporary differences in the relevant tax
jurisdiction and entity. The estimate is based on the
projected profit in respective jurisdiction and entity
and the Group uses its judgement to make assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing on
balance sheet date. It could change as a result of the
uncertainties in the market conditions.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

4

BAREH et R AR )

(9]

(d)

BB R EXREMARE

AR ] A 0 R R T o BB
A 1 7 B SR AT (> RS
B L B LA B B A I B T (EL A
REB AL ] Ry o 7 2 75 (B 2P HH 4%
HCH BT AL R > Rl (o] g RS IR
(B (B R 3 B2 28 P (il ) 5 A F)
= M E o

IEIEFT S B

7S LG TR I A0 T T R
B A F AR B A B BURS R ik
A I B % W) B M R 9 M R - %
T RH TIARAERA R M I R B R ) TR
i R T A I DL e R
FORRPRAE T H E Ry T DA B - 3%
Al e DT LA B BT B



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(e)

Valuation of equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

The Group’s unlisted equity investment was classified
as equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income and measure at fair value
using market approach with reference to the price to
earnings multiple of comparable companies listed
in the market. This valuation requires the Group to
make estimates about price to earnings multiple, non-
marketability discount, and hence they are subject to
uncertainty. The fair value of the equity investments at
fair value through other comprehensive income was
HK$14,970,000 as at 31 March 2019. Further details
are included in note 17.

Impairment of trademarks

As at 31 March 2019, trademarks recognised by the
Group amounted to approximately HK$54,034,000.
Trademarks with an indefinite useful life are carried at
costs and are not amortised.

Management tests annually whether the trademarks
suffered any impairment by considering the economic
benefit to be generated from trademarks. The
recoverable amount is determined based on value-in-
use calculation. This calculation used pre-tax cashflows
projections based on financial budgets prepared by
management. Management determined the financial
budget based on past performance and its expectations
for the future market development, which involved
significant judgment and estimates. Information
about the valuation assumptions used in determining
recoverable amount is disclosed in note 16.

4

Mg E T hEt R A (A7)

(e)

®

EERRAVEEBHMZEKES
REVRDIRENLE

AL E K IR L R E B AR
By 0N - (B 35 30 ELAth 4 1 e 5 SR 1Y)
et > Wiy il &
FE B2 B TIT J81 SR O R T T ik
BT o MO (B B R AN AE E T 2 R A
W IR BT AR AT
TEAMEEN - 20194E3 31 H » f5
SE By U8 TR 35 08 SEL Ath 2 1 i 25 51 R
0 AR 45 9 2 F-{H %% 14,970,000 5
I o HE— AR RN B EE 17 -

ARRE

20194E3 31 H » AL Z
X1 R 54,034,000 7C o ELA MR 5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(g

Valuation of investment properties

The Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including (1) current prices in an active
market for properties of a different nature, condition
and location, adjusted to reflect those differences;
(2) recent prices of similar properties on less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the date of the transactions
that occurred at those prices; and (3) independent
valuations.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at
31 March 2019 was HK$586,100,000. Further details
including the key assumptions used for fair value
measurement are included in note 3.3.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE

The chief operating decision-makers have been identified
as the executive directors of the Company. The executive
directors review the Group’s financial information mainly
from product and geographical perspectives. From a product
perspective, the Group has four reportable segments namely
watch retail and watch wholesale trading, optical retail and
optical wholesale trading segments. From a geographical
perspective, management mainly assesses the performance
of watch and optical retail operations in (i) Hong Kong,
Macau and Mainland China and (ii) rest of Asia.

Revenue represents sales of goods. Sales between operating
segments are carried out on terms equivalent to those
prevailing in arm’s length transactions. The executive
directors assess the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of adjusted earnings before interest and
tax (“EBIT”). This measurement basis excludes unallocated
income and net corporate expenses.

The optical retail segment and certain subsidiaries under
optical wholesale trading segment (the “Disposal group” or
“discontinued operations”) were discontinued and disposed
during the year. Information about this discontinued
segment as at 31 March 2018 was provided in notes 28. The
operating result information about this disposal group for the
current year only represented the results of its operations up
to the date of disposal on 31 May 2018.

The watch retail segment and watch wholesale trading
segment together formed the continuing operations.

Unallocated income represents dividend income from
investment and gain on disposal of discontinued operations.
Net corporate expenses mainly represent corporate
staff costs and provision for senior management bonus.
Unallocated assets represent property, plant and equipment
and investment properties at corporate level, unlisted equity
investments, deferred tax assets, pledged bank deposit and
cash and cash equivalents. Unallocated liabilities represent
other payables and accruals at corporate level, interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, deferred tax liabilities
and income tax payable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 5 DEBE R R WA ()
For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE2019F3A31 ALFE
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
RREERR RLEERR
Watch Optical
Wholesale wholesale
Watch retail frading Optical retail trading
£ B8
B3 xR RREE e ]
Hong Kong, Hong Kong,
Macau and Macau and
Mainland Rest of Mainland Rest of Group
(China Asia Subvtotal (China Asia Subvtotal Total
&k &k
R ok AR i
RERE  RBME NE OBERE  HBME it it

HKSOD  HKSOD KGO0 HKSO00  HKSODD  HKSOO0  HKSOD  HKSODD  HKSO00
REffn  RRfn ERfn ERfin ERfin ARfn ABfn BB BB

Revenues from contractswith ~~ RERFAH2

customers BA

Gross segment P 806338 340200 593991 1760529 186,012 30,161 409 2020 1,980,731

Intr-segment piEicl - -l 00 - - (1,44 (124 (03,99
Salesto external customers HEFAREF 06338 30200 21241 1457779 186,012 30,161 378 1898 1676737
Timing of revenue recognition ~~ EEDEE

Goods transferred at a point n (ime £ £ 2 &5 826,338 340,200 WM 1457779 186,012 30,161 2,785 28958 1,676,737
Segment resuls g (98,853) 84 0y (780 9,626 (3,48 313 64% (139
Unallocated income RABMA 2,798 1404 12684
Net corporate expenses SETTEH (35,463) GAB) (4094
Finance costs R (24,920) (0 (25360
(Losproit before BEERA(ER)/

income fax A (115475) 124618 9,143
Income ta expense R (26.967) (14558 (@330
(Lossproftfor the year FE(EB)/ 5 (144,441) 10060 (3438)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 5 DEERRWBA ()
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE2019F3A31BLFE
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
FREERR RLEERE
Watch Optical
Wholesale wholesale
Watch retail {rading Optical retai {rading
25 i
g5 ke ] Ra%E 3%
Hong Kong, Hong Kong,
Macau and Macau and
Mainland Rest of Mainland ~ Rest of Group
China Asia Unallocated ~~ Sub-totl (China Asia Subvtotal Total
B &k
) i R i)
RERE  ABME #3E N ORERE  ABME it it

HKSOO0  HKSODD  HKSODD  HKSOD  HKSO00  HKSOO  HKSOO0  HKSODD  HKSOMD  HKSO0D
REfR RMfR  RRfR AR ERfr BRfn BRfn RRfR RRR RRf

Capital expenditures BRURY (20,781) (8,187) (567) 61 (0147) (1,301) (271) o (15760  (31,703)
Depreciation ik (19735) (9,464) (2399 (10915) (42,533) - - - - (42533
Impairment of property, plant 4% + BERRERE

and equipment (4251 - - - (4251 - - - - (4250
Amortisation of prepaid RERAEELE

lease premium - (2,796) - - (2,796) - - - - (2,796)
Amortsaion ofintanglle asets ~ EEEHEE - - (2322 - (2322) - - - - (2320)
(Provison)write back o provision 7 (4) /&

for inventories (30,162) 1,48 31,510 - 2,5% - - - - 15%
Write back o provision/(provision) 3£ 2&HAKH

for onerous contracts B/ (&%) 4916 (761) - - 415 - - - - 415
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

5  SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 5  SHERRKA ()
As at 31 March 2019 M2019%F3 A31H

Continuing operations

Watch
wholesale
Watch retail trading
EHRTE BRI
Hong Kong,
Macau and
Mainland Rest of
China Asia Total
B =M
FR B KR HephE #act

HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT A%¥ffr  BEffr  B%¥fx

Segment assets PEHEE 582,945 150,340 462,157 1,195,442
Unallocated assets AROBMEE 786,275
Total assets BEE 1,981,717
Segment liabilities SHEE 96,014 34,963 78,691 209,668
Unallocated liabilities AOmMEE 779,949
Total liabilities FEN=Ri 989,617
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 5 DEBER R WA ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #E 201843 431 HILFEE

Continuing operations Discontinued operations
{HERERT R EEE
Waich Optical
wholesale wholesale
Watch retl trading Opticalretll trading
B 5
BHTE ke REFE ke
Hong Kong, Hong Kong,
Macauand Macauand
Mainland Rest o Mainland Rest of Group
China Asia Subvlotal China Asia Subvlofal Total
ik ik
1R K| L) i
THAE RHE N REKE  BME it it
HK$000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS000 HK§'000
B ERET BT MR BET BB BME BB B
Revenues from contracts G
with customers A
(Cross segment S 884,101 343,718 396410 1620229 1,063,450 190,575 2659 1275684 2901913
Itersegment gl - S 1A /B VATl - - @on w281
Sales o extemal customers HETIER 884,101 343,718 201305 1509122 1003450 190,575 16952 1270977 2,780,099
Segment resuls IR (52955) 431 @573 3090 444 (13140 244 B8 (1479)
Unallocated income FARIA 3,599 - 3,599
Net corporate expenses SRR (50.367) 3006 (8339)
Finance costs it (23,309 09 2550
(Lossprofitelore ncometax [ AFFERAT (BtR) /i (123394 338 (120050
Income ax expense friwbioct 22454) 7807 B0261)
Loss for the year iR (145,640) (4464 (150312
OB () A RA TR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 5 DEBE R R WA ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE 201843 431 HILFE

137

Continuing operations Discontinued operations
FRER HLaEE;
Waich Optical
wholesale wholesale
Watch retal trading Opticalretil trading
i [
BiTE i REZE ke
Hong Kong, Hong Kong,
Macau and Macau and
Mainland Restof Mainlend Restof Croup
China Asia Unallocated ~~~ Sub-total China Asia Subvtotal Total
i) il L) i
PERE  KEHE MR het RERE JRE it it
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
B ERE o P B R ERE 0 B EWE B EE
Capttal expenditures BRI 63420 (12764) (1.273) 6942 G840 (42200 (7,960) O G0ty (108564
Depreciation ik (18,052 (10420) (2,536) (13,438 [44.450) (31,113) (10,897) (73) (42,083) (66,535)
Amortisaton of prepaid BmnRENE
lease premium - 2622) - - 2622 - (3,085) - 3,085) (5,907)
Amotisaton o ntangle asel HuEpYE - - (2.376) - (2,376] - - - - 2,376)
Write back of provisonfprovision) & / (&)
for inventories 6,499 6,684 (32,108) - (18925) (5,204) 10 963 4231) 23,156)
Impaiment of proper % BB RaRAE
plant and equipment 3,195) (351) - - 3,546) (5,120 M) - (7391) 10,937)
Impairment of ntangible asset EyEERE - - 6027) - (0273) - - - - 60273
Write back of provison/provison) for sk FE& A4
Onerous conrac' /) B - - - Bw 2575 (67 - 186 B0
Re-measurement f defered EHREEMRERA
consideration payable n (BRI
respect of acquistion of a —HFA)
subsiary n prir years - - 10,000 - 10,000 - - - - 10,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

5  SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 5 2BERRWA (4
As at 31 March 2018 A20184E3 H31 H

Disposal group (e reclassified to assets clasified as held for sale

The Croups other than Disposal group and liabilies associated with assets classifid! as held for sale]
HERR ERERGETLEEER
HERELER ik E SRR AR
Watch Optical
wholesale wholesale
Watch retal trading Optical etal frading
i L]
iR iked RETE iked
Hong Kong, Hong Kong,
Macauand Macau and
Mainland Rest of Mainland Rest of Group
China Asia Sub-otal China Asia Sub-otal Total
R B
1R i 1R i
TRAE  HBRHE U st it

HKSOD  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSOD0  HKSOD0  HKSOD0  HKSOW  HKSOm
B BN BT MR BB #Mi EM ER W

Segment assels AibkE 564,864 97 59535 1290336 3349 105917 1703 58134 1748470
Unallocated assets KORHE 746,747 156720 903469
Totalasset FAEE 2,037,083 614856 2651939
Segment abilies MivaE 0357 4137 0406 B 189,083 600 Bo 24619 546756
Unallocated lablies FARERE 994 598 §1800 1,076,400
Totalliabliies Bak 132673 W64 1623156
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PR ER AR B

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 5 PEHERRWA (4)
Geographical information wEER
An analysis of the Group's revenue by geographical area is Fe i o3 AT R B AT
as follows:
Continuing operations BEEEXY
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT WA T
Hong Kong R 721,668 751,520
Macau e 115,553 119,501
Mainland China Sl PNES 128,906 146,318
Rest of Asia PR i 489,154 489,864
Europe el 2,498 1,919
1,457,779 1,509,122
Discontinued operations RIERBXEK
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Hong Kong ik 145,265 824,810
Macau A 9,956 58,452
Mainland China EaEpN %4 32,741 191,013
Rest of Asia CHNIEEN 3200 30,996 196,702
218,958 1,270,977
The revenue information above is based on the locations of AR AE R TR R A A o

the customers.

No revenue transactions with a single external customer A SRR B R AN A
which amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue A EIAR10%E LA F (20184 « M) o

during the year (2018: nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 5 DEBER R WA (4)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue TEREIIFEABRE WS L AENEL R
recognised in the current reporting period that were AT T BE R B A 0 2 00 T R S A <

included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:

Revenue recognised that was included in contract liabilities RS IR A S H AR C R
at the beginning of the reporting period:

2019
HK$'000
BT
Sale of watch and optics products S S gk IR B i 2,887
Performance obligations BREE
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is AT BAA SR R 40 BAT O RS 4
summarized below:
Sale of watch and optics products B B A R RS
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery JBHVFAT A S BV R A > AR EZ L)
of the goods and payment is mainly on cash and credit Blasifd I R&E > Mg E SRS - H
card settlement, except for wholesale customers, where AT B S SR AT 3K o B4 20194F 3
payment is due within credit period from delivery. As the J131 H TR BRI 0 T AT (R 2 5570 AR
remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially ) JE T AR A R I R — AR B L R A
unsatisfied) as at 31 March 2019 are part of contracts that I —E 5 ARIEE W I RIS 15
have an original expected duration of one year or less, SERREEL T o AR B2 By A o

the transaction price allocated to which is not presented
according to practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 5 PEHERRWKA (4)
Geographical information(Continued) wEE R (A7)
An analysis of the Group’s segment results by geographical 22 3t 5 73 AT 4R 1 B SEAAN R

area is as follows:

Continuing operations HEEEXY
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT WA T
Hong Kong Tk (37,872) 7,501
Macau e 18,843 22,524
Mainland China SHE PN (43,520) (59,444)
Rest of Asia HPH B s 15,659 22,967
Europe Gl (11,000) (46,845)
(57,890) (53,297)

Discontinued operations RiIEEBEK
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Hong Kong ik 15,632 70,345
Macau Y 2,242 11,536
Mainland China EHZ PN (7,896) (29,546)
Rest of Asia CHNIREN 3000 (3,482) (13,767)
6,496 38,568
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g s b

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 5 DEBER R WA ()

e il o3 W AR T R B A (AT (EIE AR
Ay 2 ThT WA 4 51 R ) P 03 458 T I A0 S o T

An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other
than equity investments at fair value through other

comprehensive income and deferred tax assets) by

geographical area is as follows:

ERERRSN W

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T AT
Hong Kong s 375,065 365,919
Macau e 360,574 158,675
Mainland China R R 10,858 18,525
Rest of Asia CHE/INEN:7 3201 97,264 106,630
Europe el 39,598 43,646
883,359 693,395
OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 6  Hftt(&|) Wi o FE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Loss on disposal of property, EWE - BRES R R 1E
plant and equipment, net T (3,841) (786)
Exchange (losses)/gain, net FESE (1) Wieas > TR (16,141) 12,033
Re-measurement of deferred IR A A A A
consideration payable in respect (5 BA LA AF BE U — ] 7w
of acquisition of a subsidiary
in a prior year - 10,000
(19,982) 21,247
OTHER INCOME 7 HbgA
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Building management fee income MFEREIRA 2,340 2,340
Rental income FHA A 9,148 2,729
Dividend income from unlisted I s
equity investments R RA 2,798 3,599
Interest income FE A 1,096 1,180
Sundries ETE 3,418 5,271
Shared service income I IRB A 22,824 -
41,624 15,119

B () A RA A
2019 4F4F-H

142
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A RS R R B o

8.  EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 RMEITHEAR
The Group’s loss before income tax from continuing AR H Y R S B S R BL AT B R E 4
operations has been derived after debiting or (crediting) the B/ (GEA) HERBUTIEHE > ABRCK
following items in the income statement. Further details 1 SR 0 M B A £ R A — A R
of the corresponding income statement for discontinued ISR LM ES o

operations are included in note 5 to the financial statements.

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Cost of inventories sold and raw A B INA B EHE AR
materials consumed 718,595 740,468
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 16) {#&5MESE & Z (BifsE 16) 2,322 2,376
Amortisation of prepaid S e AT AR B A (B3R 15)
lease premium (note 15) 2,796 2,822
Depreciation of property, W3 ~ B SRR R (B3E13)
plant and equipment (note 13) 42,533 44,452
Impairment loss of property, WIS ~ HEAS S (KT 13)
plant and equipment (note 13) 4,251 3,546
Loss on disposal of property, B - B S Y 1R
plant and equipment 3,841 786
Impairment loss of intangible assets TR A WA (FRE 16)
(note 16) - 30,273
Write back of provision for ARG H B0 )
onerous contracts (4,155) (23,097)
Auditor’s remuneration A BRI <5
— Audit services — R HOIRHS 3,045 3,148
— Non-audit services — FERZ B 1,286 1,585
Operating leases on buildings BTEEEE 289,582 333,042
(Write back of provision)/provision for R (B
inventories (2,596) 18,925
Reversal of impairment of BERMEAR S ] (3T 20)
trade receivables (note 20) (386) (64)
Employee benefit expenses (note 9) i BAR A S (R 9) 312,844 324,122
Re-measurement of deferred consideration 51 &4 FET A WA (4 B LA
payable in respect of acquisition of a R R AR
subsidiary in a prior year - (10,000)
1 43 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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g s b

9  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES EEEFIZH
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Salaries and allowances M B R 284,632 298,328
Pension contributions less BARE K (TR BiE

forfeiture utilised (Note a) WtER) (it a) 23,465 23,070
Others HoAt 4,747 2,724
312,844 324,122

(@)  Pensions-defined contribution plans (@) B EEMKE

The Group operated a retirement scheme under
Occupation Retirement Scheme Ordinance (“ORSO
scheme”) up to 30 November 2000 for employees
in Hong Kong. With effect from 1 December 2000,
a mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) scheme is set
up which is available to eligible employees of the
Group, including executive directors of the Company.
No further employees and contributions have been
added to the ORSO scheme after the set up of MPF.
Contributions to the MPF scheme by the Group and
employees are calculated at rates specified in the rules
of the MPF scheme. The assets of the MPF scheme and
ORSO scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.

For subsidiaries outside Hong Kong, contributions to
the local pension schemes are made by the Group
and relevant employees, which are calculated at rates
specified in the rules of the local pension schemes.
The assets of the pension scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund.

Forfeited contributions totalling HK$2,337,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: HK$2,583,000)
arising from employees leaving the ORSO scheme
of the Continuing Operations, were utilised to offset
contributions during the year.

B E2000411 H30H & 1F > A %
VAR e S AR AR B A ) o 5 0 [
BRAURIRFIE - 52000412 A1
HtE - AR 42 B s il il e A R 4 mt 1
(MG wrE ) - AL A EKIRE
B (EIEARAFITHESR) HEHS
B o A KR B 1) 3B AT A
A A T AR A i o e 1 R i B
W KFRERE o SRRE G mt S0 G aE B A
LM G EE A BAREA o F fh E AT
HEEATHEM -

B LA B 3 mI T > ARG
Je A 5 3 iR AR & R ) 1 A it
A T AR AR BRI B
W KPR o BIREFTH 2 B BLA
SR 2B A > ek S
REATEM -

BAE2019F3 A3 HILEFE R > £F
SR SRS R B I IRV i 2 B 2
AR R ER A A A 2,337,000 T
(20184F : # % 2,583,000 C) > E#
& FH UGS A R HEK o
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9  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 9 EEEFXE )
(b)  Five highest paid individuals b HEEUESHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the IRAE FE A AE [ 4% B = BN LS
highest in the Group for the year include two (2018: T4 (20184F - ) EE > HHTNEE
two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the 1B B A EEE 35 40 Hr iR Sk -

analysis shown in note 35.

The emoluments payable to the remaining three AR REA T E s i = 4
(2018: three) highest paid individuals during the year (20184 « =4) ATLZM&unT -

are as follows:

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Basic salaries, allowance A A > B EY R

and benefits in kind 3,950 3,912
Performance bonus RIBUEAL 5,205 4,925
Contributions to pension plans BT B A K 181 171
9,336 9,008

The emoluments fell within the following bands: AR T HII AR

Number of individuals

AH
2019 2018
Emolument bands (in HK dollars) — #MHALA (%)
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000  #% 2,500,001 JLE#H 3,000,000 7C 1 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000  #5#%3,000,001 Jt £ #5¥% 3,500,000 I 1 2
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000  #5%%3,500,001 Jt £ #5 %% 4,000,000 JG 1 -
3 3
()  Senior management emoluments (00 EREEBEAEHMS
The emoluments fell within the following bands: WA RIS L T

Number of individuals

AE
2019 2018
Emolument bands (in HK dollars) — ZrEHALA (#%)
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000  i#% 3,000,001 7t £ # ¥ 3,500,000 JC - 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 % 3,500,001 7t % # ¥ 4,000,000 I 1 —
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10 FINANCE COSTS 10 BAESRLAR
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Interest on interest bearing bank R SRAT B BB S AR
borrowings and overdrafts 24,913 23,302
Interest on finance leases g AR 7 7
24,920 23,309
11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11 S8
Hong Kong and Thailand profit taxes have been provided B 20194E3 H 31 H 1A B A vl S %% 1 Al
at the rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) and 20% (2018: 20%) 03 AR 8 T 380 ) B TEAR O A A
respectively, on the estimated assessable profits for the JRE FRB i ) 23 Al 4% B 16.5% (2018 4F -
year ended 31 March 2019 less tax relief, if any. Taxation 16.5%) 5220% (2018 4F : 20%) "t o H Rk
on the remaining overseas profits has been calculated on T S RSB T AR B A7 TR0 A0k et IR R i ) 4
the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of 7 T 56 7 b e 1 8 PR B R L o
taxation prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.
The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated E Rt AL I R TR
income statement represents:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Current income tax A Pt
— Hong Kong profits tax —HUEAIGEL 7,500 6,242
— Overseas profits tax — AR 23,041 5,532
- Under/(over) provisions in — WA
respect of prior years BEHL a%) 192 (76)
30,733 11,698
Deferred income tax TEAE T A3 12,792 18,563
Income tax expense AR Bl s 43,525 30,261
Income tax expense is attributable to: PUF BEAL T3 B 3
— Continuing operations — RS T 28,967 22,454
— Discontinued operations — H b R 2,281 7,807
- Gain on disposal of — A Il E
discontinued operations L& 12,277 -
43,525 30,261
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE(Continued) 11 B8 H (%)

A S T 4 KL R B A5 BRI e 180 R R B
TH > B A5 78 4 [ ) 2 B % (Ol

The taxation on the Group’s loss before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

applicable tax rates, being the weighted average of tax rates SR TR B B IEAT 22 ] 0 REIR A
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates, I
as follows:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Loss from continuing operations FRAE T SE 5 R B A5 B AT s 18
before income tax expense (115,475) (123,394)
Profit from discontinued operations R LTRSS R T A I 2 A
before income tax expense 124,618 3,343
9,143 (120,051)
Theoretical tax at weighted average rate & fIIHET-3 % -18.64% (2018 4F :
of -18.64% (2018: 25.47%) 25.47%) st 5 i i Bl 1A (1,704) (30,578)
Income not subject to tax T AR BRI (6,905) (5,472)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose A~ A F0A Y BA 52 11,207 18,544
Recognition of temporary differences TR AL AR R W SR Y 1 P 2 B
not previously recognised 13,031 6,152
Utilisation of previously unrecognised i AR A R e RR I B A RS 1R
tax losses (16,124) (3,233)
Tax losses not recognised AT R A T e 1 31,648 44,852
Adjustment in respect of current tax of A A B i A B A
prior years 192 (76)
Others oA, 65 252
Tax on capital gain of
discontinued operations K IR S 2 AN I AR E A O BLIH 12,277 -
Tax relief B AL A (162) (180)
Income tax expense AR s 43,525 30,261

The weighted average applicable tax rate was -18.64%
(2018: 25.47%). The decrease is caused by a change in the
distribution of profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in the
respective countries.
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PR ER AR B

12

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY 12

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Basic

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the Group’s
loss attributable to equity holders of the Company by the

E-¥N

RARERFEARGERER

5 B A M 1R DUAR AR 4 R HE i 45 A B
e FR B DL L A7 38 2 B Y- 3% Bl

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during e
the year.
2019 2018

Loss from continuing operations AN I RE S A N B A 354

attributable to equity holders of BE R R GETTT)

the Company (HK$'000) (144,611) (146,113)
Profit/(loss) from discontinued AN R RE A 1A ARG A% 1

operations attributable to equity EHEHN R (ER)

holders of the Company (HK$'000) (A T) 110,060 (4,464)
Loss attributable to equity holders of AN FIHERR 35 A A REAG B 1R

the Company (HK$'000) (WA IT) (34,551) (150,577)
Weighted average number of E 84T 2 - 1

ordinary shares in issue (thousands) (DA RET) 1,046,474 1,046,474
Basic loss per share from continuing RS SE 5 1 R A 1R A1)

operations (HK cents) (13.82) (13.96)
Basic earnings/(loss) per share from KRB ISR R, (kG1R)

discontinued operations (HK cents) (A&l 10.52 (0.43)
Basic loss per share attributable to the AR AR AR R A REAS

equity holders of the Company T SR HEAS 1R (L)

(HK cents) (3.30) (14.39)

Diluted

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share amounts for the years
ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 are the same as the
basic (loss)/earnings per share amounts as there were no
potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issues during two

years.

s

#HE201943 H31 H&X20184E3 A31 HIE
R RN (R9R) R 4 R A
AR (E18) /BRI AR - BB
B LB R N A A R A o
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13

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 Y% BERBE
Equipment,
Leasehold leasehold
landand  improvements
buildings and others Total
BN
HE RELE R
T S Je Hoth Fk ]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AT X R AT T
Year ended 31 March 2018 BZE2018F3A31 BLEE
Opening net book amount A A T ¢ A 286,077 117,136 403,213
Additions NE - 107,550 107,550
Disposals/write off W R - (3,691) (3,691)
Depreciation fres (7,563) (78,972) (86,535)
Impairment loss (note (c)) WA (BT () - (10,937) (10,937)
Revaluation upon transfer to LLEXa<¢7EF A11E
investment properties 201,644 - 201,644
Transfer to investment properties G (M 14)
(note 14) (230,000) - (230,000)
Transfer to assets classified as held W R E T S
for sale (13,055) (58,461) (71,516)
Exchange realignment HEE 5 A A 4,737 8,307 13,044
Closing net book amount AR T AR 241,840 80,932 322,772
At 31 March 2018 R20185F3 A31H
Cost A 361,690 408,104 769,794
Accumulated depreciation R Ko
and impairment loss (119,850) (327,172) (447,022)
Net book amount RREE 241,840 80,932 322,772
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13 W% - WEBRZE )
Equipment,
Leasehold leasehold
landand  improvements
buildings and others Total
=fE - HE
HE EHEUER
T REF R EHAth oG]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BB BEHT BEATT
Year ended 31 March 2019 HZE2019F3A31HLEE
Opening net book amount AR T 3 4 241,840 80,932 322,772
Additions RE 770 29,377 30,147
Disposals/write off HEE R - (6,578) (6,578)
Depreciation s (5,193) (37,340) (42,533)
Impairment loss (note (c)) BAE (B EE (o) - (4,251) 4,251)
Revaluation upon transfer to LLEX e <¢7E 1€
investment properties 225,498 - 225,498
Transfer to investment properties ek §<¢7/E
(note 14) (Bft5E 14) (356,100) - (356,100)
Exchange realignment fE 58 2= %A (1,768) (1,776) (3,544)
Closing net book amount AR AR 105,047 60,364 165,411
At 31 March 2019 M2019%63A318
Cost A 217,104 378,641 595,745
Accumulated depreciation BT KA
and impairment loss (112,057) (318,277) (430,334)
Net book amount AR T 4 105,047 60,364 165,411
Notes: B 5k
(@)  Equipment include the following amounts where the Group (@) RCEFHE AR EAE R R R R
is a lessee under a finance lease (refer to note 26 for further N GERGEOR B L 26) -
details)
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT WA IT
Cost AR 217 224
Accumulated depreciation 2EHrE (166) (115)
Net book amount S T 9 51 109
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13 W% WESRERE ()

(b) Depreciation expense of HK$27,538,000 (2018: (b) ¥ #% % A # 27,538,000 G (2018
HK$27,956,000) has been charged to selling F 0 ¥ %5 27,956,0000) B EFA S
expenses, HK$14,995,000 (2018: HK$16,496,000) O~ #E#14,995,000 G (2018 4F -
has been charged to general and administrative 5 #16,496,000C ) B 5 A — B K
expenses and Nil (2018: HK$42,083,000) has been TTECSCH B s 00T (20184F -
charged to loss for the prior year from Discontinued 42,083,000 7C) & 5F A LE A £ 1 &
Operations. EF NI E o

() The Group regards its individual retail stores (€) A5 H AR H AW Bl 2245k 6l £ 98 S5z A
as separately identifiable CGUs. It assessed the A B 4 E A B o 1T RT Al RT e )
recoverable amounts of the CGUs with reference to ZHEEEHNRERZELTYE
their value-in-use. During the year ended 31 March Lo i g e > 5201943 1
2019, an impairment provision of HK$4,251,000 31 H - PR 0 4 3 2% ol [l JH R i
(2018: HK$3,546,000) from continuing operations A WOwk H AR o (B > R
and Nil from Discontinued Operations (2018: 2L W5 W W 4,251,000 JC (2018 4F -
HK$7,391,000) were made as their carrying values ¥ 3,546,000 70) M &% IF 5 T
are not expected to be fully recoverable. Impairment #WO0IC (20184 ¥ ¥ 7,391,000
loss was included in other operating expenses in JG) o A SETS 0 (e TR A
the consolidated income statement for continuing A Gl Ry b S -
operations.

(d) Certain of the Group’s property, plant and (d) LB - B LS
equipment amounting to HK$69,556,000 (2018: 69,556,0007T (20184F : 222,711,000
HK$222,711,000) have been pledged to secure for the J6) B AG SRAT A GG TR SRAT K
Group’s interest-bearing borrowings (note 30). (K51 30) »

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14 REWHE

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT T

At beginning of the year AT 230,000 -
Transfer from property, plant and SEVE DR =tV EIT L IN

equipment (Note 13) (BE5E13) 356,100 230,000

At end of the year NGRS 586,100 230,000

During the year, the Group transferred three (2018: one)

owner occupied properties to investment properties.

The investment properties were revalued by independent
professionally qualified valuer as at the date of transfer when
they were transferred from property, plant and equipment,
and as at balance sheet dates.
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PR ER AR B

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14 BREVR (4
(i) Amount recognised in income statement for (i) BEVEREZRIEINEH
investment properties
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Rental income FHA A 7,359 2,032
Direct operating expenses from FEAETBIA R HEZ
properties which generated HIEEE S
rental income (335) (443)
7,024 1,589
(i) Leasing arrangements iy HEZH
Commitments for minimum lease payments 15 ) S IRE A o TG AL 5 R TE A B
receivable on leases of the investment properties are 31(b) °
set out in note 31(b).
(iii) Pledge (i) EH
The Group's investment properties have been pledged AL ] B B0 26 O R 4R SR AT LU
to secure for the Group’s interest-bearing bank Wt BERAT B (BE30) o
borrowings (note 30).
15 PREPAID LEASE PREMIUM 15 BAEERE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
At beginning of the year TR 14,266 31,282
Additions NE - 1,015
Amortisation 55 (2,796) (5,907)
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale ¥4 %5 7348 2 F5 A vl {16 85 & - (14,343)
Exchange realignment [ifE 50, 25 %A (335) 3,278
Disposal i - (1,059
At end of the year NS 11,135 14,266
Amortisation for prepaid lease premium for premises was Y SETEAS AH B A BE S IR AR S U AR R A
included in selling expenses in the consolidated income FEASE S o
statement.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16 B\BEEE
Technical
Goodwill  Trademarks know-how Total
[k g BEERM bl
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T WA AT WA
Year ended 31 March 2018 BZ2018F3A31HLLFE
Opening net book amount AR T A 9,891 53,786 36,022 99,699
Amortisation (Note 8) HESY (FEE8) - - (2,376) (2,376)
Impairment loss (Note 8) JAE (R EE8) - - (30,273) (30,273)
Exchange differences BEE 51,2 882 892 612 2,386
Closing net book amount FEHE T AR 10,773 54,678 3,985 69,436
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3A31H
Cost AR 10,773 84,584 75,195 170,552
Accumulated amortisation ST KR
and impairment loss - (29,906) (71,210) (101,116)
Net book amount 1 T VA 10,773 54,678 3,985 69,436
Year ended 31 March 2019 BZE2019F3A31ALEE
Opening net book amount AEAT) R T (EL 10,773 54,678 3,985 69,436
Amortisation (Note 8) g (FffaE8) - - (2,322) (2,322)
Exchange differences BEE 51,75 73 (445) (644) (392) (1,481)
Closing net book amount AR R T A 10,328 54,034 1,271 65,633
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3A31R
Cost %S 10,328 83,940 74,420 168,688
Accumulated amortisation ESE S QT
and impairment loss - (29,906) (73,149) (103,055)
Net book amount MR T A 10,328 54,034 1,271 65,633

STELUX Holdings International Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2019




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

16

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Impairment test for technical know-how

In order to secure the supply of mechanical movements in
the future, the Group acquired CATENA SA, a Swiss watch
movement manufacturer, and recognised an identified
technical know-how of HK$70,816,000 in 2015. In light
of the overall downward trend in market prices of the
Swiss-made mechanical watch movements, management
has performed an impairment assessment for the technical
know-how as at 31 March 2019 and 2018, taking into
account the current market condition and production plan
of CATENA SA.

For the purpose of the impairment test, management
prepared its cash flow projections to determine the
recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of the technical know-how is
determined at the higher of value-in-use and fair value less
costs of disposal. Management engaged an independent
external valuer in determining the recoverable amount of
the technical know-how using the value-in-use calculations
based on discount cash flow approach and various key
assumptions and estimate including:

1. Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the
seven-year budget period of 1% (2018: 1%).

2. Growth rate used within the seven-year budget period
of 8.6% (2018: 8.6%).

3. Pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections
of 13.7% (2018: 13.7%). The discount rate used
reflects specific risk related to the Group’s watch
movement manufacturing business.

Based on the result of the impairment assessment, the Group
has not made any impairment loss (2018: HK$30,273,000)
for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Should there be any 2% decrease in growth rate and within
the seven-year budget period, it would cause the carrying
value of the technical know-how of HK$3,985,000 to be
fully impaired for the year ended 31 March 2018.

16

BILEE (4)
ERE AT RE R

T AR B AR B B AR 2 1 (L HE > AR AR
2015 A i ity - 8% $% 2E 25 7 CATENA SA >
Sl R AT bk ) B S Al 2 5 ¥ 70,816,000
G o $E i AR E B ) TR 1 T 35
fEA% T e EHECR20194F3 A 31
H % 201843 A 31 H i 5 26 H i3 47 Wi (B
FEAL S B ET L BATTHTIL L CATENA SARY
A E T o

SRR B AT - 8 B A B IR
T DA E AT i ] < o

ST A T W ] < R AR AR A P R (R S
D PAE R IR 25 AR BAS 3 F A B T
B FEE o P 2 T M S A0 A (e A AR 5
I 5 B < U B A%l R A T o
S B S (5 0 {68 (L W 9 T i [
B4

1. TV B R R b 4 1 BB ) ) B 4 T
ERE1% (20184 : 1%) ©

2. R LCAETEE A R EE S F A
RBHE8.6% (20184F : 8.6%) ©

3. MER SR ENR ERBRTITER A
13.7% (2018 4F : 13.7%) ° A A4 i
I WA B A A [ 8 ik A A T
1 5 B -

RN AR > REFREE 2019
AE3 31 H Lk A NI A AT ] (R A
(20184F = #:H 30,273,000 7C) °

201843 31 HIHAEEL HN-EAEHEE
WA A R R RN 2% » 2
O T (B 3,985,000 T A B2 4 1l 2358
A -

B () A RA A
2019 4F4FH
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16

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Impairment test for trademarks

Management tests annually whether the trademarks suffered
any impairment by considering the economic benefit
generated from the trademarks. The recoverable amount
is determined based on a value-in-use calculation. This
calculation uses pre-tax cash flow projections based on
financial budgets performed by management covering a
five-year period. Management determined the financial
budget based on past performance and its expectations for
the market development.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation are as
follows:

1. Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the
five-year budget period of 0% (2018: 1%).

2. Growth rate used within the five-year budget period
of 0% (2018: 2% to 4%)which was considered
reasonable with reference to subsequent sales growth
rate.

3. Pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections
of 10% (2018: 14%). The discount rate used reflects
specific risks related to the Group.

Management believes that any reasonably foreseeable
change in any of the above key assumptions would not
cause the carrying amount of trademarks to exceed the
recoverable amount significantly.

No impairment provision on trademarks was made during
the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: nil).

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Impairment test for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified
according to business segment. The goodwill is attributable
to the watch wholesale trading operations.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculation. This calculation uses pre-tax
cash flow projections based on financial budgets performed
by management covering a five-year period. Management
determined the financial budgets based on past performance
and its expectations for the market development. Cash
flows beyond the five year period are extrapolated using the
estimated growth rate stated below.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation are as
follows:

1. Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the
five-year budget period of 0% (2018: 0%).

2. Growth rate used within the five-year budget period
of 0% (2018: 0%) which does not exceed historical
growth rate.

3. Pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections
of 10% (2018: 14%). The discount rate used reflects
specific risks related to the Group.

Management believes that any reasonably foreseeable
change in any of the above key assumptions would not
cause the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed the
recoverable amount significantly.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, there was no
impairment on the CGUs containing goodwill (2018: nil).
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17 EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 17 RAFEZEBRHMZEWRRIERNRGR
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/AVAILABLE-FOR- &/ AHHENTBEE
SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT T

Equity investments at fair value through RAVEHEBEMEE KNS

other comprehensive income FIRNBRHIRE

Unlisted equity investments, at fair value F i w] (AFE) 14,970 -

14,970 -
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHENHBEE
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value I LA (AFH) - 12,374

- 12,374

As at 1 April 2019, the above equity investments were BE2019F4 A1 H > Hiltmge AT
irrevocably designated at fair value through other S 3t 5 2 2Ry e R0 2 A 2 TR i
comprehensive income as the Group considers these BB - T o i AR B B R 2 o S B SR
investments to be strategic in nature. Y -
During the year ended 31 March 2019, the fair value gain #WE 201943 431 HILAERE > it HAb A 1H
in respect of the Group’s equity investments at fair value WA i e R ) A R [ e T (95 e H At 2 T
through other comprehensive income recognised in other Wi it 51 B ) A7 45 Wi i 77 R 2,596,000
comprehensive income amounted to HK$2,596,000. JG °
During the year ended 31 March 2018, fair value gain in WA 201843 131 H IR » A HAb 4
respect of the Group’s available-for-sale financial assets e i ik w14 AR S T T 3 B ) B S
recognised in other comprehensive income amounted to #5 A e 1,141,000 7C ©

HK$1,141,000.

1 57 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 18 S£RMIEDE
Equity
investments
at fair
Financial value through
assets Available-for- other
at amortised Loansand  sale financial ~ comprehensive
costs receivables assets income Total
BATEER
REBHEAR Hit2E
FTEN B¥R MEHEN KR 5IR A
HBEE B HBEE RiRE ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T R TR A R
Assets as per consolidated REREE
halance sheet BERNEE
At 31 March 2019 12019F3A318
Equity investments at fair value WATHBRAM AT
through other comprehensive income s 51 IR 1% & - - - 14,970 14,970
Trade and other receivables g5~ KRR
and deposits Y%A 218,806 - - - 218,806
Cash and cash equivalents and Be BB F BRI
pledge bank deposit LIS N 291,518 - - - 291,518
Total st 510,324 - - 14,970 525,294
At 31 March 2018 #2018 35318
Available-for-sale financial assets W R R - - 12,374 - 12,374
Trade and other receivables B EAELORE
and deposits R4 - 387,545 - - 387,545
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RBAE Y - 246,278 - - 246,278
Total gt - 633,823 12,374 - 646,197

B () A RA A
2019 4F4FH



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Continued) 18 S£RMIEDE )
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
LU AT B
W E &
HK$’000
AT T
Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet mEEEREBRANAE
At 31 March 2019 R2019%3A31H
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FEESRAT R AL K 688,301
Trade and other payables 5 5 B A REA K 227,106
Total Rt 915,407
At 31 March 2018 R2018%3A31H
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FERERAT M AL R 934,409
Trade and other payables B 5 Be H A AT HR K 342,650
Total AT 1,277,059
19 INVENTORIES 19 FE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Raw materials JEAL R} 130,073 141,611
Work-in-progress e bl 5,561 14,237
Finished goods LT 630,103 723,152
765,737 879,000
Less: Provision for inventories W R R (205,908) (208,137)
559,829 670,863
The cost of inventories sold recognised as expense and AEE 20194F3 A 31 H IL4F B C RS £ Bl
included in cost of sales for continuing operations amounted SO AR A A TS Y B AR N I AF
to HK$718,595,000 during the year ended 31 March 2019 A By s M5 718,595,000 UG (2018 4F +
(2018: HK$740,468,000). #% 740,468,000 JC) °
1 59 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20 EBEZRHEMERERR
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Trade receivables, gross JEUSE 5 MRk - Aa%A 86,036 246,450

Less: loss allowance for impairment of T+ MR 5 R ) B (B

trade receivables (Note (b)) (FF5E (b)) (494) (933)
Trade receivables, net (Note (a)) W 5 Wk > 1R (BiEE () 85,542 245,517
Deposits iz 95,148 109,015
Other receivables Al B AR 38,116 33,013
Prepayment TE A FKIE 18,762 21,078
237,568 408,623
Less: non-current portion W FEMBE A (55,080) (56,921)
Current portion TRy 182,488 351,702

At 31

March 2019 and 2018, the ageing analysis of the trade

receivables based on invoice date is as follows:

A201943 H31 H % 201843 H31 H » %
BEZLH W) N 5 IRERE T -

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT

0-60 days 0-60 K 35,027 53,825

Over 60 days 60 KV E 51,009 192,625

86,036 246,450

Notes: e 5

(@ The Group engages designated import and export agents for (@)  ALEEIEEAE RS AR R U R

the importation of products from the subsidiaries in Hong
Kong to the subsidiaries in the Mainland China. The balances
due from and due to the import and export agents are settled
on a back-to-back basis, and such balances are repayable on
demand. The Group’s trade receivables and trade payables
include balances due from and due to the import and export
agents of HK$33,096,000 as at 31 March 2019 (2018:
HK$174,961,000).

Other than the balances due from the import and export
agents, the Group allows an average credit period of 60 days
from the invoice date to its trade receivables.

JBS 4 B S LA T M ) B A D o TRE
To MEAH 3 b 0 AR TR B 45 i T 4% (7] 45 A )
JRE 4 BRGSO IS S S BRI B R A o ]
201943 A 31 H - 7 4 8 18 i I 3k %
JAE A B 26 55 B o B JRE A ot s 0 AR P 65
% B 7 33,096,000 7T (2018 4F : #k I
174,961,000 JC) ©

i M o B JRE A1 2t A C R A S5 R A0 > AR
B4 T H I 2 Rk 8 2 R EHT Y
60 KI5 & -

B () A RA A
2019 4F4FH
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20

(@)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20 EZRAEMBUIRT A
Notes: (Continued) fitst = (48)
(Continued) (@) (#45)
Balances that are neither past due nor impaired relate to Sz A7 1) B ) 455 % 0 R 22 44 NI A
a number of independent customers whom there was no BEAR S LK -
relevant history of default.
As at 31 March 2018, included in the Group’s trade 201843 H31 H » AN B RENTHE 5 IR
receivables were debtors with a carrying amount of B HE B 1 5 5 20,898,000 T I E
HK$20,898,000 which were past due but not impaired. The FRIE > A B AR TE B Y W AR o %5
ageing analysis of these trade receivables based on due dates FENCEL 5 MRk 21 41 B 2Z BRES AT N T
is as follows:
2018
HK$’000
AR TH
Overdue: wiil
Within 1 year 14E 20,091
1-2 years 1-2 4 642
2-3 years 234 165
20,898
Trade receivables as at 31 March 2018 that were past due but BE 201843 431 H T W E AW (E 1 e
not impaired related to a number of independent customers W B MR 2 LR F A - AR
for whom there was no recent history of default. Based on ST A R G B o AR TR AR - B2
past experience, management believed that no impairment A BB OIRIE Y 5 BRI A R e
allowance was necessary in respect of these balances as there 8 JORAA Ay AT LA SOl ] o R I
had not been a significant change in credit quality and the AR s A1 ) AR © AR 412 0 0 0 i
balances were still considered fully receivable. The Group FL 5 TR A ATHEA o
did not hold any collateral over these balances.
As at 31 March 2019, trade receivables with carrying amount (b)  JA20194FE3 H31H - MR W EH & %

of HK$494,000 (2018: HK$933,000) was past due and
impaired. Movements on the loss allowance for impairment
of trade receivables are as follows:

494,000 7T (2018 4F = #57%933,0007t) 1
JRESC B o M 3 3 D8I 1 i (L o B
W 5 W 0 B e st d

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000

BEAT T WAoo

At 1 April w41 H 933 1,253

Reversal of impairment lossess AR [ (386) (209)
Transferred to assets classified as A R SRR T R 0

held for sale - (226)

Exchange realignment [ifE Jo. 25 %0 (53) 115

At 31 March M3 H31TH 494 933

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended 31 March
2019

An impairment analysis is performed at 31 March 2019 using
a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e.,
by geographical region, and customer type). The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value
of money and reasonable and supportable information that
is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off when the counter
party is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovering e.g under liquidation or entered into
bankruptcy.

Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended 31 March
2018

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables, which was measured based on incurred
credit losses under HKAS 39, as at 31 March 2018 was
a provision for individually impaired trade receivables of
HK$933,000 with a carrying amount before provision of
HK$246,450,000.

The individually impaired trade receivables as at 31 March
2018 related to customers that were in financial difficulties
or were in default in interest and/or principal payments and
only a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.

20

5 REAmRYIRR ()

(b)

(#%)

(#%)

BE 201993 H 31 H I /L IRIFE 18 T
HRAERIZE 9 982 I (H

ALEFEF 201943 H 31 H i i #4854 i
B > DISHE TG SR - B
R HL N B A B I B ({51 U0 43¢ 1 s
DL B PR e w2 A58 & P oA
Al 2 4 B K S E o AR B RT S B e n] fEME
TIRESS S~ B 2 IRe B 7 DA S Sidty B
WA ARG B A i 2 B R h] R
b~ E R DA B R A A R DL o —
MU+ 5 538 5y 3 T W s e T 1Y) B A B
L A B /S AN i [ B (52 5 )
T A5 M BB FE ) > %R e T

HE201843 H 31 H IFFEIRIFE BB
HREERE 39 $ES Wil

i RE W 2 o B Tl (A A T A T
FHHE RIS 39 BRI T B A AR A (5 S R Rt
B o A20184E3 A 31 H - (B %
AR U 1 933,00000 - N M AT > H
% TR (B 2 5 W5 246,450,000 TG ©

201843 H31 H » flAI 2 WifE ) Bl
W T I A A B 5 B B sl
JEA B ITE DL AR SR B TE R i a5
3 MBS BRI E L Yk (3 £ -
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21
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20 EZRAEMBYIRT A

Notes: (Continued) st - ()

(b)  (Continued) b) (A7)

The creation and release of loss allowance for impaired BT R 43 n) 2 RENC R B W EB I E R A
receivables have been included in other operating expenses FR A aR AR A [ HAE S | A o FEARE
in the consolidated income statement. Amounts charged to R MR 4 4R — P TS AS TR (] R A B
the allowance account are generally written off when there is & IRFHES

no expectation of recovering additional cash.

(c)  Trade and other receivables included amount due from (c) B S B Ho Al g B 2KCEL 35 R A B B S D
related companies of HK$8,451,000 (2018: HK$5,479,000). 14 35 JEL 08,451,000 78 (2018 4F « i
Details of amounts due from related companies are disclosed 5,479,000 7C) © ME U BT 28 ) OB RS R
in note 32. WAL 32 4% -

() An analysis of trade and other receivables and deposits and (d) E5 AR ~ 4 R TE A R
prepayments by currency is as follows: BTN

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT T

Hong Kong dollars i 89,738 271,868
Renminbi N 52,930 48,781
Singapore dollars MY 24,170 23,104
Malaysian ringgit RS AT i 47 28,910 37,604
Thai bahts ES 7S 10,391 4,741
Swiss francs i -2 BB 8,735 4,434
Others HAth 22,694 18,091
237,568 408,623

(e)  Since 1 April 2018, the Group has applied the general (e) H201844H1H » AEMCOKEHN BRI
approach to provide for expected credit losses for financial T 7 S5 At A B 2 0 SR TEU R A AL A 4
assets included in deposits and other receivables under A B A R SR 3 1 P T A R TS
HKFRS9. The Group considers the historical loss rate FREIE o AR ERFH G SRR
and adjusts for forward looking macroeconomic data in B JEE S f 1R S o S A I WS M R T A TR
calculating the expected credit loss rate. As at 31 March PEHFAEE o 201943 A 31 H » AKEEIMh
2019, the Group estimated the expected loss rate for i < A R R LT 6L 458 14 <6 Fl T
financial assets included in deposits and other receivables is M TSR R AN R -
insignificant.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED BANK 21 HRERRLEEYREFRITER

DEPOSIT

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT

Cash at banks WATH & 207,093 238,440

Cash on hand FHH & 7,218 7,838

Time deposit TE AR 20,558 -

Total cash and cash equivalents Bl KB A 234,869 246,278

Pledged bank deposit AR T K 56,649 -

Total cash at banks and on hand SRAT T BB AL 291,518 246,278

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED BANK 21 HRERASEEYREFBRITER ()
DEPOSIT (Continued)

An analysis of cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank T4 e B4 S (B S MR ERA T A7 e B
deposits by currency is as follows: TR
2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT AT
Hong Kong dollars biokicy 103,245 30,957
Renminbi NG 18,318 30,318
Singapore dollars T 47,377 51,354
Malaysian ringgit FEARPY R4 43,532 46,995
Thai bahts ES7S 68,564 75,564
Swiss francs i -2 BB 1,073 5,669
Others At 9,409 5,421

291,518 246,278
The above balances mainly represent cash at banks. Bank bl R R A RAT B o SRATAE AR ER R
balances are deposited in banks with sound credit ratings to RO AT AR R i SRATAE K > DAL
mitigate the credit risk. (SERS
Deposits of HK$56,649,000 were pledged to secure the SRAT 17 3K H6 56,649,000 76 T HE IR 45 SR 4T
bank borrowings in note 26. DASEIRLR 5 26 1A I SRAT R
The conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies and N R S 40 5 A BH N TR B iy v
remittance of Renminbi out of the PRC is subject to the rules ZH 52 v B TR A A 1) A1 R 7 452 R B 5 A 191
and regulations of exchange controls promulgated by the FFR o

PRC government.

22 SHARE CAPITAL 22 B

Number of shares

of HK$0.1 each HK$’000
BREEBE
0.1 THIRHEE AT
Authorised: e A
At 1 April 2018 and 201844 1 H R
31 March 2019 201943 A31H 1,600,000,000 160,000
Issued and fully paid: CLEAT AR IO
At 1 April 2017, 2018 and JA20174E4 31 H ~ 20184
31 March 2019 3H31HK201943 H31H 1,046,474,025 104,647

B () A RA A
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23 RESERVES 23 f#fE
Property,
plant and
equipment
Share  Revaluation ~ Exchange  revaluation Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
VESE
e
RVEE  EftRE  EXRE  EfRE  REEW L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bl EWE mWFx EREx kR B
At1 April 2017 201744 A1 H 1977 6,982 (96,543) - 900,016 814,432
Loss for the year Uil 3 - - - - (150577 (150,577)
Other comprehensive income for the year QAT
Change in fair value of available-for-sale i E R EE A TR
financial assets (note 17) (fitzE17) - 1,141 - - - 1,141
Exchange differences of ranslation of R BERHELR
discontinued operations ERA - - 17,196 - - 17,19
Revaluation gain on transer of G ESE YO
property, plant and equipment BEREMENTL
{o investment properties (note 13) ki (F3E13) - - - 201,644 - 201,644
Exchange differences related to RN
foreign operations - - 32,107 - - 32,107
Total comprehensive income for the year ERHb A TG A% - 1,141 49303 201,644 (150,577) 101,511
At31 March 2018 1201843 131 B 1977 10,123 (47,240) 201,644 749,439 915,943
At April 2018 2018445 1A 1977 1013 @780 20164 7949 915943
Loss for the year ERER - - - - (34551)  (34,551)
Other comprehensive income for the year SRR T
Change in fair value of equity investments TATEER R MR
at fair value through other WA ER A FEES
comprehensive income (note 17) (iE17) - 2,596 - - - 2,59
Release of exchange reserve upon HER LEEERGHEL
disposal of discontinued operations el - - (14,979) - - (14,978)
Revaluation gain on transfer of TAE R Rt
property, plant and equipment, FREMENRRE
to investment properties, net of tax Efl (3E 13 R27)
(notes 13 and 27) - - - 202,040 - 202,040
Exchange differences related to RIS £
foreign operations - - 8,104 - - 8,104
Total comprehensive income for the year R A FlE A - 2,59 6874 202,040 (34551 163211
Dividend paid note 24) SR (i 24) - - - - (198830 (198830
At31 March 2019 2019%3 31 A 197 0719 GAI4) 03684 516058 8003

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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24 DIVIDEND B2
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Special, paid of HK$0.19 (2018: nil) E IR B4 1% 28 JB HK$0.19 7T
per ordinary share PRI (2018 4F « 4) 198,830 -

The directors did not recommend any interim or final
dividends in respect of the years ended 31 March 2019 and
2018.

A conditional special distribution in cash of HK$0.19 dollar
per share was proposed by the Board on 23 January 2018
relating to the disposal of the Disposal group and was
approved by the shareholders in the special general meeting
on 19 April 2018. The special distribution, amounting to
HK$198,830,000, had been paid on 14 June 2018.

HFREAEEFEIREE 20193 31 HE
201843 H31 H 1L E W R SR WIS -

FHEN 201841 H 23 H ol i E IR 85 2E 55
AT B A AR A IR A R A 4 19
WAl - NG E R 20184E4 A 19 H H BSR4 H
Ko bR R AL o @ E AR A IR A4
5 198,830,000 L FE20184F6 H 14 H E
RAT -
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25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25 EZRHEMEMNERR
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Trade payables JREAT B2 2 Bk 87,451 221,776
Receipt in advance THIGERIE - 2,887
Contract liabilities BHIATE 1,058 —
Other payables oAt REA AR 20,838 9,131
Accruals e 118,971 122,550
Provision for onerous contracts AR & A B K IH 9,154 13,309
Total trade and other payables Z 5 B H A REA Rk A AR 237,472 369,653
Trade payables are unsecured and usually paid within 30 JEA B T B A RIS 2 R WERR AR 30
days of recognition. H A SZAS
Details of contract liabilities as at 31 March 2019 and R201943 H31 H X20184F4 H1HZ &
1 April 2018 are as follows: BRI
31 March 1 April
2019 2018
R2019 5 #2018 4F
3A31H 4H1H
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Short-term advances received from customers for &4 [ 858 & W& F K
sale of goods S HATHICGRIA 1,058 2,887
Total contract liabilities AR B 1,058 2,887
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received B #) B AL 5 AT S B A T B 45 3
to deliver watch products. The decrease in balance of THUCERIE - & &) BB ERFE A R E AT
contract liabilities is due to a change in the time frame for a BRI S BT EL -

performance obligation to be satisfied.

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are H A A AR - MEASH B 5 MR R B LAt
considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their A5 R ) R T {1 B RSP A ] o
short-term nature.
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25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 25 EERHEMEMERR(E)

A20194E3 A 31 H % 20184E3 31 H » #%
B2 H M REAT 2 5 AR IR I A T

At 31 March 2019 and 2018, the ageing analysis of the trade
payables based on invoice date is as follows:

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T WA

0-60 days 0-60 K 45,722 44,007
Over 60 days 60 KL I 41,729 177,769
87,451 221,776

Notes:

(a) Trade and other payables include amounts due to related
companies of HK$1,943,000 (2018: HK$2,968,000). Details
of amounts due to related companies are disclosed in note

bt

(@) B S B HoA FE A 5 f 4 T AT B W
KT 51,943,000 7T (20184F ik
2,968,000 JC) © MEAT BRI 28 7 3 E FE G L

32. WiRE 32 Bk -
(b)  An analysis of trade and other payables by currency is as (b) B RHMEN S SR
follows:

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT LT

Hong Kong dollars ey 128,819 271,448
Renminbi YN 21,316 22,010
Singapore dollars BT 9,331 8,280
Malaysian ringgit FEAR PG LA 15,558 19,752
Thai bahts B3 21,149 23,150
Swiss francs i 32 B 9,040 8,712
United states dollars EIn 25,463 12,111
Others FHoAth 6,796 4,190
237,472 369,653

B () A RA A
2019 4F4FH

168



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

26  INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 26 FTRBITREMER
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Bank overdrafts HRITE L - 6,365
Bank borrowings, secured (Note (a)) SRATEE > A (F5E ) 688,250 927,935
Obligations under finance leases (Note (b)) V& E &S (Fi5E (b)) 51 109
688,301 934,409
Current portion BB (688,301) (918,926)
Non-current portion FEU B A — 15,483
(@) Bank borrowings, secured (@ SRITER KM
The Group’s bank borrowings are repayable as AR M GRAT B ZE AR R B T
follows:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Repayable on demand and within 1 year MESRMERE K —FZ R 688,250 912,504
Between 1 and 2 years 1% 24F - 1,485
Between 2 and 5 years 2 FE 54 - 4,855
Over 5 years 54ERLE - 9,091
688,250 927,935
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for ORI AR SR AT DU IR ERAT 15 BE 00 2
these borrowings are disclosed in Note 30. MR T (B B 30 Bl o
An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’s A B ST SR A (L 4% B 0 A
bank borrowings by currency is as follows: T
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Hong Kong dollars il 688,250 911,082
Malaysian ringgit R APy EE A - 16,853
688,250 927,935
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26  INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 26 FESRITREMGER ()
(Continued)

(@ Bank borrowings, secured (Continued) (@ MRITEXR KT H)

SRAT BRI A 1.5 JE 2 3 JEneRsT
W 2EPRE - R 2019453 A 31 H » 8817
B F M REF- 35 B IR AE R R 5 2.9 i
(20184F : 2.42 J8) -

The bank borrowings bear interests at 1.5% to 3%
plus HIBOR. As at 31 March 2019, weighted average
effective interest rate per annum for bank borrowings
was 2.9% (2018: 2.42%).

As at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, the carrying
amounts of current bank borrowings approximate

A20194E3 A 31 H &20184E3 A 31
H o SR 47 80 3011 B T (2 B 28 T {8 A

their fair values. A7 ©
(b)  Obligations under finance leases (b) BEHEEEE

A ERIE BRI

The obligations under finance leases are payable as

follows:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Within 1 year 57 65
Between 1 and 2 years 1FE24F - 59
57 124
Future finance charges on finance leases il & FH 5 1) AR 3¢ B4 755 2 (6) (15)
Present value of finance lease liabilities il & & A &M BUE 51 109
The present value of finance lease liabilities is A E AR BES T T
analysed as follows:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Within 1 year THZR 51 57
Between 1 and 2 years 1E24E - 52
51 109

The carrying amount of obligations under finance Filh L 97 ) AR TR (L BT 3 o

leases is denominated in Singapore dollars. FHE -
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27  DEFERRED INCOME TAX 27  EEFTEH
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities AR SER T SR AE B SH A AT AN T
is as follows:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Deferred tax assets PEFERL I A 49,553 62,471
Deferred tax liabilities R A3 T £ A (31,004) (7,064)
Net deferred tax assets O SO T VL E TR 18,549 55,407
The gross movement on the deferred tax accounts is as WRAEFLTAAR H A9 B T
follows:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
At beginning of the year TR 55,407 80,470
Charged to income statement (note 11) bR A Uca 2= (FE11) (12,792) (18,563)
Charged to property, plant and equipment  1IBR ¥ 2 ~ 188 Kt
revaluation reserve A (23,458) -
Transfer to assets classified as held T BT AR
for sale and liabilities directly ]t R B B
associated with assets classified S EER(IE? T vh- < v
as held for sale HEARR B A - (8,507)
Exchange realignment B 58,75 75 (608) 2,007
At end of the year PSS 18,549 55,407
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during A R SRS T A M R S B (A5 R
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of AR RN BE55 ]k HE s 1 SR ARAES8)

balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:
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27  DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 27 EEFTSH ()
Deferred tax assets EEFHIBEEE

Provision for

unrealised Other
Depreciation profit in Other  temporary
allowances  inventories Taxlosses  provisions differences Total
BEHX
22Nyl Eft
nEEfR R HagE Rftfifs ERMER @t

HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
WRE Wt R WP WRE Wi

At1 April 2017 R201744H1H 9,718 15,226 37,742 19,678 11,437 93,801
Charged to income statement il e (1,016) (2,655) (5,648) (6,204) (5,024) (20,547)
Transfer to assets classified HENMEREHE

as held for sale Tt Y (4,583) (1,639) (452) (1,322) (1,431) (9,427)
Exchange differences R £ 49 1,014 - 256 1,059 2,378
At 31 March 2018 201843 H31H 4,168 11,946 31,642 12,408 6,041 66,205
At1 April 2018 201844 A1 H 4,168 11,946 31,642 12,408 6,041 66,205
Charged to income statement bR Bl % 2,121 (780) (12,552) (1,018) (1,663) (13,892)
Exchange differences [ % 2 (512) - (7) (136) (653)
At 31 March 2019 #20194F3 H31H 6,291 10,654 19,090 11,383 4,242 51,660
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27  DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 27 EIEEFRBH (4
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEAE
Revaluation
Other Identified  of property,
Depreciation  temporary intangible plant and
allowances differences assets  equipment Total
At ER SE I ERY 1
ERE =8 BREE RRBER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ao Ao R Ao R
A1 April 2017 20174 1R 7,975 942 4,414 - 13,331
Charged/(credited) to income statement BEA/ GEA) g % 3,542 (942) (4,584) - (1,984)
Transfer to liabilities directly associated BN RHE A
with assets clasified as held for sale HE AHAEN AR (920) - - - (920)
Exchange differences iR 201 - 170 - 371
At 31 March 2018 201843 31 H 10,798 - - - 10,798
At1 April 2018 20185411 H 10,798 - - - 10,798
Credited to income statement EPNVETE (1,100) - - - (1,100)
Charged to property, plant and TIBR A% - e Bt
equipment revaluation reserve Gl - - - 23,458 23,458
Exchange differences i3k (45) - - - (45)
At 31 March 2019 20193 A31H 9,653 - - 23,458 33,111

Out of the total unrecognised tax losses of HK$964,103,000
(2018: HK$897,255,000) carried forward, an amount of
HK$655,830,000 (2018: HK$463,545,000) can be carried
forward indefinitely. The remaining HK$308,273,000
(2018: HK$433,710,000) will expire in the following years:

JIT 5 e D K B A AR R R B 2 oA fE RR B T
TR A B 5 964,103,000 7T (2018 4F ik
¥%897,255,00070) > HF#sH655,830,00070
(20184F : #%5463,545,0007C) 7] SEFR H &k
o, HEREH 308,273,000 7C (2018 4F :
¥ 433,710,000 5C) #7E T 51 FR i

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT AT

In the first year 5 1AF 43,075 80,196
In the second year %24 55,523 80,097
In the third year %3 93,619 96,611
In the fourth year 5 44F 72,422 98,382
In the fifth to tenth years inclusive F5FERE 104 (BIEH EW4E) 43,634 78,424
308,273 433,710

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
the tax losses can be utilised.
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28

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS/DISPOSAL OF BUSINESS

On 26 January 2018, the Group entered into a share
purchase agreement with a related party for disposal of
shares in the subsidiaries of the Group engaged in the
optical retail and wholesale business (the “Disposal”) at a
consideration of HK$400,000,000 subject to adjustments.
The Disposal was communicated to shareholders on
22 March 2018 through a circular. The Disposal was
subsequently approved by the shareholders in the special
general meeting on 19 April 2018. The completion of the
Disposal took place on 1 June 2018. Accordingly, the
following assets and liabilities of the Disposal group were
classified as held for sale as at 31 March 2018.

28

RIESERY HEXE

2018451 H 26 H » AHE [ B — {7 B H
RO WE I TR > i AT IR SR & Rt
BELERE IR A ] ([ EHIE ) - 44055
LU 4800 (ATEA B - &S
THE R 2018 4E3 A 22 H 1] A F 85 im bk o
HEHIEREZ R 20184F4 H 19 H 847 2 %
FRRA K & EA B At o R IH O R
201846 A1 HEH - HEEMNEE LA

{5 201843 H 31 H 94088 A e al ik iy
A o

2018
HK$’000
AT
Assets classified as held for sale PEAFEITHEENEE
Property, plant and equipment W3 ~ B 71,516
Prepaid lease premium A B A 14,343
Non-current deposits and prepayments et B 4% e A OH 55,369
Deferred tax assets R A T3l TH 9,427
Inventories Py 215,622
Trade and other receivables (note (i) 545 Be H A REUSIR R (B EE (i) 101,284
Cash and cash equivalents Bl KBl Y 143,084
Income tax recoverable A Y [m] A5 F 4,211
Total assets of the Disposal group held for sale H R A BV AT 0 o 4 0 AR 614,856
Liabilities directly associated with assets HABERFETHEENEE
classified as held for sale EEMEENER
Deferred tax liabilities R AR IH £ £ 920
Trade and other payables (note (ii)) 5 5 B A REATHRR (BEEE (i) 214,619
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FEESRAT R 80,882
Total liabilities of the Disposal group held for sale HH B AR T AR A T AR B 1 B AR 296,421
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28 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS/DISPOSAL OF BUSINESS 28 HRILEEX HEXEK )

(Continued)
Notes: BERE -
(i) At 31 March 2018, the ageing analysis of the trade (i) 201843 A31 H » #%EEEE H M Hrid g
receivables based on invoice date was as follows: W S IRAIRER N T
2018
HK$’000
LR
0-60 days 0-60 X 18,596
Over 60 days 60 KD E 9,218
27,814
The Group allows an average credit period of 60 days from AL T HEWE 5 R h 3 H st
the invoice date to its trade receivables. T 60 Kfs &4 -
Balances that are neither past due nor impaired relate to 7 e v A DRk (L 1) 45 5 T B IR 22 4 1 AR
a number of independent customers whom there was no BEAR B LK -
relevant history of default.
Included in the Group’s trade receivables were debtors with % 55 [ 11 R AT B o R S A T i
a carrying amount of HK$9,160,000 which were past due but 9,160,000 JC 1) ME W 3K JE » A B 2 H 2
not impaired. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables R NG AR IR E - 3% 55 B ) M2 31 0
based on due dates was as follows: H Z BB Hr T
2018
HK$’000
AT T
Overdue: iy
Within 1 year 14E R 9,038
1-2 years 1-24E 1" 84
2-3 years 234K 31
Over 3 years 3L 7
9,160
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28 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS/DISPOSAL OF BUSINESS 28 HRILEEXE HEEK )

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued) 5T - ()

(i) (Continued) (i) (#4%)
Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related B R R Y MU 2 Rk B 2 44 i S
to a number of independent customers for whom there R > AT I A S SRR Bk o
was no recent history of default. Based on past experience, HRPE A A0 5R > SR B B SUIRTE RO {5 £
management believed that no impairment allowance was CES A pNLE B CILE Y T
necessary in respect of these balances as there had not been Bl lnl o PR G B R AR £ S (A
a significant change in credit quality and the balances were o AS SR TN A R R 55 OGRRRE AT AT HE
still considered fully receivable. The Group did not hold any o

collateral over these balances.

(i) At31 March 2018, the ageing analysis of the trade payables (i) JA20184FE3 A 31 H » Hedk 5t H WA i1 e

based on invoice date was as follows: A58 Z M AR I T

2018

HK$'000

LKA TH

0-60 days 0-60 K 73,656

Over 60 days 60 KL E 4,363

78,019

B () A RA A
2019 4F4FH 176



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FA RS ERaR B o

28 DISCONTINUED OPERATION/DISPOSAL OF BUSINESS 28 HRILEEXIE HEEK )

(Continued)
The completion of the Disposal took place on 1 June 2018, & 4 JH 2 R20184F6 1 H 58 K-
the details about the net assets disposed of and the resulting A BB A E S SRS AR T
in a gain on disposal of HK$111,766,000 as below. 111,766,000 JG > #EAEUNT
2019
HK$’000
BEATT
Net assets disposed of: HEEEFENT
Property, plant and equipment LUERR S 1YL 70,728
Prepaid lease premium T B 5 13,220
Othe non-current assets HoAth IE By & 11,590
Inventories & 216,403
Trade and other receivables B 5 R A B I R 3k 165,370
Cash and cash equivalents B4 &% EY 59,987
Trade and other payables B 5 B AR REAT IR R (211,538)
Amount due to the Group JREAST A £ [ 4 T (403,827)
Other non-current liabilities oAt I i B B A (50,832)
(128,899)
Release of cumulative exchange reserve Hh B 15 BRI S0 ARt i o
on disposal (14,978)
Professional fees and taxes on disposal HUE RS R SRR 28,284
Gain on disposal I ZEFS I 4 111,766
Consideration fRAE (3,827)
Satisified by A
Cash B4 400,000
Waiver of intercompany debts 2\ ) [ B A o (403,827)
(3,827)
An analysis of net inflow of bank balances and cash in A B S TE B BRAT 5 R X B A
respect of the Disposal is as follows: Hrans -
2019
HK$’000
BT
Cash consideration WaRE 400,000
Cash and bank disposed of B REE 4 B RATAE K (59,987)
Net inflow of bank balances and cash B SRR SRAT A B MBI A
in respect of the Disposal 340,013
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28 DISCONTINUED OPERATION/DISPOSAL OF BUSINESS 28 HRILEEXE HEXEK )

(Continued)
The financial performance and cash flow information B 201845 131 H IR/ 7 52018 483
presented are for the two months ended 31 May 2018 and A 31 HIRAEE > B L8 8 SE 05 1 BB 3R
for the year ended 31 March 2018. BB &REFEREmT
Two months For the year
ended ended
31 May 31 March
2018 2018
BE 20184  #E20184F
5H31H 3H31H
RISCER(EDE! 1R
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT WA T
Revenue A 218,958 1,270,977
Other (losses)/gain, net HAth (F518) i ts > 48 (2,004) 4,803
Other income HAtsg A 5,738 14,324
Expenses b (222,117) (1,286,761)
Profit before income tax I5 F58 HT ¥ ) 575 3,343
Income tax expense JITAR A S (2,281) (7,807)
Loss from discontinued operations '"L%?%E’JE?TE (1,706) (4,464)
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations, ﬁ/@%‘ EEBS PR B W s
net of tax 111,766 -
Profit/(loss) for the period/year WA R R (5 18) 110,060 (4,464)
Exchange differences on translation of AN SETS B HE 50 25 A
foreign operations - 17,262
Release of exchange reserve relating to #2110 2ET5 T S0 At i
discontinued operations (14,978) -
Total comprehensive income from b S A T i gk AR
discontinued operations 95,082 12,798
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000

BT AT T

Net cash (outflow)/ inflow from operating & #EiGE) (A7) Biis B4 1 F 48

activities (51,380) 100,227
Net cash outflow from investing activities 4% & V% & fir I 3 4 V5 48 (1,576) (48,791)
Net cash outflow from financing activities [l & % & it F 35 4 V5 48 (31,410) (28,782)
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and fﬁ/\&fﬁ/\%ﬁwz

cash equivalents R DIk R ] (84,366) 22,654
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29 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW INFORMATION 29 HERTREBRME
(@ Reconciliation of loss before income tax to cash (@ BRIAESHAIBEREZETHMERS
generated from operations: ME R
2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
liEs BT WA T
(Loss)/profit before income tax from  BRFTAFBLAT (EG5HE) I Fl
— Continuing operations — FRRE TS (115,475) (123,394)
— Discontinued operations —H I R 28 575 3,343
Gain on disposal of discontinued S A I T R BRI AT
operations before income tax Wi i 124,043 -
Profit/(loss) before income tax FUFE R | 1 S
including discontinued operations [ BREL A F, (ke 9,143 (120,051)
Adjustments for kS
Depreciation g 42,533 86,535
Amortisation of intangible assets HEH T & 8 2,322 2,376
Amortisation of prepaid G A A B M A
lease premium 2,796 5,907
Loss on disposal of property, HEYZE - M
plant and equipment S AR 3,841 2,966
(Write back of provision)/provision for 77 & ﬁ"{ﬁ BEm) T
inventories (2,596) 23,156
Reversal of impairment of SRR Al 43¢ ]
trade receivables (386) (209)
Impairment loss of property, W - BRI
plant and equipment S (E 4,251 10,937
Impairment loss of intangible assets /% & 7 I {E - 30,273
Utilisation of onerous contracts AIERFH G F R (] (4,155) (25,035)
Interest income FLEURA (1,096) (1,441)
Finance costs A A 25,360 25,528
Dividend income [ik35! ll&)\ 7 (2,798) (3,599)
Gain on disposal of RSN s B TiE
discontinued operations (124,043) -
Re-measurement of deferred R A A A
consideration payable in respect (A I L i 4 2 A0
of acquisition of a subsidiary — 2R
in a prior year 6 - (10,000)
Operating (loss)/profit Wi 8 < S T 1Y
before working capital changes K ksi8) g A (44,828) 27,343
Decrease in inventories ﬁﬁé{ﬂz 98,429 53,287
Decrease/(increase) in trade EJ&E%WEWE&%
and other receivables B () 156,224 (2,657)
Decrease in trade and B ) B HABREAT HRR
other payables % (82,012) (2,404)
Cash generated from operations S TG B TS B 4 127,813 75,569
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29  CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 29 HmEBRSRMERME 4

(b)  Changes in liabllities arising from financing activities by BETHEENELEED
This section sets out an analysis of liabilities arising A B SR 51 5 T 7 A T A A
from financing activities and the movements in (BB D il 07 ) T A A5 5 Bl ) >
liabilities arising from financing activities for each of Br

the years presented.

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FEE ST R
(excluding bank overdrafts) (note 26) (RELFESRATIE SO (K5 26) 688,301 928,044
Interest-bearing
bank borrowings
(excluding bank overdrafts)
A
HK$'000
R
1 April 2017 #20174F4 A1 H 1,097,355
Cash flows B g (90,758)
Exchange differences HE . 2 48 2,329
Transfer to liabilities directly associated R BV AR
with assets classified as held for sales B AR B (80,882)
31 March 2018 201843 31 H 928,044
Cash flows from continuing operations FHUEEEH RSN E (238,830)
Exchange differences M 50 %4 913)
31 March 2019 201943 A31H 688,301
30  ASSETS-PLEDGED AS SECURITY 30 EBEEER
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for the AR A5 [ HE AT SR AT DAME AR A5 B0 00 K
Group’s bank borrowings are: MRTEM{ELAN R
2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt i BT AT T
Property, plant and equipment WIZE ~ BRAR A 13 69,556 222,711
Investment properties BeEYE 14 586,100 230,000
Pledged bank deposit HEAMERAT A7 35K 21 56,649 -
Property, plant and equipment included M A RFVE ] ik B 1Y
in assets classified as held for sale AR NI -
e KB - 4,526
712,305 457,237
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31  COMMITMENTS 31 EiE
(@) Non-cancellable operating leases (where the Group @ FTHUHENEERE(XEEERK
is the lessee) BA)
The Group leases certain stores under non-cancellable A 25 T E SR PE 2 2 545 8 2] 1
operating leases expiring within 2 to 5 years. The AL B S AT - %5
leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and A AR - 58 B ek % A
renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases FHRER o 25 T 05 & 0 LT B Y
are renegotiated. Lease payments are based on the i o AR PR w8 FH 4 B B AR 4 (DA
higher of a minimum guaranteed rent and a sales level = UE) BHE o AH S Y B
based rent. The commitments disclosed below do not A2 A0 5 AR P 815 B /K TR A 1 v s A
include variable rentals determined based on sales %o
level.
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Commitments for minimum lease AR EEEAE R ] Y s 2

payments in relation to non-cancellable & T 1) £ Al
operating leases are payable as follows:  JEfHIEAEINT -

Not later than one year 1457 224,862 611,562
Later than one year but not TFEMES5FER
later than five years 213,022 443,790
Later than five years 54ED 1 1,823 4,062
439,707 1,059,414
(b)  Non-cancellable operating leases (where the Group by FTHABENELXEE(FEEERY
is the lessor) HA)
Minimum lease payments receivable on leases of T b R AL N B R A B M
certain land and buildings are as follows: WA B AR T
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Investment properties REMHE
Commitments for minimum lease payments A< [ 76 A Al i g 5 22
receivable in relation to non-cancellable E T AR R
operating leases are payable as follows: FE L 4 AN
Not later than one year 1R 10,422 4,720
Later than one year but not THERES R
later than five years 10,074 8,024
20,496 12,744
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31 COMMITMENTS (Continued) 31 EIE )
(b) Non-cancellable operating leases (where the Group (@ FTHHENEXHE(XEBERE
is the lessor) (Continued) BAN)H)
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT
Properties IES
Commitments for minimum lease payments 242 [ 76 A il i b 5 2
receivable in relation to non-cancellable BT AR AR AR
subleases of operating leases are payable JRE Wi 7R 4 AB
as follows: mr
Not later than one year 14EN 2,012 1,201
Later than one year but not 1B 5 ER
later than five years 722 214
2,734 1,415
32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 BEBAIRZ
As at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, Yee Hing 201943 H31H K&20184F3 H31H »
Company Limited held 855,200 shares of the Company FEBAT R w7 HL B 2 7 Active Lights
through its subsidiary Active Lights Company Limited. 55% Company Limited #A 4~ 7 855,200 Bk
of the total issued ordinary shares of Yee Hing Company # » Klayze Holdings Limited PA{E £ —TH Y
Limited is held by Klayze Holdings Limited, which is the EFE (TMERE ) X ZRE NS D i A R ELA
trustee of a discretionary trust (the “Trust”). Mr. Joseph C. C. B Al 2 C B AT 8 2 55% M4t o T
Wong is a beneficiary of the Trust and was therefore deemed A e e BERE 2 Zam A > SRR A i
to be interested in 855,200 shares of the Company through & RE A F LA R R 2 i T A AL T
the Trust’s interest in Yee Hing Company Limited. 855,200 M/ i o
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32  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 ABRBALRS
(@ Significant transactions with related parties (@ EBEEEBMATETZEARS
Apart from disclosed in notes 20, 25 and 35, the BB EE20 ~ 25 35T #EEE 4L > T 51
following is a summary of the significant related party T A AR [ BRLAT B e N L 22 [ BT A T Y
transactions carried out in the normal course of the ERLHME > 25585 )AL
Group’s business. The related parties are entities H W 2E05 AT o BRI 2 45 A
which have directors in common with the Company. A SRR S TR o
(i) Provision of services to related companies (i) I B AR R
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Rental and services income from Tia] A5 PRI M 2 ) WACHURE 46 K
related companies (note) IRAS WA (BfEEE) 31,885 2,340
Note: B
The provision of services to related companies is Ti] A B M 2 ) B A IR 5 WA 43
analysed as follows: L
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Building management service L/ESEEI T UNTI Y
income (note a) 2,340 2,340
Shared service income (note b) JLZRFFWA (FF5ED) 22,824 -
Rental income (note ¢) A WA (KEc) 5,633 -
Royalty income (note d) FEFPREMT A B (FffaEd) 1,088 -
31,885 2,340
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@ Significant transactions with related parties
(Continued)

(i)  Provision of services to related companies
(Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(@)

A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
entered into a renewal agreement with Mengiwa
Property Investment Limited (“MPIL”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Yee Hing, for the provision
of the following services for the period from 1
April 2016 to 31 March 2019:

(@)  contract administration with respect to
contracts entered into between MPIL and
third parties from time to time;

(b)  property agency liaison and tenancy
management;

(c)  management of the property manager of
Stelux House; and

(d) other miscellaneous administrative
services.

The fee for the provision of the above services
was agreed at HK$195,000 per calendar month
during the agreement period.

The Group provided administrative services
to a related company which has directors
in common with the Group. Shared service
income was charged at cost basis allocated
based on the counterparties’ usage of each type
of service, taking into account factors such as
headcount and the number of shops.

The Group provided leasing services to related
parties which have directors in common with
the Group. Rental income was charged to
related parties based on the occupied area ratio
times total actual costs incurred.

The Group provided licensing service to related
parties which have directors in common with
the Group. Royalty income was charged at 10%
of the amount invoiced by suppliers or vendors
of the counterparties.

32

BEBALRS (4)

(@

EABBATETZEARS ()

(1)

i1 A W 2 P2 IR T (4

WEGE - ()

(a)

A A 1 A B R A ) B 3G L
S NCIE T €<
AR (THIEE ) it 2016
F4HTHE201943 HA31H
R LL R BT S ek

(a)

(d)

T iy s N
SNMAER T Z AT
B s

ARG LS
E

HHE D LY
EEBAT] R

FEAT BOIRF

A RS e A M 4R
it B 5 0 A AR 2 R TS
A% 195,000 € °

(b)

R AR T 1) B A AR )
GRG0 LN
o 4R A A IS o 3k
= H A R AR
28 by 5 J7 ¥ 45 T IR B
HORE R LRSS 8 R T
ORI S Bk S R
AR -

AR 1 B A A P AT
Pl =i bl o) N
PN - FEA
RABA Hb TR AT 1
T A A B PR AL A 1 4]
TYNSRIE

A% 42 [ ) B A SR B R
A IR # R B
| R AL R R R A o
R 1 22 e A F At
JRE P B8 38 G ) Oy 2 it
JHE 7 B LY S
9 10% Y B -
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32  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 32 FBEMALXRE ()
(@ Significant transactions with related parties (@) HEEBEBMALIETZERRS ()
(Continued)
(i) Purchases of services from related parties (ii) 151G B LA AR
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Rental expenses (note a) a3 (Ktgka) 18,742 16,304
Lease management expenses (note b) A& # 8 i (FEb) 600 -
19,342 16,304
Notes: BFaE
(@) During the year, certain subsidiaries of the (@) R AR E AT WS A A
Group have entered into tenancy agreements SLN BA B N AT SL AR
with the following related parties for office Wi ok > LATH 0 B W 2E R
premises shops, warehouses, showroom and Bl R~ BREIE S EAL

car-parking spaces:

Rental expense for the year

FEHEXH

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT LG TH

MPIL LiE 11,259 13,824

Other related parties oA B e A+ 7,483 2,480

18,742 16,304
(b) A related company provided lease management (b)  —FA B A 1 A4
services to the Group. The fee for the provision DA AT RS - 4R A 4%
of such services was charged at pre-determined Il 55 1) 2 F S Toh el B TR

amount during the agreement period. TEE R YL ©
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32

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Balances with related parties

Year-end balances arising from service income and

32 BEBALRS ()

(b) BREREBALZBNER

RS WS e L 4 52 Hh 7 A 9 AR R

rental expenses are as follows: mr :
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT W
Trade and other receivables (Note 20) G 5 B H AR (5% 20) 8,451 5,479
Trade and other payables (Note 25) 55 e HABREAT IR R (M 5T 25) (1,943) (2,968)
Trade and other payables included B 5 B HABREAT IR
in liabilities directly associated (EL4E BRI R
with assets classified as held for sale AT A T A ) L ) - (1,258)

The balances due from/to related companies are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The related companies are entities which have

directors in common with the Group.

(c) Key management compensation

il o

(0 FEEEEHRM

JRE WS % B A R B 2 ) R 199 T 2 S 4K
o B MR AR

B 2 w4 LA SR I AT LR S

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT

Salaries and other short-term B R H A
employee benefits 1 B A 8,403 11,780
Other long-term benefits HoAt = 14 A 146 123
8,549 11,903

B () A RA A
2019 4F4FH

186



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33 HREE

201844 H > — (s = ¥ AREH —FK
RFF Je 2 ) (T 5% B J88 2 ) 1) st o A A5 R s 2%
78 [ FI)JEL B B 2 PR AR A R R o AR R
5% PR > R 0 A L A R R PR A I
B RARERRBHIEHB R RN
AL BE A 201943 A 31 H A EGIR I
SR R AT AR RS o

In April 2018, a third party filed a legal claim against
one of the subsidiaries (the “Subsidiary”) of the Group
for outstanding services fees plus interest and surcharges.
Based on the legal opinion provided by the Subsidiary’s
external legal counsel, the the Company’s directors are of
the opinion that the outcome of this claim will not have a
material adverse effect on the Group's financial position as
at 31 March 2019 or the results of its operations for the year.

34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE 34 PDEAEEAEBRFEEEERER
COMPANY
Balance sheet of the Company AFEEEER

As at 31 March

M3A31H
2019 2018
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B EE BT AT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IE L G
Investment in a subsidiary i) NiEi'e <y 36 - -
Current assets MENVEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JREMAC BFF 8 2 W) T b 766,848 389,651
Trade and other receivables 2 5 b HoA E ISR 3k 176 142
Cash and cash equivalents B LB EE 2,320 137
769,344 389,930
Total assets R AR 769,344 389,930
EQUITY iR
Share capital A 104,647 104,647
Reserves it a 34,714 233,634
Total equity T £ B0 R 139,361 338,281
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34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE 34
COMPANY (Continued)

NAEERBRRFBERER ()

DAEERER A

Balance sheet of the Company (Continued)

As at 31 March

M3 A31H
2019 2018
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
i BT AT
LIABILITIES afE

Current liabilities L) A
Trade and other payables 5 5 B FUA A iRk 2,024 1,705
Amounts due to subsidiaries EAST B & 2 7] 3k b 627,959 5,500
Borrowings B - 44,444
629,983 51,649
Total liabilities BRI 629,983 51,649
Total equity and liabilities HEfE & A AR 769,344 389,930

Joseph C.C. Wong
HAIG
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
TR AT

Wallace Kwan Chi Kin
AR
Executive Director and
Chief Financial Officer
T EF R
BT B A

FEHEE20194E6 H 20 H LN E T4
TG EAER -

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the
board of directors on 20 June 2019 and was signed on its
behalf.
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34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE 34 PDEEEAGBRREBEEHR )
COMPANY (Continued)

Notes: R5E -
(@)  Reserve movements of the Company (@)  AFElfEfEEEE)
Share Retained
premium earnings Total
&S RE
w"E B87 ot
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AT AT T AT oT
At 1 April 2017 r20174F4 H1H 1,977 113,357 115,334
Profit for the year A I i ) - 118,300 118,300
At31 March 2018 #20184E3 A31 H 1,977 231,657 233,634
At 1 April 2018 201844 H1H 1,977 231,657 233,634
Loss for the year AE R SR - (90) (90)
Dividend paid (note 24) EARE (H5E24) - (198,830)  (198,830)
At 31 March 2019 201943 H31H 1,977 32,737 34,714
(b)  Amounts due from/to subsidiaries (b) M B JREAST B e 2 ) S TE
The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, JRE A % JRE A5 T T8 2 ) 14 3 B AR - G
interest-free and repayable on demand. The carrying BB SRR o HCRRAR A MR T R (R 1 20T
amounts of these balances approximate their fair values. HATHE -
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35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 35 ESEMNRER
(@) Directors’ emoluments @ EE#M<
The remuneration of every director of the Company is KA S ERHM ST

set out below:

For the year ended 31 March 2019: BE 201943 H31H -
Emoluments paid
or payable
in respect
Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s services of director's
as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking; other services
LG IR EE- £ DE B in connection

Remunerations  with the
paidor  management

Basic payable in of the
salaries,  Contributions respectof  affairs of the
allowances,  to retirement accepting  Company or
and benefits benefit  Discretionary officeas  its subsidiary
Name Fees in kind schemes honus director  undertaking Total
SOET D
KARGEME
Eéfe- Bxfig  AIRERH
2R e HAESA HitER
2 g BNk LERE BREEAT EZEUME  BENMS i

HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO0D  HK§'000
Beffn  BRfR RRfx ERfi RBfn BRfin RWfR

Joseph C. C. Wong (i RIS i) 100 1,750 03 2,637 - - 4,550
Kwan Chi Kin, Wallace B 80 1,558 18 2,633 - - 4,289
Kwong Yi Hang, Agnes Bt 13 - - - - - 13
Wu Chun Sang i3 135 - - - - - 135
Wur Chi Man, Lawrence i 135 - - - - - 135

585 3,308 81 5,270 - - 9,244
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35  BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued) 35 EBREANRER )
(@ Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (@ E=M<e
For the year ended 31 March 2018: B 201843 A31H :
Emoluments paid
or payable
in respect
Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s services of director's
as a director, whether of the Company or its subsiciary undertaking: other services
AAATHMEATE TR AR in connection
Remunerations with the

paidor  management

Basic payable in of the
salaries,  Contributions tespectof  affairs of the
allowances,  toretirement accepting Company or
and benefits benefit ~ Discretionary officeas its subsidiary
Name Fees in kind schermes bonus' director  undertaking Total
JGELT
KOFASIHE
ke 55 U0r A £ i
R Bke Wkxh  AER
22 Be  EWAE MG BEED ERRE B A%

HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO0D  HKS'000
DT DR 4 1DV D 1 PR 1 VA i

Joseph C.C. Wong i G 100 2957 105 5497 . - B39

Kwan Chi Kin, Wallace Bz 80 1,507 18 24483 - - 4,048

Sakorn Kanjanapas i) AL i 2 - - - - - 2

Kwong Yi Hang, Agnes Bt 135 - - - - - 135

Wu Chun Sang sk 139 - - - - - 139

Wu Chi Man, Lawrence i 135 - - - - - 135

587 4,444 123 7,940 - - 13,094

i Discretionary bonus represents the amount paid i B AEALFRAF N E AP B RE o
during the respective year.

i Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong is also the Chief Executive i ARG I R AN AT IELAAR o
Officer of the Group.

i Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas has passed away on 8 April i BEAILGAR20174E4 ] 8 H F#iE o
2017.
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35

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(@

(b)

(0

(d)

(e)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2019 and 2018,
none of the directors waived their emoluments, except
Mr. Joseph C.C Wong waived discretionary bonus of
HK$1,450,000 for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year (2018: nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for
making available directors’ services (2018: nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 March 2019, there are no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
controlled entities with such directors (2018: nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Except as disclosed in notes 28 and 32, no other
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

35

ESENRES )

(@

(b)

(9]

(d)

(e)

EE=ME ()

FZE20184E3 A31 H &20194E3 A 31
HE4E R > A4 AT ¥ 32N 4
PRECAIESEA N E 20194E3 A 31 H
1A B I B I AE AL s 51,450,000
IE e

EERNEFNRBERER

ARIAL > MR R SO R WA AT
IRIRAR A K BERAR A (2018 4F + fE) o

BENESEREAE=TN2NE

HE201943 A31 HIEFEE > AN
SIF 48E 48 T S RS T AT AT 5 =
TAHAE (2018 4F « i) o

FRNES  ZSESCZEMEE
FABEBRZBAZER  BEX
REMRZ2ER

HE201943 A31 HIEFE > apl
W oA g 2 P R
BHE M A2 N2 B MER R K
Mh3E 5 % PR (2018 4F © ) o

ESERS  BRISENWEAFGE

BR B 5128 K 32 BT i @8 & 41 » ARAEE
G B | N7 N 5 S R R (7
Fe ARG 2 R M AN Wl 2 SERE %
SR A AR 2 2 EE AR
5~ iR A TR o
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36  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 36 FEMBAT

HE20194FE K 201843 A31 H » EE &
AR :

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31
March 2019 and 2018:

Particulars of Percentage of equity

Place of share capital issued attributable to the Group
incorporation/ ERTRA EEfERENEIL
operation Principal activities Number Value
MY IERE B8 SREE 2019 2018
Investment 12 &
Stelux Holdings International Group  British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 Us$1 100 100
(BV) Limited e | aeils fEtE 17
Stelux Holdings Limited Hong Kong Investment holding 1,000 HK$1 100 100
EDLE (RE) ARAR itk BB LA
Stelux Investments and Properties British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 Us$1 100 100
(BVI) Limited BRI LR sl [EST
Thong Sia (BV1) Company Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 US$1 100 100
SRR BEER ESH
Property #1%
City Chain Properties Limited Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$1 100 100
I R BR3P 22 ) ik ESHeS AP
Fulani Investment Limited Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$1 100 100
Eik UESIE AP
STL Properties Limited (formerly known Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$1 100 100
as Optical 88 Properties Limited) % BG4 ki
LA RAR (%0 : et
EHRAR)
Oswald Property Management Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$100 100 100
Company Limited &is WERE /100 7T
Stelux Properties Agency Limited Hong Kong Property agency and 2 HK$1 100 100
Bt s A R ik management 1T
ESe Y&t
Stelux Properties Limited Hong Kong Property management 500 HK$100 100 100
EDEEARA ik ESsS 7100 7C
Retailing and trading
TERES
City Chain Company Limited Hong Kong Watch retailing 250,000 HK$100 100 100
o ] PR 2 i BT #1007
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36  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36 TEMBQE A
Particulars of Percentage of equity
Place of share capital issued attributable to the Group
incorporation/ ERITRA SEFREERNE AL

operation Principal activities Number Value

RMRY S TEER B8 SKEE 2019 2018

City Chain (M) Sdn Bhd Malaysia Watch retailing 3,333,333 RM1 100 100
BT L E 14%

City Chain (Macau) Company Limited Macau Watch retailing 2 MOP5,000 100 100
IR [ R (IR A PR A 1 R LE ks
5,000 7C

City Chain Stores (S) Pte Limited Singapore Watch retailing 1,800,000 S$1 100 100
Hihndk RHETE Himg w1 0

City Chain (Thailand) Company Thailand Watch retailing 200,000 Baht100 100 100
Limited R BETE 100 5%
210,000 Baht100
100 %5%

Optical 88 Limited Hong Kong Optical products 33,379,940 HK$1 - 100
iR 5% 88 1 /A il R A

Optical 88 Eyecare (M) Sdn Bhd Malaysia Optical products 1,428,572 RM1 - 100
Y i HEER 14%

Optical 88 (Macau) Limited Macau Optical products 2 MOP5,000 - 100
M5 88 (M) HIRAR M HEER AR
5,000 7C

Optical 88 (S) Pte Limited Singapore Optical products 500,000 S$1 - 100
Hmg R HmyER 1

Optical 88 (Thailand) Company Thailand Optical products 245,000 Baht10 - 100
Limited R FEE 10%5%
255,000 Baht10
1058

EGG Optical Boutique Limited Hong Kong Optical products 10,000,000 HK§1 - 100
—EEREAR A itk R BT

Pronto Watch S.A. Switzerland Watch distribution 100 SFr1,000 100 100
Bid: Bk 4 1,000 1:
BHp
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36  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36 FEMBAR (4
Particulars of Percentage of equity
Place of share capital issued attributable to the Group
incorporation/ ERTRA EEFEEENEDL
operation Principal activities Number Value
MRy IEEH E®  SREE 2019 2018
Retailing and trading (Continued)
TERES (8)
Solvil et Titus S.A. Switzerland Watch distribution 300 SFr1,000 100 100
Bit: Sk o 1,000 £
]
Stelux International Licensing Limited Bahamas Trademark holding and 2 USs1 100 100
B licensing 137
TR RS AL
Stelux Watch Limited Hong Kong Watch supply chain 1,000,000 HKS1 100 100
Bt EAR AR ik management LA
sk (RS T
Thong Sia Watch Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Watch distribution 80,000 HK$10 100 100
A IR ] i Sk 9 100
Thong Tai Watch Company Limited  Hong Kong Watch distribution 2,000 HK$1,000 100 100
AR A R j k4 #11,0007
Thong Sia Company (Singapore) Pte  Singapore Watch distribution 2,000,000 S$1 100 100
Limited s Sk o8 LR AP
Thong Sia Sdn Bhd Malaysia Watch distribution 1,000,000 RM1 97.6 97.6
A O 14%
Thong Sia (Thailand) Limited Thailand Watch retailing and 20,000 Baht100 100 100
#E distribution 100 5%
HE T LM
Thong Sia Optics (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Optical distribution 5000  HK$1,000 - 100
Company Limited i IR 85> 8 #5%1,000 0
Universal Geneve S.A. Switzerland Watch supply chain 5,000 SFr1,000 100 100
Bt management and 1,000%i1:
distribution B
S S (LM GAE T T 20 B
Catena S.A Switzerland Manufacture of watch 1,016,667 SFr1 100° 100
St movements 14t
T ERER B
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36

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

36

FEMBQF (4)

Percentage of equity

Place of incorporation/ attributable to the Group
operation Principal activities Paid-up capital SEFMEEENEDL
ERAYL IEEH BEER 2019 2018
Retailing and trading (Continued)
TERES ()
Stelux Thong Sia (Guangdong) People’s Republic of China/  Watch retailing, trading ~ HK$224,900,000 100 100
Trading Limited Mainland China (foreign- and related services 224,900,000 7C
TR (50 B A R AR invested commercial BETE  BAHR
enterprise) il
/R RE (5P R
el
Stelux Thong Sia (Beijing) Trading ~ People’s Republic of China/ Watch retailing, trading ~ US$20,500,000 100 100
Limited Mainland China (foreign- and related services 20,500,000 %7C
EObEN (L) TR ARA A invested commercial HETE AR
enterprise) ilaler
/KR (S £
k%)
Stelux Thong Sia (Shanghai) People’s Republic of China/ ~ Watch retailing, trading ~ US$16,180,000 100 100
Trading Limited Mainland China (foreign- and related services 16,180,000 ¢
B (L) TR A A invested commercial HETE  BAR
enterprise) islealliers
/R RE (S
LX)
Baoqing (Chongging) Trading People’s Republic of China/ Watch retailing, trading ~ HK$50,500,000 100 100
Limited Mainland China (foreign- and related services % 50,500,000 7C
BB () RHARAH invested commercial HETE - BAR
enterprise) il s
/R RE (SRR
FEX)
Baoshi (Guangdong) Company People’s Republic of China/ Retailing, trading and HK$238,890,000 - 100
Limited Mainland China (foreign- related optical 1 238,890,000 7C

HH (R SDEREEA R

invested commercial
enterprise)

AR (N R
0%

services
MeEmEE  EHR
BRI
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36  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36 FEMBAR (4
Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation/ attributable to the Group
operation Principal activities Paid-up capital SEFMEEENEL
AL S IREH BREX 2019 2018
Retailing and trading (Continued)
2ERES (B)
Baoshi (Beijing) Company Limited ~ People’s Republic of China/ Retailing, trading and HK$50,000,000 - 100
BEM () IRETH RA Mainland China (foreign- related optical J 50,000,000 7C
invested commercial services
enterprise) WEERTE  HHR
/R RE (OB BRI
e
Baoshi (Shanghai) Company People’s Republic of China/ Retailing, trading and RMB29,038,043 - 100
Limited Mainland China (foreign- related optical AR 29,038,043 78
B () RGEAIRA A invested commercial services
enterprise) REEGZE  EHR
W/ KB (S B il e
e
Shibao (Chongging) Trading People’s Republic of China/ Retailing, trading and HK$21,000,000 - 100
Limited Mainland China (foreign- related optical 1% 21,000,000 G
WE () HEARAH invested commercial services
enterprise) REENEE  BHR
L/ KB (OB il ol
E4%)
a Non-redeemable preference shares a A T B [ R S
b 100% equity interest included 88% of equity interest and a b 100% HE i 3 45 88% IR ME Mz LA A G HE
right to purchase 12% of equity interest W' 129% JREHE
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD
s EMEFRS
As at 31 March 2019 4201943 A 31 H

Attributable
interest of
Location Lot Number Type Lease term the Group

1 B 1t ER SR 8L BE b AEMELER

Hong Kong
5B

Shop 5 On Ground Floor 6817 Commercial Medium 100%
Chungking Mansion [HES i

Nos.36-44 Nathan Road

Kowloon, Hong Kong

A JURE W ZOE 36-44 55

HEERE T 5 56

Macau

]

Em Macau 712 Commercial Medium 100%
Rua de S.Domingos N.21-A EES H

WP HRAs S

21-A%E
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R - HEREARABS

ESG STRATEGY AND REPORTING

This Report is prepared in accordance with the “Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report” and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” of
Appendices 14 and 27 respectively of the Hong Kong Listing
Rules. This Report covers reporting on environmental, social and
corporate governance (“ESG”) issues of the Group’s remaining
businesses comprising of retail and wholesale trading of watches,
and watch supply chain management of its house brands and
where applicable provides y-o-y comparisons. On 1 June 2018,
the Group completed the Disposal of its entire optical business.

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for
the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting. The Board is further
responsible for evaluating and determining ESG related risks and
ensuring that effective ESG risk management and internal controls
are implemented. Management has provided confirmation to the
Board on the effectiveness of these systems.
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Stelux has a long business history in the watch industry. We own
CITY CHAIN, a leading retailer and Hong Kong SuperBrand, and
also Swiss watch brand, SOLVIL et TITUS. Stelux is also the sole
distributor for “SEIKO” watches and clocks and “GRAND SEIKO”
watches in Hong Kong, Singapore and Malaysia.

Stelux’ ethos is to engage and work with our stakeholders in a
responsible, fair and honest way. We strive to:

J provide high quality products and services of best value to
our customers;

J grow, respect and reward our employees as they develop
together with us;

. serve and contribute within our communities; and

J create and safeguard shareholders’ value in a sustainable
manner.

Our management approach and the corresponding strategies
adopted for ESG issues are founded on the above principles.
Appropriate systems, SOPs and internal controls are built upon
these core foundations to achieve the Group’s business objectives.

We strive for our employees to work within a culture where
respect for others is encouraged, rewards are fair and the
workplace is safe and conducive, allowing for an optimal
environment to engage with and deliver to our stakeholders and
others in general. The Group’s vendors and suppliers are a key part
of the success equation as we work with them to source, produce
and deliver high quality products to our customers. Procedures
are in place to ensure that we partner vendors and suppliers
who understand our values and expectations. Our customers
are pivotal and without their support and custom, delivery of
quality products and services cannot be achieved. Finally, our
shareholders look for sustainable performance delivered within
the parameters of good corporate governance, environmental
awareness and community engagement.

Our stakeholders each interacting with and supporting the other
work together to facilitate the Group’s objectives, and its success.
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Environmental
Aspect A1: Emissions
General Disclosure

Information on the policies; and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste

KPI' A1.1 to KPI A1.6 are not applicable. The nature of the
Group's products, namely watches, are such that emissions
discharged during the production process are not material.
Moreover, the Group buys complete watches from third
party brands and also outsources the production of its house
brand products to third party manufacturers. Emissions
discharged from the services the Group provides are also not
material.

There are no relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste that
the Group has to comply with.
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Aspect A2: Use of Resources
General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials

The Group has policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw materials are based
on 3R’s — reduce, reuse or recycle whenever feasible or
practical.

KPI'A2.1

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh) and intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility)

Since the Group buys complete watches from third party
brands and also outsources the production of its house
brand products to third party manufacturers, direct energy
consumption figures are not available. The Group's indirect
energy consumption for electricity for shops, offices and
warehouses is not material.

KPI'A2.2

Water consumption is not material in the production of the
Group's house brand products or the services it provides.
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KPI A2.3 BSEATUAE TR A2.3

The Group has numerous energy efficiency initiatives AR [ H AT E AT 2 IE AR R A AL 45 T
currently in place. These include the following:— # > 4

e Store fixtures and fittings are designed to be reused. B Bl 2 AN R o S AR

Percentage of reuse ranges between 80% to 90% with
a life expectancy of between 5 to 7 years. Natural
materials like metal, wood and glass that are easier
to reuse and recycle are the main building materials
utilised in our store fit out and these materials
constitute between 80% to 90% of store fixtures and
fittings.

. Office equipment are switched off or on electricity
saving mode at the end of the work day.

o Office air conditioning and lights are switched off
when not in use.

J Office lighting are switched off during lunch.

. Energy saving lighting is used in most of our offices,
stores and warehouses.

o Paperless meetings are encouraged. For example,
the Company’s board meetings are paperless and
directors are assigned ipads. When printing is
necessary use of double sided printing is encouraged
and single sided printed paper is reused.

. Communal use of office stationary, like staplers,
erasers, hole punchers, calculators instead of
assigning one unit to each employee.

. Ordering of office stationary, including paper,
letterheads and name cards are centralised for better
monitoring and control.

o Pre-approval is required for all staff air travel and
staff are encouraged to use teleconferencing, video
conferencing or other meeting tools, like Skype,
FaceTime, WhatsApp or WeChat to conduct meetings
to reduce travelling. Our offices in different regions are
supported and linked by video conferencing facilities.
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KPI' A2.4

Water consumption is not material in the production of the
Group'’s house brand products or the services it provides.

KPI' A2.5 Total packaging material
Packaging that the Group uses include bags and watch

boxes, made from paper, plastic or metal.

For FY18/19, total packaging used by the Group was around
0.052 thousand tonnes, falling by nearly 70% y-o-y.
Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
General Disclosure

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources

The Group’s policies are based on 3R’s — reduce, reuse or
recycle whenever feasible or practical.

KPI' A3.1

Policies are adopted to enable the manufacture of house
brand watches to meet higher European standards like CE,
RoHS and REACH to the extent possible, even though these
standards are not mandatory in Asia, our primary and major
market. More information on these standards can be found
on the following links:-

CE-European Conformity

https://ec.europa.eu/growth/single-market/ce-marking_en

RoHS - Restriction on Hazardous Substances

http://ec.europa.eu/environment/waste/rohs_eee/index_
en.htm
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https://ec.europa.eu/growth/single-market/
ce-marking_en

RoHS - Restriction on Hazardous
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REACH - Registration, Evaluation, Authorization and
Restriction of Chemicals

http://ec.europa.eu/environment/chemicals/reach/reach_
en.htm

For details on managing these policies, please see “Aspect
B5 Supply Chain Management” on page 208 to 209.

Social

Employment and Labour Practices
Aspect B1: Employment

General Disclosure

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare

The Group has established employment policies and
guidelines that are compliant with applicable local
employment and labour legislation, regulations and
practices.

These policies and guidelines are:—
Recruitment and Promotion

1. We are an equal opportunities employer. We promote
and adopt a policy of equal opportunities to eliminate
discrimination on the basis of gender, family status
and disability amongst others, in employment and
the workplace. For example, City Chain Hong
Kong, employs persons with disabilities as watch
technicians.

2. We hire and promote based on merit.
3. We hire and promote those who share our values and

work ethics; and those who demonstrate initiative,
responsibility and integrity.
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Compensation

1. Remuneration and benefits are benchmarked against
prevailing local industry norms and commensurate
with experience and qualifications.

2. For certain employee categories, performance
bonuses and commission schemes are adopted as part
of remuneration packages to incentivise.

Dismissal

This is based on employment policies and guidelines that
are compliant with applicable local employment and labour
legislation, regulations and practices.

Working hours, rest periods, and other benefits and welfare

Working hours, rest periods, and other benefits and welfare
are in line with applicable local employment and labour
legislation and regulations, local industry practice and/
or where applicable commensurate with experience,
qualification and seniority.

During FY2018/19, there was no material non-compliance
with applicable employment or labour legislation and/or
regulations.

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards

One of our foremost priorities is to provide employees with
a safe and conducive working environment.

1. Office employees are assigned individual work
stations unless due to the nature of work, this is

considered unnecessary.

2. Offices, stores and warehouses are properly lit and
ventilated and kept clean and tidy.

3. Offices, stores and warehouses are smoke-free.
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4. Furniture, fittings and other office equipment and
air conditioning and ventilation systems (where
applicable) are regularly inspected and maintained.

5.  Security measures are in place at our offices
and warehouses to restrict entry and exit only to
employees and permitted visitors.

6.  We follow applicable government work guidelines,
for example in Hong Kong, on typhoon and rainstorm
warnings.

7.  Free yearly influenza vaccinations are offered to staff
in Hong Kong (and to their families at discounted
rates).

8.  Eligible managerial staff and above in Hong Kong are
offered free basic body check-ups every two years.

Aspect B3: Development and Training

Policies on improving employees” knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work

Our customers enjoy and have come to expect a personal
experience when they shop with us. As there is a direct
correlation between service standards and employee
development and training, proper emphasis is given to
training.

Group policies on employee development and training are
set out below:—
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1. Store staff receive both regular and ad hoc training. 1. JEHEE T8 A2 1 -
2. New staff undergo orientation. 2. HBTAHMINE -

3. Training is generally conducted internally.

4. Training and development are given in relevant areas
like, product knowledge, customer servicing, correct
sales techniques and new laws and regulations that
impact on business operations.

5.  Follow-up evaluation is carried out after training and
development to ensure effectiveness.
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Aspect B4: Labour Standards
General Disclosure

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour

The Group has a zero tolerance policy on bonded or
underaged labour.

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the
supply chain

1. The Group outsources the manufacturing process of
its house brand products by partnering suppliers who
share our principles to conduct business in a fair,
honest and responsible manner.

2. Our suppliers are contractually obliged to ensure that
they do not employ bonded or underaged labour.

3. Our suppliers are contractually obliged to supply
products that are free from toxic materials.

4. Our suppliers are encouraged to align their values
with the Group by agreeing to adopt certain Standards
of Engagement which form part of the contracts they
sign. These Standards include the following:—

(i)  No compulsion to work through force or
intimidation of any form.

(i) Employment to be based solely on the ability to
perform the job and without any discrimination
due to ethnicity, gender, age, disability or
marital status.

(iii)  Fair wages and all other legally mandated
benefits should be paid.

(iv)  Provision of a safe and hygienic working
environment which complies with local laws or
practices.
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(v) Integration of sustainability principles into
business decisions.

(vi)  Community involvement.
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
General Disclosure

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress

As a provider of high quality products and services, we take
our responsibilities relating to the products and services that
we deliver very seriously. Customer safety is paramount.
Quality control and assurance processes are closely
monitored.

Personal data policies and SOPs are in place to ensure that
applicable laws are followed. Our policies on consumer
data protection explain the meaning of personal data, and
the general principles relating to its collection, use, retention
and disposal according to local applicable privacy laws.

The Group takes the confidentiality and handling of
personal data very seriously and employees who breach
policies or the Group’s related guidelines may face
disciplinary action.

We do not engage in false advertising or false labelling.
Products sold generally come with warranties and our
warranty and exchange policies are clearly stated. There are
SOPs relating to product after-sales, product warranties and
product exchange.

Our intellectual property rights are protected and managed
through registration, maintenance and enforcement
measures. Copyright relating to designs for our house brand
products are systematically stored. We respect third party
intellectual property rights and will not knowingly use third
party intellectual rights without authorisation.
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Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

General Disclosure

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering

The Group has established anti-corruption policies and
all employees are expected to discharge their duties with
integrity and to follow relevant local laws. Our anti-
corruption policies are set out in our Employee Handbooks
and Operations Manuals.

The Group has a whistle blowing policy with clearly stated
reporting procedures set out in Employee Handbooks and/or
on the intranet.

In Hong Kong, the ICAC are invited to conduct training
seminars annually.

Aspect B8: Community Investment

General Disclosure

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to

’

ensure its activities take into consideration the communities
interests

Through community engagement, the Group aims to:—

J show love, to give hope and to support the
disadvantaged;

e encourage compassion and empathy in our
employees;

J foster a sense of community within Stelux; and

J empower through education.
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With the above objectives in mind, we engage with those
within our communities with specific emphaisis on:—

e theelderly poor

e the homeless

J poor immigrant families; and

. children and youth

to provide them with:—

J basic sustenance and daily necessities

o social interaction and integration with the wider
community; and

o education

Our policies on giving are:—

o to partner reliable registered charities. Partnerships are
reviewed annually

J to adopt a “no frills” approach to maximise each dollar
donated

J employee volunteering during work hours are capped
at 6 hours per employee for each financial year. There
is no cap outside of work hours

o activities and giving focus on target groups and their
identified needs

o receipts must be issued by a charity for the donations
with a breakdown of costs, where applicable

Periodic appraisal meetings are held with the charities
we support to understand specific needs and to ensure
contributions are appropriately disbursed.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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Stelux’ charitable volunteer team participated in various activities
with charities like Hong Fook Church Bradbury, The Tsung Tsin
Mission of Hong Kong Social Service, Evangel Children’s Home,
Hong Chi Association, Food Angel and Orbis which target low-
income families, orphans and children from broken families,
those with intellectual special needs and sight saving respectively.
Sponsorships included year long donations of free tutorial classes
for underprivileged students; gift packages of basic groceries, fresh
fruits, vegetables and fish to food banks for low-income families.
Sponsorships further included ad-hoc activities like hosting groups
of young children to attend art jamming workshops; attending a
food charity to understand its work and mission and helping in
food preparation, sponsoring the “Hong Chi” Flag Day, helping to
raise donations for “ORBIS World Sight Day 2018”. Our volunteer
team continues to grow in size and services with experienced
volunteers and new volunteers joining in the activities.
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During the year, our Hong Kong subsidiary, the sole distributor (K5 T ] X% [ GRAND SEIKO J 18 5 58 15 v (4= 42 [
for “SEIKO” and “GRAND SEIKO” sponsored over 40 sports £ 7 VR BT 2 W) A4 A Bl 40 JHIE B K 2K
and charitable events, including the “Standard Chartered Hong HIEE) > @5 ETEEBE RN 2019] - [HRFER
Kong Marathon 2019“, the “Stanley International Dragon Boat PREEST SRR 2018 ~ [55 —+Ji F vis [ PR HE T
Championships 2018”, the “20th Hong Kong International Dragon MR TR | - [5HMU18 HARSRS TR ] -
Boat Championships” “Hong Kong Cyclothon”, the “Asian U18 [ 2635 MM R 2 | % [ B I o 4 2K
Athletics Championship”, “Hong Chi Climathon”, and the S .

“UNICEF Charity Run”.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to improve transparency and
protect the interests of shareholders in general. The Board
of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is committed to
making sure that effective self-regulatory practices exist to
protect the interests of its shareholders. These include a
Board comprising experienced and high calibre members,
board committees, and effective and sound systems of risk
management and internal controls.

This section describes the Company’s corporate governance
practices with specific reference to the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 (the
“Corporate Governance Code”) of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). During the financial
year ended 31 March 2019, the Company complied with
the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code except
for certain deviations. These deviations with considered
reasons are set out in this Report.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies contained in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions.

The Company has also made specific enquiry of all its
directors to ascertain whether they have complied with
or whether there has been any non-compliance with the
required standard set out in the Model Code.

In addition, the Board has established written guidelines
on no less exacting terms than the Model Code for relevant
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) in respect of these employees’ dealings in the
securities of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Group by directing and supervising its
affairs. Every director is expected to discharge his or her
duties in good faith and up to the standard of prevailing
applicable laws and regulations, acting objectively in the
best interests of the Group.

Proposals for appointments to the Board are based on the
Company’s board diversity and nomination policies.

The Board currently comprises of 5 members; two executive
directors and three independent non-executive directors
(with a female independent non-executive director).

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
(“CEQ”) should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Under the current organisation
structure of the Group, Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong is the
Chairman and CEO of the Group. The Board believes that
with Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong acting as both Chairman and
CEO ensures consistent leadership and further enables better
strategic planning for the Group. The Board also believes
that the non-separation of roles does not affect the balance
of power and authority within the Board.

The independent non-executive directors are highly
experienced individuals with a broad range of expertise
and experience including in areas such as accounting,
tax, engineering and environmental and healthy life style
consulting. Together, they ensure that the Board maintains
high standards of financial accounting and other mandatory
reporting; providing adequate checks and balances to
safeguard the interests of shareholders in general and the
Group as a whole.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

To assist the directors to discharge their duties, there are
established written procedures to enable the directors, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

The term of office of the Company’s non-executive directors,
including the independent non-executive directors, is 3
years, subject to retirement by rotation (pursuant to Bye-law
110(A) of the Company’s Bye-laws), whichever is the earlier.

Under Code Provision A.4.2, every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Not all
directors of the Company retire strictly under Code Provision
A.4.2. The Company’s Bye-Laws 110(A) stipulates that,
one-third of the directors of the Company who have been
longest serving in office since their last election, except the
Chairman or CEO, shall retire from office by rotation at each
annual general meeting (“AGM”).

Both the Board and management have clearly defined
roles and responsibilities. The Board is ultimately
responsible for establishing the overall long term strategic
direction and objectives of the Group, monitoring the
performance of senior management and oversees corporate
governance and risk management and internal control
systems. Management is responsible for formulating and,
implementing operational and business strategies and plans
to achieve the Group’s strategic direction. Directors have
access to management for enquiries, explanations, briefings
or informal discussions on the Group’s operations and
businesses.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board held a total of ten board meetings and passed
circular resolutions during the financial year and up to
the date of this Report. At the board meetings, different
issues and matters were discussed and reviewed including,
approval of the Group’s FY18/19 interim results and
FY18/19 final results; reviewing financial and operating
performances of the Group; approval of new and/or
renewals of borrowing facilities; approval of new and
renewals of continuing connected transactions; appointing
a replacement auditor; conducting an annual review of
the effectiveness of the system of internal controls of the
Company and its subsidiaries, reviewing risk management
framework and identifying top risks and corresponding
mitigation actions. Details of the directors” attendance at the
board meetings during the financial year and up to the date
of this Report are set out below. All businesses transacted
at the board meetings are well documented and the records
are maintained in accordance with applicable laws and
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regulations.

Total no. of No. of Directors

Directors present
Date of board meeting EsggsRETeY ESHAY HEEEAY
17 April 2018 201844 417 H 5 5
16 May 2018 201845 H 16 H 5 5
21 June 2018 201846 21 H 5 5
17 July 2018 201847 H 17 H 5 5
24 October 2018 2018410 H 24 H 5 5
20 November 2018 20184F11 H20H 5 5
22 January 2019 201941 A 22 H 5 4
12 March 2019 201943 12 H 5 5
22 May 2019 20194 5H22H 5 4
20 June 2019 201946 720 H 5 5
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) EES ()
No. of board meetings

attended/held in FY18/19
Director R18/19BEEHRE
B= BHZEE2SREE
Executive Directors THES
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong (Chairman and A e A 10/10

Chief Executive Officer) (F o B AT AR )

Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin (Chief Financial Officer) B EXSE4: (B 1 BA#5485%) 10/10
Non-executive Directors FITHES
Mr. Wu Chun Sang (independent) HEAESE (B ) 9/10
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man (independent) WA SCBIR (# L) 10/10
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang (independent) Wb G AT A () 9/10

During the financial year, the Company held a Special
General Meeting on 19 April 2018 and its Annual General
Meeting (“AGM”) on 20 August 2018. No other general
meetings were held during the financial year. Details of the
directors’ attendance at the Special General Meeting and
AGM are set out below:

RAPABUAE B > AR FEA 201844 H 19 H
SRAT SRR A B Bk 2018 4F- 8 H 20 H 82
A E R ([RFEFERE ) - A
JF IR AT TR AR o B A T A I SR K & o R
B SR A K B B SR AR K 6 2 R
R

19 April 2018 201854 A19H
Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin B B
Mr. Wu Chun Sang AR SEA
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man HA RS SCHIR
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang Jih 7 A7 L

20 August 2018

20188 H20H

Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin RS
Mr. Wu Chun Sang [ ERa s e
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man B SO
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang B 2 A5 ol

The Chairman of the Company was not present at the SGM. as it was
a general meeting of independent shareholders and at the AGM due
to personal reasons.

The Board is supplied with relevant information by
management pertaining to matters to be brought before the
Board for decision as well as reports relating to internal
controls, risk management or financial performance of the
Group before each regular board meeting. At least 14 day’s
notice of a regular board meeting is given to all directors
giving them the opportunity to attend. Board papers are
despatched to directors generally at least 3 days before
the meeting and in any event as soon as practicable, in all
instances, ensuring that they have sufficient time to review
the papers and are adequately prepared for the meeting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The proceedings of board meetings are generally conducted
by the Chairman of the Company who ensures that sufficient
time is allocated for discussion and consideration of items
on the agenda and also ample opportunities are given
to directors to speak, express their views and share their
concerns. The Chairman held a meeting on 12 March 2019
with the independent non-executive directors without the
other directors present.

Under Code Provision A.6.5, all directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. As such the directors
are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development. Courses have been regularly circulated to
directors for their selection and materials are circulated for
their reading.

In particular, training attended by Mr. Wu Chun Sang
(Chairman of the Audit Committee) included the following:
8 T R BB R RR G, 2018 WK WY R UE R b [
w7 5 € 7, “Annual Auditing Update 2017
“Broadening the Horizons””, “Annual Accounting Update
2017 “Transition to the new standards: Are you on track?””,
“Joint Financial Reporting Forum organized by the HKICPA,
HKEX and the FRC”, “Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) in
financial reporting — Are you familiar with the requirements?
(audio)”, “HKICPA e seminar: Updates on Hong Kong
Financial Reporting” and “Standard HKFRS 16 Lease
(audio).

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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4.

BOARD DIVERSITY

M

2)

Policy on Board Diversity

J We believe that board appointments should first
and foremost be based on merit

o We embrace diversity by being inclusive and
support gender, ethnic, cultural, generational
and geographical diversity, amongst others

o We believe that an optimal and balanced
board should comprise of both male and
female members with an appropriate balance
of different skills, educational and industry
background, experience, knowledge and
independence

Objective and Benefits of Board Diversity

We believe in diversity and inclusiveness as these
bring to the boardroom a spectrum of perspectives
and opinions, necessary as we navigate our businesses
through a more complex market place and as our
customers’ aspirations grow in sophistication.

NOMINATION POLICY

Nomination Committee to consider director
retirements, re-election and eligibility within a
reasonable time before proposing to the Board

To review and assess proposed candidates’
backgrounds, experience, expertise according to a)
Board diversity policy of the Company; b)current
board composition of the Company and c) Group’s
strategic objectives

To consider how a proposed candidate (whether new
or seeking re-election) can contribute to and support
or has in the past contributed to and supported the
Board

For directors considering re-election, to review and
assess if they have attended board, committee and
general meetings, and, frequency of attendance
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5.  NOMINATION POLICY (Continued)

J To consider if a proposed candidate can devote
sufficient time to discharge his/her duties and
responsibilities

o If the position is for an INED, to ensure listing rules
requirements on independence, are met

6. PROCEDURE FOR NOMINATION

(i)  Refer/propose name to Company Secretary who will
inform the Nomination Committee with CV of the
proposed candidate

(i) Presents candidate and his/her CV and where
possible, other relevant background information to the
Nomination Committee for consideration according to
the Nomination Policy.

(iii)  Where necessary, the Nomination Committee or the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee meets the
proposed candidate to assess suitability

(iv)  Nomination Committee confirms or rejects proposed
candidate with proper reasons.

(v)  To restart process when a proposed candidate is
rejected.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company
and has day to day knowledge of the Group’s affairs. She
reports to the Chairman and CEO. The Board has access to
the advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure
that board procedures and all applicable laws, rules and
regulations, are followed.

The Company Secretary attended the following professional
development seminars and read materials on legal and
corporate secretarial updates, receiving more than 15 hours
of training during the financial year: “Annual Corporate
and Regulatory Update 2018”, “Legal Innovation-How
technology transforms the Work and Life of in House
Counsel”, “Recent Developments in Hong Kong Listed
Companies’ Regulatory Environment”, “Getting Ready for
2019”.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the
preparation of the Group’s accounts and has delegated
this responsibility to the Group CFO. The Group CFO
and his team are responsible for preparing interim and
annual financial statements based on Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) ensuring that the financial
statements present a fair and true view of the results and the
financial position of the Group and that they comply with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, the Listing Rules and other applicable laws
and regulations. The Group CFO maintains regular
communications with the external auditors. He also plays
a role in reviewing and making recommendations to the
Board on the Group’s financial risk management. During
the fiscal year, the Group CFO was also responsible for
overseeing the Group's investor relations activities.

A statement by the Group’s external auditors, Ernst &
Young about their reporting responsibilities on the Group’s
financial statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 35 to 42.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company and its subsidiaries ability to continue as a
going concern.
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10.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION 9. REEHE

The Company appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers as AN AL 2017 4 IR AE K& AT B ISR
the external auditors of the Company and certain of its PSR i TR %I B /NI DS S N
subsidiaries at the 2017 AGM until their resignation effective AR Z ANERZ T > B2 HEHT (8 20184F
from 6 December 2018. The Board appointed Ernst & 12 H 6 HARAERL) Fy ik o B IS UK 8 g &t i
Young as external auditors of the Company and certain YT RALE - EF G R ZAKGHFE
of its subsidiaries to fill the casual vacancy following the W5 BT By A m) Be A T LW e 2 w2 SIS A
resignation of PricewaterhouseCoopers, from 7 December Bl (IR 2018412 7 H I E 244 F
2018 until the conclusion of the next annual general T AR AR R B A AR AL > LA A B
meeting of the Company. During the year, HK$2,280,000 B RF 22 B o AR A AR E K & RS
was paid or payable to Ernst & Young for the provision 5 T B A 2 A% R A5 1) H S A sl A i s
of audit services. Details of nature for non-audit related 2,280,000 7C ° KAl ES ATt 2 Ik
services provided by and the fee paid or payable to Ernst & A% R B IR 55 1 R i) L S A OB AT 22
Young are set out as below: ZREFEIR

Description HK$
Il BT
Taxation compliance B B 531,000
Advisory and other services J P % Al 5 147,000
The Group also engaged other auditors in Hong Kong and A £ [ I A s 1 1 2 T At A S
overseas for auditing and miscellaneous services and total PEAZ B[R] IRHES - i A 2 A ks
fees paid amounted to HK$981,000. 981,000 7T °

BOARD COMMITTEES 10. EXZ8g

To assist the Board in the discharge of its duties, the Board
is supported by four board committees. Each committee has
its defined scope of duties and terms of reference and the
committee members are empowered to make decisions on
matters within the terms of reference of each committee.

(1)  Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of three independent
non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Wu Chun
Sang (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Professor
Lawrence Wu Chi Man and Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi
Hang.
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10.

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(1

Audit Committee (Continued)

The terms of reference of the Committee are aligned
with the recommendations set out in the Listing Rules
and the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code. The Committee provides advice
and recommendations to the Board and oversees all
matters relating to the external auditors, thus playing
an important role in monitoring and safeguarding the
independence of the external auditors.

The Committee met five times during the financial
year and up to the date of this Report together with
the external auditors, Ernst & Young in two of the
five meetings to discuss matters, including, the
Group’s audit service plan, the review of accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group
and other financial reporting matters; to ensure
the completeness, accuracy and fairness of the
financial statements of the Company; to discuss
the effectiveness of the systems of internal control
throughout the Group including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function, and their training programmes and budget;
to review all significant business affairs managed by
the executive directors in particular on continuing
connected transactions and to review the Group’s
interim results for FY2018/2019 and results for
the year ended 31 March 2019 before they were
presented to the Board for approval. The Committee
also met to discuss, review and recommend the
appointment of Ernst & Young as external auditor to
the Company and certain of its subsidiaries.

Attendence of directors at the Audit Committee
meetings held on:

24 October 2018

19 November 2018

3 December 2018

8 April 2019

17 June 2019

Mr. Wu Chun Sang

Prof. Lawrence Wu Chi Man
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang
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10.

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(2)

Remuneration Committee

The Company’s Remuneration Committee comprises
of Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man (Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Mr. Wu Chun Sang, Dr.
Agnes Kwong Yi Hang (all independent non-executive
directors of the Company) and Mr. Joseph C.C. Wong
(Group Chairman and CEO).

Code Provision B.1.2 deals with the terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee. The Company has
adopted the terms of reference under Code Provision
B.1.2 except that the terms of reference do not
include reviewing and determining the remuneration
packages of senior management. The Company
believes that the remuneration packages of senior
management should be the responsibility of the
executive directors as they are in a better position to
appraise the performance of senior management. The
Remuneration Committee determines with delegated
responsibility the remuneration packages of its
individual executive directors. The basic salaries of its
executive directors are reviewed annually, and unless
there are exceptional circumstances, increases if any,
generally align with the average annual increment for
the Group's office staff in Hong Kong.

The committee members resolved by way of circular
resolutions on 8 November 2018 to adopt and
approve the basic salaries and annual bonus scheme
for FY18/19 for its executive directors.

The circular resolutions were resolved by the
Remuneration Committee comprising of:

Prof. Lawrence Wu Chi Man
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong (abstaining with respect to his
remuneration)

Mr. Wu Chun Sang
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang
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10.

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
(3) Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises of Mr. Joseph C. C.
Wong (Chairman of the Nomination Committee, Group
Chairman and CEO) and three independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. Wu Chun Sang, Professor Lawrence
Wu Chi Man and Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang.

Code Provision A.5.3 deals with the terms of reference of
a Nomination Committee. The Company has adopted the
terms of reference under Code Provision A.5.3. During
the financial year, and up to the date of this Report, the
Committee met once. The Committee considered the
independence of its retiring independent non-executive
director, having served more than 9 years by the time of
the Annual General Meeting. In the nomination process,
the Committee proposes the most appropriate individual
with the right balance of skills, experience, and industry
background for the position based on the Company’s board
diversity policies and nomination processes for appointment
or election/re-election of directors.

Attendance of directors at the Nomination Committee
meeting held on:

20 June 2019

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong

Prof. Lawrence Wu Chi Man
Mr. Wu Chun Sang

Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang
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10.

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

4)

Corporate Governance Committee

Stelux recognises that adopting proper systems,
running our businesses within a strong legal
framework of rules and procedures, underpinned by
sound business ethics are essential to safeguarding
the economic performance of the Group and our
shareholders’ interests in a sustainable manner. The
Corporate Governance Committee comprises Mr.
Wallace Kwan Chi Kin (Chairman of the Corporate
Governance Committee and Chief Financial Officer)
and three independent non-executive directors,
namely, Mr. Wu Chun Sang, Professor Lawrence Wu
Chi Man and Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang.

Code Provision D.3.1 deals with the terms of
reference of a corporate governance committee. The
Company has adopted the terms of reference under
Code Provision D.3.1. The Corporate Governance
Committee held one meeting during the financial
year. At this meeting, the Committee amongst other
things, reviewed the Company’s compliance with
the Code Provisions and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report. Quarterly sales turnover
updates are voluntarily issued by the Company
and a whistleblowing policy is in place. With the
implementation of the statutory disclosure regime for
inside information under the Securities and Futures
(Amendment) Ordinance 2012 on 1 January 2013,
systems are in place on reporting and dissemination of
inside information.
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10. BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) 10. BEEZEE(4H)

11.

(4) Corporate Governance Committee (Continued)

Attendance of directors at the Corporate Governance
Committee Meeting held on:

12 March 2019

@) GEEREES(H)

AR T A H AT A R A
o Er BRI L -

20193 8 12H

Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin B B
Mr. Wu Chun Sang (kLG
Prof. Lawrence Wu Chi Man [iF & Cr
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang B 247 it

The above four board committees report to the Board. All
businesses transacted at board committee meetings are
recorded and minuted with copies provided to the Board.
The terms of reference of the above board committees are
available on the Company’s website at www.stelux.com.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility
for ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains
appropriate risk management and internal control systems
and for reviewing their effectiveness. The Group’s risk
management and internal control systems are designed
to manage and minimise risk of failures in the Group’s
operational systems, and to achieve our objectives. Such
systems can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

During the year, the Group has complied with all the code
provisions on risk management and internal control under
the Corporate Governance Code.

The main features of the Group’s Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems, include:

(1) Risk Management

The Group’s risk management process is a four-step
process involving identifying, assessing, responding
to and monitoring risks which could affect the Group
from achieving its strategic or business objectives.

11.
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11. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

(1) Risk Management (Continued)

In order to ensure the risk management process is
executed effectively and as an integral part of our
business, the Board has established the following
risk management and reporting framework which
specifies the responsible parties and their roles and
responsibilities for managing risks of the Group.

The Board

e oversees management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems

o evaluate and determine the Group's key risks
which would significantly affect it achieving
strategic or business objectives

o review the Group’s key risks and mitigation
actions and ensure the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems

Audit Committee

J oversees design and operating effectiveness
of the Group’s underlying risk management
process and internal control systems

J review effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal controls with support
from the Internal Audit Function and reporting to
the Board

Risk Steering Committee

J members comprised of key executives of the
Group

o assess and determine the Group’s key risks and
ensure appropriate mitigation actions/controls
are in place

o track progress of mitigation actions/controls
over identified key risks and report to Audit
Committee

o provide confirmation to the Board on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems annually
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11. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL 11. BREBERANIPEIE (47)

(Continued)
(1)  Risk Management (Continued) 1) BRREEE)
Business Units and Functional Support EBBARBPIZEEE
Management
e management meets periodically to identify new o EBEENIET G LI
and review existing risks W e K 2 B AT L B
e design, implement and monitor mitigation o lE -~ EME X EW A EEEN
actions and internal control activities in their DA JEL i 45 it B oAy 0 5 5 i e
day-to-day operations
e ensure risk management process and mitigation o TEMRIEBRZE B & Kk R AT
actions and internal controls follow guidelines P A 1 JEL B A BRI B L B Tk
or recommendations provided by the Risk A48 Tt B A0 5 P 4 5| Bl A Rk
Committee and Internal Audit Function HERGAE
Internal Audit Function AEE
J carry out analysis and independent appraisal of . Wt A 4 (3] 1) Jal B A B AL A s
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s PERBM Ak MR R AT
risk management and internal control systems BT B R ST A
e support the Audit Committee in reviewing the . Y IREAL T B e B AR
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management E R EH RN EERRNE
and internal control systems R
(2) Internal Control (2) REpEEEE

Internal control is a process for the Board and
management to assure achievement of the Group’s
objectives in operational effectiveness and efficiency,
reliable financial reporting, and compliance with
laws, regulations and our internal policies.

The Group has the following major internal controls in
place:

J Policies and standard operating procedures are
set to govern staff in shop operations, integrity
of trading practices, compliance on handling
personal data of customers, acquisition and
disposal of capital assets, financial reporting,
etc.

o Authorisation and approval matrix are set based
on nature and type of transactions.
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11. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL 11.
(Continued)

[ B B TR e BB BE AR (A7)

(2) Internal Control (Continued) 2) REBESIE ()

231

Employees’ Code of Conduct is available on the
Company’s intranet. Employees are required to
strictly follow the Code of Conduct to ensure
the Group operates to the highest standards of
business behaviour and ethics.

Business plans and budgets of individual
business units are prepared and monitored by
management regularly.

Regular management meetings to review
business updates and monitor operating
performance against budgets and relevant
benchmarks.

Regular reviews on store portfolio.

Information access from accounting, Human
Resources and other IT systems are restricted
and managed on a need-to-know basis in order
to protect data and ensure data integrity.

Major or material connected transactions
require pre-approval of independent non-
executive directors and all continuing
connected transactions are reviewed on an
annual basis pursuant to the requirements of the
Hong Kong Listing Rules.

The Group has a “whistle-blowing” mechanism
to allow our staff to anonymously report any
suspected fraud or employee’s misconduct to
the Head of Internal Audit Function who will
refer the report to the Audit Committee and the
Board for further investigation and/or actions.
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11. RISK MANAGEMENT AND

INTERNAL CONTROL 11. BREERRANIPEE (47)

(Continued)
(2) Internal Control (Continued) 2) REBESIE ()

e The Company has a system which sets out the o RN TIEA 5 W R B K 6]
requirements and procedures for handling and O AR R R 2R AR
disseminating inside information to the public. JPo t—Au L B ANA
Any material information which comes to the N BAT A TR > S ZE B R
knowledge of one or more officers should be AW~ ARG K E S 4R R (I
promptly identified, assessed and escalated, W) A BER
where appropriate, to the attention of the Board.

e Our internal audit function conducts regular o NEBHEFIEBMEAT E W B K AR
reviews and ad hoc engagements which cover AT - A R B YA N B
risk assessment and monitoring, operational, T~ B AR B G RLAE T o
financial and compliance aspects.

(3) Internal Audit (3 WEbES

Under Code Provision C.2.5, an internal audit

function should be in place. The key tasks of the

Group’s Internal Audit Function include:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

provides independent and objective assurance
to the Audit Committee and the Board with
respect to the Group's risk management and
internal control systems;

conduct independent audits on the Group’s
financial, operational and compliance controls
and make recommendations on improving work
flow efficiency and effectiveness;

conduct special reviews on areas of concerns as
identified by senior management or the Board;

conduct investigations on business ethics,
employee misconduct, fraud cases and other
violations of the Group’s policies and standards;
and

oversee the “whistle-blowing” mechanism.
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11. RISK MANAGEMENT AND

INTERNAL CONTROL

(Continued)

“@

Annual Review by the Board

Under Code Provision C.2.1, the directors should at
least annually conduct a review of the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal controls system reporting to the
Company’s shareholders in the Corporate Governance
Report. The review should cover all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions.

Under Code Provision C.2.2, the Board’s annual
review should, in particular, consider the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function.

The Board through the Audit Committee, reviews the
overall effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
process and internal control systems annually. During
the current financial year, the reviews covered the
following:

(i)  any significant change in the nature and
extent of significant risks and in the control
environment of the Group;

(i)  the significant control weaknesses (including
financial, operational and compliance controls)
as identified by the Internal Audit Function
and the consideration of effectiveness over
its recommendations on improving internal
business environment;

(iii) major investigation findings on internal control
matters as presented by the Internal Audit
Function;

(iv) the effectiveness of the Group’s financial
reporting and Listing Rule compliance
processes;
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11.

12.

13.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND
(Continued)

INTERNAL CONTROL

(4) Annual Review by the Board (Continued)

(v) the Group’s risk management system, key
risks and corresponding mitigation actions
which were summarized by the Risk Steering
Committee and the Internal Audit Function
based upon discussion with senior management
of different business units and functional
supports; and

(vi) the performance, staff qualification and
experience, training and adequacy of the
Group’s accounting, financial reporting and
internal audit functions.

The Board and the Audit Committee have reviewed the
Group's risk management and internal control systems for
the year ended 31 March 2019 and concluded that adequate
and effective risk management and internal control systems
of the Group are being maintained.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company’s decision to pay dividends to its shareholders
is based on a combination of factors including, the financial
performance of the Group, its future developments and
capital investments, its liquidity requirements for business
operations and external market conditions, like the general
operating environment.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

To promote and enhance investor relations, regular
meetings are held with the investment community. We
value constant dialogue with existing and prospective
investors as a way to promote a greater understanding of
the Group’s business models and the way we conduct our
businesses.

11.
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13.

R B E T e N ERBE R (A7)

@) EBSFEENH)

v AEHBEREEZEG LN
S 2 AR 7 B A ] S B AL
Je R 1 S 47 0 s AR PR 2 R
iy 1 MR 478 P Je g A B o E
R By B AR i AR JEL Bt 4 e
i3

(vi) AR EEE - BB RE R L A
Fwatat Ay KRB - B T HRE KA
B~ Bl fe e Rk o

HRGAFHZEGORMALEHE S
201943 A 31 H 147 FE 0 Jal B /2 381 K A
WYERG > WA AREHAHEF B AA
SR E R R T R TN D B P AR AT

IREBUER

7R ) 1) H FBEHUIR ARF B B Y R S SR 22 TR
R > AR BB KRB R
JE&RCEATE - HAEHEEN RS &S
SREANE T - n— B R -

REEBE

Ty BRAB B R B A BAR > A SR [ E 0 B
BRI BTk o AR EA B LB
TEBUE AR R - DU B A L
eSS EE Sy N

B () A RA A
2019 4F4FH

234



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HEREABRE

14. SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS 14. BREREF
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(1) How shareholders can convene an extraordinary (1)

235

general meeting

Shareholders may request to convene an extraordinary

general meeting in accordance with section 74 of the

Bermuda Companies Act 1981:

The directors of a company, notwithstanding
anything in its bye-laws shall, on the requisition
of members of the company holding at the
date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of such of the paid-up capital
of the company as at the date of the deposit
carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the company, or, in the case of a company
not having a share capital, members of the
company representing not less than one-tenth
of the total voting rights of all the members
having at the said date a right to vote at general
meetings of the company, forthwith proceed
duly to convene a special general meeting of the
company.

The requisition must state the purposes of
the meeting, and must be signed by the
requisitionists and deposited at the registered
office of the company, and may consist of
several documents in like form each signed by
one or more requisitionists.

If the directors do not within twenty-one days
from the date of the deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a meeting, but
any meeting so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the said
date.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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14. SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS (Continued) 14. BRERER (4)

m

()

3)

How shareholders can convene an extraordinary
general meeting (Continued)

iv. A meeting convened under this section by the
requisitionists shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings are to be convened by directors.

v.  Any reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionists by reason of the failure of the
directors duly to convene a meeting shall be
repaid to the requisitionists by the company,
and any sum so repaid shall be retained by the
company out of any sums due or to become
due from the company by way of fees or other
remuneration in respect of their services to such
directors as were in default.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the
board and sufficient contact details to enable these
enquiries to be properly directed

Shareholders may send their enquiries to the Board by
addressing them to the Company Secretary in writing
to:

the Company’s head office, 27/F, Stelux House, 698
Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong; or (ii) by email to ir@stelux.com.

Procedures and sufficient contact details for putting
forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders may, subject to (1) above, by way of
request in writing request a shareholders’ meeting
to be convened for the purpose of considering a
certain matter, addressing the request to the Company
Secretary at:

the Company’s head office, 27/F, Stelux House, 698
Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

(1

(2)

3)
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15.

16.

17.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company attaches great importance to communication
with its shareholders and investors. To foster effective
communications, the Company provides extensive
information in its annual report, interim report and also
publishes information relating to the Group and its
businesses on its website: www.stelux.com.

The Company regards the AGM as a platform to provide an
important opportunity for direct communications between
the Board and the Company’s shareholders. All directors
and senior management will make an effort to attend.
External auditors will also attend the AGM. The chairman
of the Audit, Remuneration, Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committees were all present at the Company’s
AGM held in 2018. Shareholders are given at least 20 clear
business days or 21 days’ notice of the AGM (whichever
is the longer). The Company supports the Corporate
Governance Code principle to encourage shareholders’
participation.

Shareholders may send any enquiries they have by
addressing them to the Company Secretary in writing to:

(i) the Company’s head office, 27/F, Stelux House, 698
Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong; or (ii) by email to ir@stelux.com.

CODE OF CONDUCT

To enhance the ethical standards of employees, the
Company has an employee handbook, setting out the
Group's requisite standards and an ethical code of conduct
for all employees of the Group. Employees at all levels are
expected to conduct themselves in an honest, diligent and
responsible manner.

CONCLUSION

The Company recognises that adopting good corporate
governance principles and practices are important for
the success of the Group and as such we will continue to
strengthen and improve the standard and quality of the
Group’s corporate governance.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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CARING COMPANY
BRREE

In recognition of the Group's services and support to the wider local community, Stelux and its subsidiaries, City Chain
Hong Kong, and Thong Sia Watch, the Hong Kong sole distributor for ”SEIKO” watches and clocks and “GRAND SEIKO”
watches were again respectively awarded Caring Company Awards by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service.
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City Chain Company Limited Stelux Holdings International Limited Thong Sia Watch Co., Ltd

RUBESARAT ARRBBARAT BEERERAT
- [ S+ '
[ mmawe 3 - LI kst m
canngeompmy carngcompany caringcompany
Mission Mission Mission
pteg vl s s v, el e Ty ond mpiog d g
pre—" e commnty o oy copro sl ety bgh g for b oy, ey o srcement
E) L1 B

a0 e A » SARNALELAST  ABSRACORS . NNNLOAS KNS SRBNNU RS N RETLNRS - BRRTARS A

W MORTERREN - EEMMI R it B ALERIA - RS m WAL BOATRRARN - B REARR

= I L I @B I

[ P [ ’ \
C@MPANYq, C®MPANY« C@MDA
‘IB{LE ER R mTAR i)mc FETR REAR 1{)“3 N mAmA
Caring for the Community Coring for the Employess Caring for the Environment Caring for the Community Caring for the Employees Caring for the Environment Carlng for. , Caring Caring
RS mEAT L) - NEAT Ll i BWAL LD
i
ux(ss#‘
L]

TORTEHE (F) ATBRA
2019 4F4F-H 238



AWARDS
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BRAND OF THE YEAR AWARD

For the second consecutive year, City Chain was awarded with the “Brand of the Year” award (under the national brand
for the “watches” category) in the World Branding Awards organized by the World Branding Forum, a global non-profit
organization dedicated to advancing branding standards for the good of the branding community as well as consumers.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Registered Office
Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street
Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda

Principal Office

27th Floor, Stelux House
698 Prince Edward Road East
San Po Kong

Kowloon

Hong Kong

Principal Bankers
Hang Seng Bank Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Auditors
Ernst & Young

Share Registrar

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
26 Burnaby Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Room 1712-1716

17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

AMPER

Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street
Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Audit Committee

Mr. Wu Chun Sang (Chairman of Committee)
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man

Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Remuneration Committee

Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man (Chairman of Committee)
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong

Mr. Wu Chun Sang

Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Nomination Committee

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong (Chairman of Committee)
Mr. Wu Chun Sang

Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man

Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Corporate Governance Committee

Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin (Chairman of Committee)
Mr. Wu Chun Sang

Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man

Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang
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COMPANY DIRECTORY
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CONTINUING OPERATIONS

MAINLAND CHINA AND HONG KONG

Equity Investment, Property Investment, Retail, Trading,

Wholesale and Supply Chain Management
o Stelux Holdings International Limited
J Stelux Holdings Limited
o Stelux Properties Limited

J City Chain Company Limited
27/F., Stelux House,
698 Prince Edward Road East,
San Po Kong, Kowloon, HONG KONG

. Stelux Watch Limited
27/F., Stelux House,
698 Prince Edward Road East,
San Po Kong, Kowloon, HONG KONG

6/F., Continental Electric Building,
17 Wang Chiu Road,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, HONG KONG

o Thong Sia Watch Company Limited

J Thong Tai Watch Company Limited
21/F., Stelux House
698 Prince Edward Road East,
San Po Kong, Kowloon, HONG KONG

J Stelux-Thong Sia (Shanghai) Trading Limited

3/F, Building 1, Industrial Park,
951 Hutai Road, Shanghai, PRC
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Stelux-Thong Sia (Guangdong) Trading Limited
Rooms 3701-3707, R&F Well Center,
No. 180 Jiang Nan Da Dao Zhong Rd, Guangzhou, PRC

Stelux-Thong Sia (Beijing) Trading Limited
A515 in Room 502, Floor 5, Building 306,
Chenguangjiayun

Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC
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e Baoging (Chongqing) Trading Limited o HE(EE) MEAMRAR
Room 31-14#, Building 4, o B T B T o o i KPP AE A 160 5%
No. 160, Da Ping Zheng Street, 418 31-144

Yuzhong District, Chongging, PRC

MACAU P

Retail TE

e City Chain (Macau) Co Limited o IRFMHIERSE SR (RF) A FRA
Rua de S. Domingos, {0 A A
n°s 1G, 1H, 11, R/C, 1G> TH K 1158
Lojas D&E, em HIFIK B 3T D K E 9l
Macau

MALAYSIA BRE DR

Retail and Wholesale Trading e Y SR IO

e City Chain (M) Sdn Bhd J City Chain (M) Sdn Bhd
G8, Jalan Puteri 7/13A G8, Jalan Puteri 7/13A
Bandar Puteri Bandar Puteri
47100 Puchong 47100 Puchong
Selangor Darul Ehsan Selangor Darul Ehsan
MALAYSIA MALAYSIA

° Thong Sia Sdn Bhd (87055-A) o Thong Sia Sdn Bhd (87055-A)
CP 27, Suite 2601-04, 26th Floor, Central Plaza CP 27, Suite 2601-04, 26th Floor, Central Plaza
34, Jalan Sultan Ismail 34, Jalan Sultan Ismail
50250 Kuala Lumpur 50250 Kuala Lumpur
MALAYSIA MALAYSIA

243 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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THAILAND

Retail and Wholesale Trading
o City Chain (Thailand) Co Limited

o Thong Sia (Thailand) Limited
347, 349 Muang Thong Thani
Bondstreet Road
Bangpood Subdistrict
Pakkred District
Nonthaburi 11120
THAILAND

SINGAPORE

Retail and Wholesale Trading

o City Chain Stores (S) Pte Limited
63 Ubi Avenue 1, #06-04
Singapore 408937
SINGAPORE

e Thong Sia Co (S) Pte Ltd
31 Ubi Road 1, #02-06
Singapore 408694
SINGAPORE

SWITZERLAND

Watch Supply Chain Management and Trading

. Universal Geneve S.A.

. Solvil et Titus S.A.

o Pronto Watch S.A.
38, chemin du Grand Puits
Case Postale 128
1217 Meyrin 2
SWITZERLAND

o Catena S.A.
les Vernets 2,
2035 Corcelles NE
SWITZERLAND

=

T R 5 0

. City Chain (Thailand) Co Ltd

J Thong Sia (Thailand) Ltd
347, 349 Muang Thong Thani
Bondstreet Road
Bangpood Subdistrict
Pakkred District
Nonthaburi 11120
THAILAND

#hng

T R 5

+

City Chain Stores (S) Pte Ltd
63 Ubi Avenue 1, #06-04
Singapore 408937
SINGAPORE

Thong Sia Co (S) Pte Ltd
31 Ubi Road 1, #02-06
Singapore 408694
SINGAPORE

%
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Universal Geneve S.A.

Solvil et Titus S.A.

Pronto Watch S.A.

38, chemin du Grand Puits
Case Postale 128

1217 Meyrin 2
SWITZERLAND

Catena S.A.

les Vernets 2,
2035 Corcelles NE
SWITZERLAND
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DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

MAINLAND CHINA AND HONG KONG

Equity Investment, Property Investment, Retail, Trading,

Wholesale and Supply Chain Management

o Optical 88 Limited
27/F., Stelux House,
698 Prince Edward Road East,
San Po Kong, Kowloon, HONG KONG

2/F., Continental Electric Building,
17 Wang Chiu Road,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, HONG KONG

J Thong Sia Optics (Hong Kong) Company Limited
19/F, Stelux House,
698 Prince Edward Road East,
San Po Kong, Kowloon, HONG KONG

o Baoshi (Shanghai) Company Limited
3/F, Building 1, Industrial Park,
951 Hutai Road, Shanghai, PRC

o Baoshi (Guangdong) Company Limited
Rooms 3701-3707, R&F Well Center,
No. 180 Jiang Nan Da Dao Zhong Rd, Guangzhou, PRC

J Baoshi (Beijing) Company Limited
A514 in Room 502, Floor 5, Building 306,
Chenguangjiayuan
Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC

J Shibao (Chongging) Trading Limited
Room 1-3, 18/F Tower 10, Longhu Times Tianjie,
Yuzhong District, Chongqing, PRC

MACAU

Retail

J Optical 88 (Macau) Limited
Rua de S. Domingos,
n°s 1G, 1TH, 11 R/C,
Lojas “D” & “E”, em Macau

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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MALAYSIA

Retail and Wholesale Trading

o Optical 88 Eyecare (M) Sdn Bhd
G8, Jalan Puteri 7/13A
Bandar Puteri
47100 Puchong
Selangor Darul Ehsan
MALAYSIA

J Thong Sia Optical (M) Sdn Bhd
CP27, Suite 2601-04
26th Floor, Central Plaza
34 Jalan Sultan Ismail
50250 Kuala Lumpur
MALAYSIA

THAILAND

Retail and Wholesale Trading

o Optical 88 (Thailand) Limited
347, 349 Muang Thong Thani
Bondstreet Road
Bangpood Subdistrict
Pakkred District
Nonthaburi 11120
THAILAND

SINGAPORE

Retail and Wholesale Trading

. Optical 88 (S) Pte Limited
63 Ubi Avenue 1, £06-04
Singapore 408937
SINGAPORE

J Thong Sia Optical (S) Pte Limited
31 Ubi Road 1, #02-06
Singapore 408694
SINGAPORE
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Optical 88 Eyecare (M) Sdn Bhd
G8, Jalan Puteri 7/13A
Bandar Puteri
47100 Puchong
Selangor Darul Ehsan
MALAYSIA

Thong Sia Optical (M) Sdn Bhd
CP27, Suite 2601-04

26th Floor, Central Plaza

34 Jalan Sultan Ismail

50250 Kuala Lumpur
MALAYSIA

B A EEE 5 2605
Optical 88 (Thailand) Ltd
347, 349 Muang Thong Thani
Bondstreet Road
Bangpood Subdistrict
Pakkred District
Nonthaburi 11120
THAILAND

®
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Optical 88 (S) Pte Ltd
63 Ubi Avenue 1, #06-04
Singapore 408937
SINGAPORE

Thong Sia Optical (S) Pte Ltd
31 Ubi Road 1, #02-06
Singapore 408694
SINGAPORE
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Latest time for lodging transfers of Shares for
registration in order to qualify for
attending and voting at the
Annual General Meeting
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 19 August 2019

Latest date and time for return of proxy
form for the Annual General Meeting
not less than 48 hours before the time of the Annual General
Meeting (i.e. not later than 3:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 21 August
2019)

Closure of the register of members of the
Company for determining the identity of
Shareholders who are entitled to attend
and vote at the Annual General Meeting
Tuesday, 20 August 2019 to
Friday, 23 August 2019 (both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting
3:00 p.m. on Friday, 23 August 2019

Email Contacts
Investor Relations: ir@stelux.com
Shareholder Enquiries: ir@stelux.com

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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